
<@wi&ta'
loteci/ ST ^wsewe.'

April 8/ 2020

As we have been delayed with some of our Bylaw readings you will notice two (2) Cultus Lake Park

Bylaw Enforcement Bylaw No. 1140, 2019, Amendment Bylaws.

Each time a regulatory bylaw is amended to add a contravention or a new bylaw is introduced, the

Bylaw Notice Enforcement Bylaw No. 1140 must be amended to have the corresponding fines schedule

updated or included.

Cultus Lake Park Bylaw Enforcement Bylaw No. 1140, 2019, Amendment Bylaw No. 1171, 2020 is getting

its Final reading and is pertaining to the bylaw amendments and the new Sunnyside Campground Bylaw

put forward at the January 15, 2020 Board meeting.

Cultus Lake Park Bylaw Enforcement Bylaw No. 1140, 2019, Amendment Bylaw No. 1177, 2020 is getting

First, Second and Third readings and is pertaining to the Short-term Rental Bylaw/ Commercial Business

Licence Bylaw and the Home-based Business Licence Bylaw.

Thank you/

Cultus Lake Park



 

s:\clpb documents\0550 board - meetings\0550-10 - agendas - board meetings\2020\04 15 2020\1 2020 04 15 regular meeting agenda.docx 

 
CULTUS LAKE PARK BOARD 
REGULAR MEETING AGENDA 

WEDNESDAY, APRIL 15, 2020 
3:00 PM 

PARK OFFICE BOARDROOM  
4165 Columbia Valley Highway, Cultus Lake, BC 

 
 (1) CALL TO ORDER 

 
 (2) RESOLUTION TO PROCEED TO CLOSED MEETING (1:00 PM) 

 
  THAT the meeting be closed to the public to consider matters pursuant to the following sections of 

the Community Charter: 
Section 90 (1), (c) labour relations or other employee relations; 
Section 90 (1), (d) security of the property of the municipality; and 
Section 90 (1), (k) negotiations and related discussions respecting the proposed providing of a 
municipal service that are at their preliminary stages and that, in the view of the council, could 
reasonably be expected to harm the interests of the municipality if they were held in public. 

   
 (3) RECONVENE 
   

Page 1 (4) APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
 

 (a) THAT the Cultus Lake Park Board approve the Agenda for the Regular Meeting of  
April 15, 2020; and  

   
  THAT all delegations, reports, correspondence and other information set to the Agenda be 

received. 
   
 (5) ADOPTION OF MINUTES 
   

Page 11 (a) THAT the Cultus Lake Park Board adopt the minutes of the Regular Meeting held  
February 19, 2020.  

   
 (6) ADOPTION OF COMMITTEE MINUTES  
   
 (a) Environmental and Public Areas Planning Committees Minutes 
Page 17  • Environmental and Public Areas Planning Committees Minutes dated February 21, 2020  
   
  THAT the Cultus Lake Park Board receive the minutes of the Environmental and Public Areas 

Planning Committee held on February 21, 2020. 
  

001



AGENDA  April 15, 2020 
Cultus Lake Park Board Regular Meeting  Page 2 
 

s:\clpb documents\0550 board - meetings\0550-10 - agendas - board meetings\2020\04 15 2020\1 2020 04 15 regular meeting agenda.docx 

 

   
 (7) FINANCE 
   
 
Page 21 

(a) 2020-2024 Financial Plan Amendment Bylaw 1173, 2020 
• Report dated April 15, 2020 from Erica Lee, Manager of Finance  

Page 27 
Page 29 

 • 2020 - 2024 Financial Plan Amendment Bylaw No. 1173, 2020 
• Schedules A, B, C 
 

  THAT the Cultus Lake Park Board give First, Second and Third readings to Cultus Lake Park 
2020 - 2024 Financial Plan Amendment Bylaw No. 1173, 2020. 

   
 (8) CORRESPONDENCE 
   
  Short Term Rental 
Page 35  • Email dated April 6, 2020 from Blair Stewart, resident 
   
 (9) BYLAWS  
   
Page 37 (a) Cultus Lake Park Bylaw Amendments and Sunnyside Campground Bylaw 
  • Report dated April 15, 2020 from Jacquie Spencer, Manager of Visitor Services, 

Accommodations & Bylaw Enforcement 
   
  THAT the Cultus Lake Park Board receive the Cultus Lake Park Bylaw Amendments and 

Sunnyside Campground Bylaw report for information.  
   
 (b) Sunnyside Campground Bylaw No. 1165, 2020 
Page 41  • Sunnyside Campground Bylaw No. 1165, 2020 
   
  THAT the Cultus Lake Park Board rescind Third reading to the Cultus Lake Park Sunnys  

Campground Bylaw No. 1165, 2020; and 
 
THAT the Cultus Lake Park Board give Third reading as amended by removing Bonny Bryant, C  
Administrative Officer and replacing it with Erica Lee, Chief Financial Officer to the Cultus Lake P  
Sunnyside Campground Bylaw No. 1165, 2020; and 
 
THAT the Cultus Lake Park Board give Final reading to the Cultus Lake Park Sunnyside Campgro  
Bylaw No. 1165, 2020.  

   
 (c) Cultus Lake Park Tree and Plant Bylaw No. 1153, 2019 Amendment Bylaw No. 1166, 2020 
Page 65  • Cultus Lake Park Tree and Plant Bylaw No. 1153, 2019 Amendment Bylaw No. 1166, 2020 
   
  THAT the Cultus Lake Park Board rescind Third reading to the Cultus Lake Park Tree and Plant 

Bylaw No. 1153, 2019 Amendment Bylaw No. 1166, 2020; and 
 
THAT the Cultus Lake Park Board give Third reading as amended by removing Bonny Bryant, 
Chief Administrative Officer and replacing it with Erica Lee, Chief Financial Officer to the Cultus 
Lake Park Tree and Plant Bylaw No. 1153, 2019 Amendment Bylaw No. 1166, 2020; and  
 

002



AGENDA  April 15, 2020 
Cultus Lake Park Board Regular Meeting  Page 3 
 

s:\clpb documents\0550 board - meetings\0550-10 - agendas - board meetings\2020\04 15 2020\1 2020 04 15 regular meeting agenda.docx 

 

THAT the Cultus Lake Park Board give Final reading to the Cultus Lake Park Tree and Plant Bylaw 
No. 1153, 2019 Amendment Bylaw No. 1166, 2020. 
 

 (d) Cultus Lake Park Property Maintenance Bylaw No. 1149, 2019 Amendment Bylaw No. 
1167, 2020 

Page 67  • Cultus Lake Park Property Maintenance Bylaw No. 1149, 2019 Amendment Bylaw No. 1167, 
2020 

   
  THAT the Cultus Lake Park Board rescind Third reading to the Cultus Lake Park Boating and 

Foreshore Bylaw No. 1143, 2019 Amendment Bylaw No. 1168, 2020; and 
 
THAT the Cultus Lake Park Board give Third reading as amended by removing Bonny Bryant, 
Chief Administrative Officer and replacing it with Erica Lee, Chief Financial Officer to the Cultus 
Lake Park Boating and Foreshore Bylaw No. 1143, 2019 Amendment Bylaw No. 1168, 2020; and 
 
THAT the Cultus Lake Park Board give Final reading to the Cultus Lake Park Boating and 
Foreshore Bylaw No. 1143, 2019 Amendment Bylaw No. 1168, 2020. 

   
 
 

(e) Cultus Lake Park Boating and Foreshore Bylaw No. 1143, 2019 Amendment Bylaw No. 
1168, 2020 

Page 69  • Cultus Lake Park Boating and Foreshore Bylaw No. 1143, 2019 Amendment Bylaw No. 
1168, 2020 

   
  THAT the Cultus Lake Park Board rescind Third reading to the Cultus Lake Park Boating and 

Foreshore Bylaw No. 1143, 2019 Amendment Bylaw No. 1168, 2020; and 
 
THAT the Cultus Lake Park Board give Third reading as amended by removing Bonny Bryant, 
Chief Administrative Officer and replacing it with Erica Lee, Chief Financial Officer to the Cultus 
Lake Park Boating and Foreshore Bylaw No. 1143, 2019 Amendment Bylaw No. 1168, 2020; and 
 
THAT the Cultus Lake Park Board give Final reading to the Cultus Lake Park Boating and 
Foreshore Bylaw No. 1143, 2019 Amendment Bylaw No. 1168, 2020. 

   
 
 
Page 71 

(f) Cultus Lake Park Parking and Traffic Regulations Bylaw No. 1154, 2019 Amendment 
Bylaw No. 1169, 2020 

  • Cultus Lake Park Parking and Traffic Regulations Bylaw No. 1154, 2019 Amendment Bylaw 
No. 1169, 2020 

   
  THAT the Cultus Lake Park Board rescind Third reading to the Cultus Lake Park Parking and 

Traffic Regulations Bylaw No. 1154, 2019 Amendment Bylaw No. 1169, 2020; and 
 
THAT the Cultus Lake Park Board give Third reading as amended by removing Bonny Bryant, 
Chief Administrative Officer and replacing it with Erica Lee, Chief Financial Officer to the Cultus 
Lake Park Parking and Traffic Regulations Bylaw No. 1154, 2019 Amendment Bylaw No. 1169, 
2020; and 
 
THAT the Cultus Lake Park Board give Final reading to the Cultus Lake Park Parking and Traffic 
Regulations Bylaw No. 1154, 2019 Amendment Bylaw No. 1169, 2020. 

  

003



AGENDA  April 15, 2020 
Cultus Lake Park Board Regular Meeting  Page 4 
 

s:\clpb documents\0550 board - meetings\0550-10 - agendas - board meetings\2020\04 15 2020\1 2020 04 15 regular meeting agenda.docx 

 

   
 
 
 
Page 75 

(g) Cultus Lake Park Management of Public Areas Bylaw No. 1146, 2019 Amendment Bylaw 
No. 1170, 2020 
• Cultus Lake Park Management of Public Areas Bylaw No. 1146, 2019 Amendment Bylaw 

No. 1170, 2020 
   
  THAT the Cultus Lake Park Board rescind Third reading to the Cultus Lake Park Management 

of Public Areas Bylaw No. 1146, 2019 Amendment Bylaw No. 1170, 2020; and 
 
THAT the Cultus Lake Park Board give Third reading as amended by removing Bonny Bryant, 
Chief Administrative Officer and replacing it with Erica Lee, Chief Financial Officer to the Cultus 
Lake Park Management of Public Areas Bylaw No. 1146, 2019 Amendment Bylaw No. 1170, 
2020; and 
 
THAT the Cultus Lake Park Board give Final reading to the Cultus Lake Park Management of 
Public Areas Bylaw No. 1146, 2019 Amendment Bylaw No. 1170, 2020. 

   
 
 
Page 77 

(h) Cultus Lake Park Bylaw Notice Enforcement Bylaw No. 1140, 2019 Amendment Bylaw 
No. 1171, 2020 
• Cultus Lake Park Bylaw Notice Enforcement Bylaw No. 1140, 2019 Amendment Bylaw 

No. 1171, 2020 
   
  THAT the Cultus Lake Park Board rescind Third reading to the Cultus Lake Park Bylaw Notice 

Enforcement Bylaw No. 1140, 2019 Amendment Bylaw No. 1171, 2020; and 
 
THAT the Cultus Lake Park Board give Third reading as amended by removing Bonny Bryant, 
Chief Administrative Officer and replacing it with Erica Lee, Chief Financial Officer to the Cultus 
Lake Park Bylaw Notice Enforcement Bylaw No. 1140, 2019 Amendment Bylaw No. 1171, 
2020:and 
 
THAT the Cultus Lake Park Board give Final reading to the Cultus Lake Park Bylaw Notice 
Enforcement Bylaw No. 1140, 2019 Amendment Bylaw No. 1171, 2020. 

   
 (i) Public Feedback regarding Short-term Rentals, Bed & Breakfasts, Secondary Suites 

and Home-Based Businesses  
Page 101  • Report dated April 15, 2020 from Jacquie Spencer, Manager of Visitor Services, 

Accommodations & Bylaw Enforcement 
Page 103  • Public Feedback regarding Short-term Rentals, Bed & Breakfasts, Secondary Suites and 

Home-Based Businesses 
   
  THAT the Cultus Lake Park Board receive the Short-Term Rentals, Bed and Breakfasts, 

Secondary Suites and Home-Based Businesses Community Meeting Report for information. 
 

 (j) Proposed Short-Term Rental Bylaw No. 1174, 2020 
Page 113  • Report dated April 15, 2020 from Jacquie Spencer, Manager of Visitor Services, 

Accommodations & Bylaw Enforcement 
Page 117  • Short-term Rental Bylaw No. 1174, 2020 

  THAT the Cultus Lake Park Board give First, Second and Third readings to the Cultus Lake 
Park Short-Term Rental Bylaw No. 1174, 2020. 

004



AGENDA  April 15, 2020 
Cultus Lake Park Board Regular Meeting  Page 5 
 

s:\clpb documents\0550 board - meetings\0550-10 - agendas - board meetings\2020\04 15 2020\1 2020 04 15 regular meeting agenda.docx 

 

 
 (k) Home- Based Business Bylaw No. 1175, 2020 and Commercial Business Licences 

Bylaw No. 1176, 2020  
Page 125  • Report dated April 15, 2020 from Jacquie Spencer, Manager of Visitor Services, 

Accommodations & Bylaw Enforcement 
Page 127  • Home- Based Business Licence Bylaw No. 1175, 2020 
Page 135  • Commercial Business License Bylaw No. 1176, 2020 
   
  THAT the Cultus Lake Park Board give First, Second and Third reading to the Cultus Lake Park 

Home-based Business License Bylaw No. 1175, 2020. 
 
THAT the Cultus Lake Park Board give First, Second and Third reading to the Cultus Lake Park 
Commercial Business License Bylaw No. 1176, 2020. 

   
 (l) Bylaw Notice Enforcement Bylaw No. 1140, 2019 Amendment Bylaw No. 1177, 2020  
Page141 
 

 • Bylaw Notice Enforcement Bylaw No. 1140, 2019 Amendment Bylaw No. 1177, 2020 
• Report dated April 15, 2020 from Jacquie Spencer, Manager of Visitor Services, 

Accommodations & Bylaw Enforcement 
   
  THAT the Cultus Lake Park Board give First, Second and Third readings to the Cultus Lake 

Park Bylaw Notice Enforcement Bylaw No. 1140, 2019 Amendment Bylaw No. 1177, 2020. 
   
 (10) STAFF REPORTS 
   
 (a) Release of Closed Meeting Resolutions 
Page 149  • Report dated April 15, 2020 from Joe Lamb, Acting Chief Administrative Officer   
   
  THAT the following Closed Meeting Resolutions be released at the April 15, 2020 Regular 

Board meeting: 
 
Acting Chief Administrative Officer  
March 20, 2020 
IC 4060-20 
 
THAT in the absence of a Chief Administrative Officer/Corporate Officer, the Board Chair shall 
have the same powers, duties and responsibilities as those officers as set out in Bylaw 2007-
03; and 
 
THAT the Board Chair may delegate said powers, duties and functions to employees of the 
Park as deemed appropriate, thereby granting special authority to certain employees. 
 
Sunnyside Campground  
March 20, 2020 
IC 4061-20 
 

THAT the Cultus Lake Park Board approve that Sunnyside Campground opening for 
seasonal campers and overnight camping be delayed and that under a weekly review of 
the of the date to ensure the safety of the community; and  
 

005



AGENDA  April 15, 2020 
Cultus Lake Park Board Regular Meeting  Page 6 
 

s:\clpb documents\0550 board - meetings\0550-10 - agendas - board meetings\2020\04 15 2020\1 2020 04 15 regular meeting agenda.docx 

 

 

THAT upon Campground opening the park will prorate any lost days and provide a refund 
to the campers once the campground opens.  

   
 (b) Purchase of Additional Land - 216C Lakeshore Drive 
Page 151  • Report dated April 15, 2020 from Joe Lamb, Acting Chief Administrative Officer 
   
  THAT the Cultus Lake Park Board approve the sale and transfer of 34 m2 to Mr. Williams for 

the construction of a home on 216C Lakeshore Drive.  The price will be set at $1,040.70 per 
square meter for a total $35,383.50. 
 
THAT the Cultus Lake Park Board direct the Acting Chief Administrative Officer to enter into 
an in-kind agreement with Mr. Williams to improve the present parking lot on Lakeshore Drive 
by increasing its capacity and efficiency in exchange for the 34 m2 land sale and transfer as 
outlined in this report. 
 

 (c) Request for Direction - Development Variance Permit 216C Lakeshore Drive 
Page 165  • Report dated April 15, 2020 from Joe Lamb, Acting Chief Administrative Officer 
Page 167  • Report dated February 27, 2020 from Julie Mundy, Planner 1, FVRD  
   
  THAT the Cultus Lake Park Board supports the issuance of a Development Variance Permit 

for 216C Lakeshore Drive to reduce the setback distance 0.6m from the dwelling and a 0m 
setback for the eave/gutter to the interior property line. 

   
 (d) Request for Direction - Development Variance Permit 29 Lakeshore Drive 
Page 173  • Report dated April 15, 2020 from Joe Lamb, Acting Chief Administrative Officer 
Page 175  • Report dated February 27, 2020 from Julie Mundy, Planner 1, FVRD 
   
  Option 1  

 
THAT the Cultus Lake Park Board support the Development Variance Permit for 29 Lakeshore 
Drive.  
 
Option 2 
 
THAT the Cultus Lake Park Board not support the Development Variance Permit for 29 
Lakeshore Drive. 
 
 

 (e) Residential Recycling Report 
Page 197  • Report dated April 15, 2020 from Dave Driediger, Manager of Park Operations 
   
  THAT the Cultus Lake Park Board direct the Acting Chief Administrative Officer to provide 

leaseholders with a standardized recycling tote in either 120L or 240L capacity as set out in 
Option 3 below; and  
 
THAT the Cultus Lake Park Board direct the Acting Chief Administrative Officer to fund the 
purchase of standardized recycling totes, $17,000 from Operations and $45,000 from 
Accumulated Surplus.  
 
 

006



AGENDA  April 15, 2020 
Cultus Lake Park Board Regular Meeting  Page 7 
 

s:\clpb documents\0550 board - meetings\0550-10 - agendas - board meetings\2020\04 15 2020\1 2020 04 15 regular meeting agenda.docx 

 

 
 
 
Page 203 

(f) 255 First Avenue Parking Request 
• Report dated April 15, 2020 from Jacquie Spencer, Manager of Visitor Services, 

Accommodations & Bylaw Enforcement  
   
  THAT the Cultus Lake Park Board direct the Acting Chief Administrative Officer to 

grant the parking request at 255 First Avenue to move their designated parking area 
from First Avenue to Birch Street, provided;  
 

a) The previously designated parking areas along First Avenue is 
relinquished; and 
 

b) That if a leaseholder wishes to sign their designated parking area, the cost 
and responsibility to do so be shouldered by the leaseholder and signage is 
posted on leased land. 

 
 (g) Proposed Designated Smoking Areas 
Page 207  • Report dated April 15, 2020 from Jacquie Spencer, Manager of Visitor Services, 

Accommodations & Bylaw Enforcement  
 

  THAT the Cultus Lake Park Board direct the Acting Chief Administrative Officer to bring 
forward a No Smoking Bylaw No. 1148, 2019 amendment for Board consideration to include 
designated smoking areas. 

   
 (h) COVID – 19 
Page 219  • Report dated April 15, 2020 from Rachel Litchfield, Executive Assistant 
   
  THAT the Cultus Lake Park Board receive the report on COVID – 19 for information. 
   
 (i) Special Event: Cultus Lake Triathlon 
Page 222  • Report dated April 15, 2020 from Paul Holman, Special Events Coordinator 
   
  THAT the Cultus Lake Park Board approve the Cultus Lake Triathlon event from September 

17 – 21, 2020, with September 17, 18 and 19 as set-up days, September 20 as race day, and 
September 21 as a clean-up day. 
 
THAT the Cultus Lake Park Board approve reducing one rental fee day from $500 to $100 for 
Saturday, September 19, 2020. 
 
THAT the Cultus Lake Park Board approve waiving parking fees in Parking Lot A for 20 
volunteers on Sunday, September 20, 2020. 
 

 (j) Special Event: Cultus Lake Water Sports 
Page 239  • Report dated April 15, 2020 from Paul Holman, Special Events Coordinator 
   
  THAT the Special Event application fee of $100 be waived for the 2020 Cultus Lake Water 

Sports Special Event; 
 

007



AGENDA  April 15, 2020 
Cultus Lake Park Board Regular Meeting  Page 8 
 

s:\clpb documents\0550 board - meetings\0550-10 - agendas - board meetings\2020\04 15 2020\1 2020 04 15 regular meeting agenda.docx 

 

THAT the Special Event Rental Fees of $1,500 be waived for the 2020 Cultus Lake Water 
Sports Special Event; 
 
THAT the requirement for the $1,000 security deposit be reduced to $500 for the 2020 Cultus 
Lake Water Sports Special Event; 
 
THAT the Swim Line Removal and Replacement fee of $500 be waived for the 2020 Cultus 
Lake Water Sports Special Event; 
 
THAT food vendors be permitted at the 2020 Cultus Lake Water Sports Special Event; 
 
THAT food vendor fees of $100 per vendor per day be waived for the 2020 Cultus Lake 
Water Sports Special Event;  
 
THAT participants and spectators be permitted to camp at Main Beach from June 5 – 7 for 
the 2020 Cultus Lake Water Sports Special Event;  
 
THAT the parking fees be waived in Lot B for the duration of the 2020 Cultus Lake Water 
Sports Special Event, from June 5 – 7, 2020;  
 
THAT the 2020 Cultus Lake Water Sports organizers be permitted to collect parking fees at 
Lot B (to offset expenses) for the duration of the event from June 5 – 7, 2020; and 
 
THAT Cultus Lake Park provides the 2020 Cultus Lake Water Sports organizers (Dan Milo 
Society) with all funds received in meters in Parking Lot B on June 5, June 6 and June 7, 
2020 (to offset expenses). 
 

 (k) Chilliwack School District Cross Country Run 
Page 245  • Report dated April 15, 2020 from Paul Holman, Special Events Coordinator 
   
  THAT the Chilliwack School District Cross Country Run NOT be considered a “Special 

Event” and the organizer NOT be required to submit a formal Special Event Application; 
 
This means: 
 

• THAT the Special Event Application Fee of $100 is not applicable (as in previous 
years); 

 
• THAT the Rental Fee for 200+ people of $500 is not applicable (as in previous years); 

 
• THAT the Refundable Security Deposit of $1,000 is not applicable (as in previous 

years); and 
 

• THAT the Comprehensive General Liability Insurance of $5,000,000 is not applicable 
(as in previous years). 

 
THAT parking fees for Parking Lot A and Lot B be waived for volunteers and parents from 
2:30 p.m. – 5:30 p.m. on May 6, 2020. 
 
 
 

008



AGENDA April 15, 2020 
Cultus Lake Park Board Regular Meeting Page 9 

s:\clpb documents\0550 board - meetings\0550-10 - agendas - board meetings\2020\04 15 2020\1 2020 04 15 regular meeting agenda.docx 

(l) Cheam Elementary Grade 5 Celebration
Page 251 • Report dated April 15, 2020 from Paul Holman, Special Events Coordinator

THAT the Cheam Elementary Grade 5 Celebration NOT be considered a “Special Event” 
and the organizer NOT be required to submit a formal Special Event Application; 

This means: 
• THAT the Special Event Application Fee of $100 is not applicable;

• THAT the Rental Fee for 0-100 people of $100 is not applicable;

• THAT the Refundable Security Deposit of $1,000 is not applicable; and

• THAT the Comprehensive General Liability Insurance of $5,000,000 is not
applicable.

THAT the Cultus Lake Park Board approve waiving parking fees for 20 vehicles and one bus 
in Parking Lot A for the event. 

(11) REPORTS BY COMMISSIONERS

(a) Recommendations from the Environmental and Public Areas Planning Committee
Page 257 • Report dated March 18, 2020 from Darcy Bauer, Chair, Environmental and Public

Areas Planning Committee

THAT the Environmental and Public Areas Planning Committee recommend that the 
Cultus Lake Park Board approve that the Environmental and Public Areas Planning 
Committee plant up to 25 trees, from schedule B, approved tree replacement list, from the 
Cultus Lake Park Tree and Plant Bylaw No. 1153, 2019, including all amendments, on 
Main Beach at the corner of Second Avenue, on both sides of the service road and the 
lawned area parallel to the west portion of Parking Lot B. 

THAT the Environmental and Public Areas Planning Committee recommend that the 
Cultus Lake Park Board approve that the Environmental and Public Areas Planning 
Committee plant up to ten (10) trees, from schedule B, approved tree replacement list, 
from the Cultus Lake Park Tree and Plant Bylaw No. 1153, 2019, including all 
amendments, and the placement of up to five (5) large boulders on the island between 
Lakeside Beach Club and Sunnyside Boulevard subject to the Chief Administrative Officer 
consulting with the tenants of Lakeside Beach Club. 

(12) COMMUNITY ASSOCIATION

(13) PUBLIC QUESTION PERIOD
Questions from the public will be addressed at the meeting, please feel free to email your 
questions, prior to 4:30 pm on April 14, 2020 to Rachel.litchfield@cultuslake.bc.ca

(14) ADJOURNMENT

THAT the Regular Meeting of the Cultus Lake Park Board held on April 15, 2020 be 

adjourned.

009

mailto:Rachel.ltichfield@cultuslake.bc.ca


010



 

S:\clpb documents\0550 Board - Meetings\0550-60 - Minutes - Board Meetings\20200219 

 

CULTUS LAKE PARK BOARD 
REGULAR MEETING 

MINUTES 
WEDNESDAY, FEBRUARY 19, 2020 

CULTUS LAKE PARK OFFICE BOARDROOM  
4165 Columbia Valley Highway, Cultus Lake, BC 

 

  

Present Commissioner J. Lamb – Chair 
Commissioner D. Bauer 
Commissioner L. Payeur 
Commissioner C. Smit 

  
Staff Chief Administrative Officer – B. Bryant 
 Manager of Finance – E. Lee 

Manager of Park Operations – D. Driediger 
Acting Manager of Visitor Services, Accommodations and Bylaw Enforcement – J. Spencer 

 Executive Assistant – R. Litchfield 
  
Regrets  Commissioner D. Renwick – Vice Chair 
  

(1) CALL TO ORDER   
 
The Chair called the meeting to order at 5:58 pm. 
 

(2) RESOLUTION TO PROCEED TO CLOSED MEETING 
  

 THAT the meeting be closed to the public to consider matters pursuant to the following sections of 
the Community Charter: 
Section 90 (1), (d) the security of the property of the municipality. 

  
(3) RECONVENE 

 
The meeting reconvened at 7:00 pm. 

  
(4) APPROVAL OF AGENDA 

  
4547-20 Moved by: Commissioner Smit  Seconded by: Commissioner Payeur  

  
 THAT the Cultus Lake Park Board approve the Agenda for the Regular Meeting of  

February 19, 2020; and  
  
 THAT all delegations, reports, correspondence and other information set to the Agenda be 

received. 
  
 CARRIED 
  

011



MINUTES       February 19, 2020 
Cultus Lake Park Board Regular Meeting                                                                                              Page 2 
 

S:\clpb documents\0550 Board - Meetings\0550-60 - Minutes - Board Meetings\2020\02 19 2020 

 

  
  

(5) ADOPTION OF MINUTES 
  

4548-20 Moved by: Commissioner Bauer  Seconded by: Commissioner Smit  
 

(a) THAT the Cultus Lake Park Board adopt the minutes of the Regular Meeting held  
January 15, 2020. 

  
 CARRIED 
  

(6) BYLAWS 
  

(a) Cultus Lake Park Parking and Traffic Regulations Bylaw No. 1154, 2019 Amendment 
Bylaw No. 1169, 2020 

 • Report dated February 19, 2020 from Jacquie Spencer, Acting Manager of Visitor Services, 
Accommodations, and Bylaw Enforcement 

 • Cultus Lake Park Parking and Traffic Regulations Bylaw No. 1154, 2019 Amendment 
Bylaw No. 1169, 2020 

 • Redline Version, Cultus Lake Park Parking and Traffic Regulations Bylaw No. 1154, 2019 
Amendment Bylaw No. 1169, 2020 

  
4549-20 Moved by: Commissioner Smit  Seconded by: Commissioner Bauer   

  
 THAT the Cultus Lake Park Board give First, Second and Third readings to the Cultus Lake 

Park Parking and Traffic Regulations Bylaw No. 1154, 2019 Amendment Bylaw No. 1169, 
2020. 

  
 CARRIED 
  

(b) Cultus Lake Park Bylaw Notice Enforcement Bylaw No. 1140, 2019 Amendment Bylaw 
No. 1171, 2020 

 • Report dated February 19, 2020 from Jacquie Spencer, Acting Manager of Visitor 
Services, Accommodations, and Bylaw Enforcement 

 • Attachment 1 
• Attachment 2 

  
4550-20 Moved by: Commissioner Bauer  Seconded by: Commissioner Smit  

  
 THAT the Cultus Lake Park Board rescind the Third reading of the Cultus Lake Park Bylaw 

Notice Enforcement Bylaw No. 1140, 2019 Amendment Bylaw No. 1171, 2020. 
 
CARRIED 
 

4551-20 Moved by: Commissioner Bauer  Seconded by: Commissioner Smit 
 

 THAT the Cultus Lake Park Board give Third reading as amended to the Cultus Lake Park Bylaw 
Notice Enforcement Bylaw No. 1140, 2019 Amendment Bylaw No. 1171, 2020. 
 

 CARRIED 
 

012



MINUTES       February 19, 2020 
Cultus Lake Park Board Regular Meeting                                                                                              Page 3 
 

S:\clpb documents\0550 Board - Meetings\0550-60 - Minutes - Board Meetings\2020\02 19 2020 

 

 
  

4552-20 
 

Moved by: Commissioner Bauer  Seconded by: Commissioner Payeur  
  

 THAT the Cultus Lake Park Bylaw Notice Enforcement Bylaw No. 1140, 2019 Amendment Bylaw 
No. 1171, 2020 be amended by removing and replacing Schedule A-14 Cultus Lake Park Parking 
and Traffic Regulations Bylaw No. 1154, 2019. 

  

 CARRIED 
  

(i) Cultus Lake Park Board Commissioners Remuneration Bylaw No. 1163, 2019 
Amendment Bylaw No. 1172, 2020 

 • Report dated January 15, 2020 from Bonny Bryant, Chief Administrative Officer  
  

4553-20 Moved by: Commissioner Smit  Seconded by: Commissioner Bauer  
 

  
 THAT the Cultus Lake Park Board give Final reading to the Cultus Lake Park Board 

Commissioners Remuneration Bylaw No. 1163, 2019 Amendment Bylaw No. 1172, 2020. 
  
 CARRIED  
  

(7) CONSENT AGENDA  
  
 2019 Fourth Quarter Reports 

 
- Strategic Priorities  
- Finance  
- Lions Parking 
- Public Works  
- Campground and Cabins  
- Bylaw Compliance and Enforcement  
- Fire Department  
- Lease Assignment 

 

  
4554-20 Moved by: Commissioner Smit  Seconded by: Commissioner Payeur  

 

  
 THAT the Cultus Lake Park Board receive the 2019 Fourth Quarter reports for information. 
  
 CARRIED 
  

(8) STAFF REPORTS 

  
(a) Recycling Collection Report 

 • Report dated February 19, 2020 from Dave Driediger, Manager of Park Operations 
  

4555-20 Moved by: Commissioner Smit  Seconded by: Commissioner Payeur  
 

  
 THAT the Cultus Lake Park Board direct the Chief Administrative Officer to defer this back to 

staff for further information and options for totes. 
 
CARRIED 

013



MINUTES       February 19, 2020 
Cultus Lake Park Board Regular Meeting                                                                                              Page 4 
 

S:\clpb documents\0550 Board - Meetings\0550-60 - Minutes - Board Meetings\2020\02 19 2020 

 

  

  
  

4556-20 Moved by: Commissioner Smit  Seconded by: Commissioner Payeur 
 

  
 THAT the Cultus Lake Park Board direct the Chief Administrative Officer to amend the 

residential waste collection budget to cover the one time, $6,179 purchase of 512 - 9L glass 
recycling containers; and to amend the budget to fund them from Accumulated Surplus. 
 

 MOTION DEFEATED 
  
 The Board noted that glass recycling will be the responsibility of the homeowner. Chair Lamb 

suggested that if residents have any concerns to please contact the Park office.   
  

4557-20 Moved by: Commissioner Bauer  Seconded by: Commissioner Payeur 
 

  
 THAT the Cultus Lake Park Board direct the Chief Administrative Officer to amend the 

commercial leaseholder waste collection budget to cover the additional $4,667 annual cost of 
waste disposal; and to fund the additional costs by adding this additional charge to the 
commercial lease annual garbage fees. 

  
 CARRIED 
  

4558-20 Moved by: Commissioner Bauer  Seconded by: Commissioner Payeur 
 

  
 THAT the Cultus Lake Park Board direct the Chief Administrative Officer to amend the Public 

Works organic waste collection budget by $960 annually to cover additional waste disposal 
costs funded with the current operational surplus.  

  
 CARRIED 
  

(8) COMMMISSIONERS REPORTS  
  
 Commissioner Bauer noted that though the Environmental and Public Areas Planning 

Committee has not yet had their first meeting, volunteer members were removing some 
blackberry plants the past weekend. He also noted that he attended the Fraser Valley Regional 
Districts Public Hearing for the Cannabis Zoning Regulation. He noted that production and 
dispensary will not be permitted in in Electoral Area E and H. 

  
 Commissioner Payeur noted that he attended the Celebration of Life at the Evergreen Hall for 

our fire fighter Connor Sloan, who passed away tragically on Christmas Eve. He noted that the 
family was supported by many friends, co-workers and the attendance was standing room only. 
He sent the family condolences from the Board and staff.  

  
 Chair Lamb noted that the Fire Department is holding a fundraiser for PTSD in honor of Conner 

Sloan where they will climb 48 stories on February 23, 2020.  

014



MINUTES       February 19, 2020 
Cultus Lake Park Board Regular Meeting                                                                                              Page 5 
 

S:\clpb documents\0550 Board - Meetings\0550-60 - Minutes - Board Meetings\2020\02 19 2020 

 

  
(9) COMMUNITY ASSOCIATION  

  
 Colleen Rogozinski, Cultus Lake Community Association inquired if there has been an update 

on the sewer? 
  
 Chair Lamb noted that there has not been an update with respect to FVRD and the sewer 

system. He also noted that there has been no engagement between the two parties. 
  
 Question of the Month? 

 
Colleen Rogozinski, Cultus Lake Community Association inquired on the implementation of a 
Smoke-Free Park and noted that it is welcomed by many, however one of the unintended 
consequences of the initiative has been that people have been smoking in secluded areas 
(among the trees and wooded area) and in the residential areas. As a result, this has increased 
the pollution (butts being left on the ground) and potentially increasing the fire hazard within the 
park. She inquired if the Board has given any consideration to create designated smoking areas 
to accommodate smokers? 

  
 Chair Lamb noted that it will be placed on a Regular Meeting Agenda with a staff recommendation 

for the Board to review. He noted that the Board has discussed this in the past and the resolution 
to allow designated smoking areas had been defeated. He noted that in the past we tried to 
educate people on the Smoking Bylaw and did not apply fines, however going forward he noted 
that we do plan on managing this differently this year.  

  
(10) PUBLIC QUESTION PERIOD 

  
 Q: Rick Williamson, First Ave. inquired on the amendment to the parking and in the definition of 

“Store” states not to park more than 72 hours or three (3) days, he noted that neither of these 
stipulate in a row and also inquire on how this will be enforced?   

   
 A: Jacquie Spencer, Acting Manager of Visitor Services, Accommodations and Bylaw 

Enforcement noted that staff are trying to stop people from moving from parking spot to 
parking spot. She noted that it is either 72 hours, or not more than three (3) days in a 
calendar month, not more than 3 days in a row. 

 
A: Chair Lamb referred this back to staff to clarify on ways to manage this.  

  
 Q: Pat Ferdinand’s, Maple St. provided the Board with an example of a bylaw enforcement 

issue in a high-density area in the Lower Mainland where there was a parking restriction of 
72-hours. He noted that it was difficult for the officer to manage and noted that this created a 
lot of friction between neighbors and the community. He inquired under 11.2(b) seasonal 
maintenance for loading and cleaning and has asked what the reason was for this 
concession.  

  
 A: Chair Lamb noted that Board wants to be reasonable in being able to allow those that may 

need to clean their boats, load their RV’s and noted that some may not have the areas or 
space to do so. He clarified that if parking is contained on the lease lot, there is not an issue. 
He referred questions on the Blvd parking to staff for consideration.  

 
 
 

015



MINUTES       February 19, 2020 
Cultus Lake Park Board Regular Meeting                                                                                              Page 6 
 

S:\clpb documents\0550 Board - Meetings\0550-60 - Minutes - Board Meetings\2020\02 19 2020 

 

 

(11) ADJOURNMENT 
  
4559-20 Moved by: Commissioner Bauer  Seconded by: Commissioner Payeur  

 
THAT the Regular Meeting of the Cultus Lake Park Board held on February 19, 2020 be 
adjourned at 8:07 pm. 
 
CARRIED  
 
 
I hereby certify the preceding to be a true and correct account of the meeting of the Cultus 
Lake Park Board held February 19, 2020. 
 

 

 

                                    

_____________________________                           ____________________________ 
Joe Lamb Bonny Bryant 
Chair  Chief Administrative Officer 
 

 

 

 

  
  
  
  
  

  
  

  
  

  

016



c<Sws'i(r
f^wteci' &- <A^WKW

Meeting WIinutes

Present:

ENVIRONMENTAL AND PUBLIC
AREAS PLANNING COMMITTEE

February 21, 2020

Darcy Bauer

Larry Payeur

Brenda Cosgrove

Steve Arnold

Brenda Senft
Kathie VanderHelm
Bonny Bryant
Dave Driediger
Katrina Craig

Committee Chair/Cultus Lake Park Commissioner
Committee Vice-Chair/Cuitus Lake Park Commissioner
Public Appointee

Public Appointee

Public Appointee
Public Appointee
CAO-Cultus Lake Park
Manager of Park Operations

Cultus Lake Park Staff

Absent: N/A

The meeting was called to order by the Chair at 9:00 am

ADOPTION OF AGENDA

Moved by: Brenda Senft
Seconded by: Larry Payeur

Carried

THAT the agenda for the February 21, 2020 Environmental and Public Areas Planning
Committee be approved.

ADOPTION OF COMMITTEE MINUTES N/A

COMMITTEE TERMS OF REFERENCE

• The Terms of Reference were reviewed by the committee.

FROM COMIVHTTEE TO BOARD - RECOMMENDATIONS

• The Committee to Board Recommendations procedures were reviewed by the
committee.

TERMS OF ENGAGEMENT

• The Terms of Engagement were discussed.
• #3 was amended to be more specific - see attached.

MILFOIL

• Application process - The Manager of Park Operations is working on the application to
get a permit to work within the Lake.

Minutes approved via email sent on February 28, 2020
017



• The Manager of Park Operations will reach out to Catherine Tarasoff, to look into mat
purchase. Commissioner Bauer to discuss specifications.

• Commissioner Bauer to lobby donations along the West side as the project will start
there.

• Projected date for completion of this project is April 9th, prior to the weather change and
new milfoil growth.

• The Manager of Park Operations to liaise with Fisheries and Oceans Canada.
• A discussion was had regarding the placement of a line in the foreshore, between swim

lines, to collect loose milfoil prior to it reaching the area with the mats.
• The Manager of Park Operations to report the progress on this project at the next

Environmental and Public Areas Planning Committee meeting.

GEESE HAZING ALONG FORESHORE

• Volunteer procedure:
o The Chief Administrative Officer to meet with the RCMP,
o Vests for dogs and the owners will be required.
o Cards, explaining the hazing and off leash allowances to be made.

• Landscape modifications for goose management to be incorporated into the foreshore
erosion design.

ADDITIONAL AGENDA ITEMS FROM COMR/IITTEE

A discussion was had regarding the priorities of the 2020 Environmental and Public Areas
Planning Committee. What does the committee want to accomplish this year within the $10,000
committee budget?

Priority #1 - Completing the Main Beach Critical Root Zone Enhancement Project previously
approved and started in 2019. This will include:

a. Placing soi! and grass seed in the area between Gazebo A and the Main
Beach Boat Rental. Having Sunnyside Campground ready for its opening
is staffs priority. This, as well as weather and events within the Park, will
be a determining factor as to when this work can take place.

b. Strategic rocks and mulch placed around larger trees for root protection,
within the approved area.

Priority #2 - Planting trees: Main Beach - recommendation:

THAT the Environmental and Public Areas Planning Committee recommend that the Cultus

Lake Park Board approve that the Environmental and Public Areas Planning Committee plant
up to 25 trees, from schedule B, approved tree replacement list, from the Cuttus Lake Park Tree

and Plant Bylaw No. 1 153, 2019, including all amendments, on Main Beach at the comer of
Second Avenue, on both sides of the service road and the lawned area parallel to the west

portion of Parking Lot B.

Moved by: Brenda Senft
Seconded by: Brenda Cosgrove
Carried

• The attached map highlights the areas referred to in the above motion.

• Stakes are out in the areas so the Board can look at the proposed area.

018



Priority #3 " Tree Planting: Between the Lakeside Beach Club and Sunnyside Boulevard -

recommendation:

THAT the Environmental and Public Areas Planning Committee recommend that the Cultus
Lake Park Board approve that the Environmental and Public Areas Planning Committee plant
up to ten (10) trees, from schedule B, approved tree replacement list, from the Cultus Lake Park
Tree and Plant Bylaw No. 1153, 2019, including all amendments, and the placement of up to
five (5) large boulders on the island between Lakeside Beach Club and Sunnyside Boulevard
subject to the Chief Administrative Officer consulting with the tenants ofLakeside Beach Club.

Moved by: Brenda Senft
Seconded by: Brenda Cosgrove
Carried

• The Environmental and Public Areas Planning Committee to work with the Manager of
Park Operations as per the Terms of Engagement.

• Any requests and communication that the Environmental and Public Areas Planning

Committee have for AHA Creative Strategies are to go through the Chief Administrative
Officer.

• Greenery encroachments on residential lots to be addressed as necessary.

• Irrigation installation is in the 2020 budget for certain areas within the Park, including
Sunnyside Boulevard at Lakeside Beach Club.

• Can Park staff install the galvanized mesh on the trees that need protection from
beavers?

• Shoreline erosion to be addressed with Golder Associates Ltd. and that the Manager of

Park Operations will update the Environmental and Public Areas Planning Committee at
the next committee meeting.

• The Environmental and Public Areas Planning Committee to keep track of volunteers at
upcoming scheduled events:

o March 15, 2020 - Blackberry removal at Fir Lane.

o April 26, 2020 - Blackberry removal along Sweltzer Creek.

NEXT MEETING DATE

• April 8, 2020-9:00 am

• Committee to bring a diagram and have the trees marked that they want to have mulch
placed at, as root protection, in the future. The Manager of Park Operations to provide a

printed copy of the Main Beach Survey map to committee members.

ADJOURNMENT OF THE MEETING

Moved by: Brenda Cosgrove
Seconded by: Brenda Senft

THAT the February 21, 2020 meeting of the Environmental and Public Areas Planning
Committee be adjourned.

Meeting Adjourned at 11:25 am
019



020



021



022



023



024



025



026



027



028



029



030



031



032



033



034



On 2020-04-06, 4:21 PM, "Blair Stewart"  
 
    Hello Joe,    
 
This email is a follow up to our phone conversation with regards to rentals in the park.  I am not against 
rentals whether they be long term or STR.  My concern is that some homes may want to rent out two or 
possibly three suites in a single residence.  I suggest that it is imperative that only 1 rental suite or the 
home itself can be rented at any given time.  I think this needs to be clearly stated in rental bylaws prior 
to need STR bylaws being approved by the board.  Your consideration to my suggestion is appreciated.  
Regards, Blair Stewart. 307-2nd Ave.  
     
     
 

035



036



CULTUS LAKE PARK 

REPORT/RECOMMENDATION TO BOARD 

DATE: April 15, 2020 FILE:  3900 

SUBMITTED BY: Jacquie Spencer, Manager of Visitor Services, Accommodations and Bylaw 
Enforcement  

SUBJECT: Cultus Lake Park Bylaw Amendments and Sunnyside Campground Bylaw 

PURPOSE: 

To present the Board the proposed amendments to current Cultus Lake Park Bylaw Amendments and 
the Sunnyside Campground Bylaw. 

RECOMMENDATION: 

Sunnyside Campground Bylaw: 

THAT the Cultus Lake Park Board rescind Third reading to the Cultus Lake Park Sunnyside 
Campground Bylaw No. 1165, 2020; and 

THAT the Cultus Lake Park Board give Third reading as amended by removing Bonny Bryant, Chief 
Administrative Officer and replacing it with Erica Lee, Chief Financial Officer to the Cultus Lake Park 
Sunnyside Campground Bylaw No. 1165, 2020; and 

THAT the Cultus Lake Park Board give Final reading to the Cultus Lake Park Sunnyside Campground 
Bylaw No. 1165, 2020. 

Tree and Plant Bylaw: 

THAT the Cultus Lake Park Board rescind Third reading to the Cultus Lake Park Tree and Plant 
Bylaw No. 1153, 2019 Amendment Bylaw No. 1166, 2020; and 

THAT the Cultus Lake Park Board give Third reading as amended by removing Bonny Bryant, Chief 
Administrative Officer and replacing it with Erica Lee, Chief Financial Officer to the Cultus Lake Park 
Tree and Plant Bylaw No. 1153, 2019 Amendment Bylaw No. 1166, 2020; and  

THAT the Cultus Lake Park Board give Final reading to the Cultus Lake Park Tree and Plant Bylaw 
No. 1153, 2019 Amendment Bylaw No. 1166, 2020. 

Property Maintenance Bylaw: 

THAT the Cultus Lake Park Board rescind Third reading to the Cultus Lake Park Property 
Maintenance Bylaw No. 1149, 2019 Amendment Bylaw No. 1167, 2020; and 

037



 

  

2 
 
THAT the Cultus Lake Park Board give Third reading as amended by removing Bonny Bryant, Chief 
Administrative Officer and replacing it with Erica Lee, Chief Financial Officer to the Cultus Lake Park 
Property Maintenance Bylaw No. 1149, 2019 Amendment Bylaw No. 1167, 2020; and 
 
THAT the Cultus Lake Park Board give Final reading to the Cultus Lake Park Property Maintenance 
Bylaw No. 1149, 2019 Amendment Bylaw No. 1167, 2020. 
 
Boating and Foreshore Bylaw: 
 
THAT the Cultus Lake Park Board rescind Third reading to the Cultus Lake Park Boating and 
Foreshore Bylaw No. 1143, 2019 Amendment Bylaw No. 1168, 2020; and 
 
THAT the Cultus Lake Park Board give Third reading as amended by removing Bonny Bryant, Chief 
Administrative Officer and replacing it with Erica Lee, Chief Financial Officer to the Cultus Lake Park 
Boating and Foreshore Bylaw No. 1143, 2019 Amendment Bylaw No. 1168, 2020; and 
 
THAT the Cultus Lake Park Board give Final reading to the Cultus Lake Park Boating and Foreshore 
Bylaw No. 1143, 2019 Amendment Bylaw No. 1168, 2020. 
 
Parking and Traffic Regulations Bylaw: 
 
THAT the Cultus Lake Park Board rescind Third reading to the Cultus Lake Park Parking and Traffic 
Regulations Bylaw No. 1154, 2019 Amendment Bylaw No. 1169, 2020; and 
 
THAT the Cultus Lake Park Board give Third reading as amended by removing Bonny Bryant, Chief 
Administrative Officer and replacing it with Erica Lee, Chief Financial Officer to the Cultus Lake Park 
Parking and Traffic Regulations Bylaw No. 1154, 2019 Amendment Bylaw No. 1169, 2020; and 
 
THAT the Cultus Lake Park Board give Final reading to the Cultus Lake Park Parking and Traffic 
Regulations Bylaw No. 1154, 2019 Amendment Bylaw No. 1169, 2020. 
 
Management of Public Areas Bylaw: 
 
THAT the Cultus Lake Park Board rescind Third reading to the Cultus Lake Park Management of 
Public Areas Bylaw no. 1146, 2019 Amendment Bylaw No. 1170, 2020; and 
 
THAT the Cultus Lake Park Board give Third reading as amended by removing Bonny Bryant, Chief 
Administrative Officer and replacing it with Erica Lee, Chief Financial Officer to the Cultus Lake Park 
Management of Public Areas Bylaw no. 1146, 2019 Amendment Bylaw No. 1170, 2020; and 
 
THAT the Cultus Lake Park Board give Final reading to the Cultus Lake Park Management of Public 
Areas Bylaw no. 1146, 2019 Amendment Bylaw No. 1170, 2020. 
 
Bylaw Notice Enforcement Bylaw: 
 
THAT the Cultus Lake Park Board rescind Third reading to the Cultus Lake Park Bylaw Notice 
Enforcement Bylaw No. 1140, 2019 Amendment Bylaw No. 1171, 2020; and 
 
THAT the Cultus Lake Park Board give Third reading as amended by removing Bonny Bryant, Chief 
Administrative Officer and replacing it with Erica Lee, Chief Financial Officer to the Cultus Lake Park 
Bylaw Notice Enforcement Bylaw No. 1140, 2019 Amendment Bylaw No. 1171, 2020:and 
 
 
 

038



 

  

3 
 
THAT the Cultus Lake Park Board give Final reading to the Cultus Lake Park Bylaw Notice 
Enforcement Bylaw No. 1140, 2019 Amendment Bylaw No. 1171, 2020. 
 
DISCUSSION: 
 
The above Bylaw and Bylaw Amendments were all set to have final reading at the March 18, 2020 
Cultus Lake Park Board meeting. Due to the Covid-19 situation that meeting was cancelled.  With 
Bonny Bryant no longer being the Chief Administrative Officer as of March 23, 2020 and the Bylaw 
and Bylaw Amendments being moved to the April 15, 2020 Cultus Lake Park Board meeting it was 
necessary to amend them by removing Bonny Bryant, Chief Administrative Officer.  
 
Further to the above amendments, as per the Emergency Program Act Ministerial Order No. M083, 
Timing requirement for bylaw passage – municipalities, Section 9, Despite section 135 (3) 
[requirements for passing bylaws] of the Community Charter, a council may adopt a bylaw on the 
same day that a bylaw has been given third reading.  
 
See attached for the Emergency Program Act. 
 
STRATEGIC PLAN: 
 
This report does not impact the Board’s Strategic Plan Initiative. 
 
 
_________________________________________________________________________________ 
 
 
 
Prepared by:   Approved for submission to the Board:  

      
__________________________   __________________________ 
Jacquie Spencer,  Joe Lamb, 
Manager of Visitor Services,  Acting Chief Administrative Officer 
Accommodations and Bylaw Enforcement 
 

039



040



 
 

Page 1 of 23 
 

 

Cultus Lake Park 

SUNNYSIDE CAMPGROUND BYLAW  
Bylaw No. 1165, 2020 

 

A Bylaw to regulate Sunnyside Campground. 
_______________________________________________ 

Section 12 of the Cultus Lake Park Act (1932 and Amendments) enables the Cultus Lake Park 
Board to adopt Bylaws, and Section 9.2 (1) provides that Section 260 – Enforcement Powers of 
the Community Charter apply to the enforcement of the bylaws of the Board, and Section 261 – 
Payment of Fines and Other Penalties to Municipality under the Community Charter provides 
that fines and other penalties imposed and collected under or because of a Cultus Lake Park 
bylaw must be paid to the Park.   

Every person who offends against any of the provisions of this Bylaw or who suffers or permits 
any act to be done in contravention or in violation of any of the provisions of this Bylaw, or who 
neglects to do or refrains from doing anything required to be done by any of the provisions of this 
Bylaw, or who does any act or thing which violates any of the provisions of this Bylaw, will be in 
breach of this Bylaw, and will be liable to the fees as outlined in Schedule A of this Bylaw and 
the fines and provisions as outlined in the “Cultus Lake Park Bylaw Notice Enforcement Bylaw 
No. 1140, 2019. 
 
The Cultus Lake Park Board in open meeting assembled, enacts as follows: 
 
1. TITLE 

 
This Bylaw may be cited as “Cultus Lake Park Sunnyside Campground Bylaw No. 
1165, 2020.” 

 
2. INTERPRETATION 

 
2.1 Words or phrases defined in the British Columbia Interpretation Act, Motor Vehicle 

Act, Local Government Act, Community Charter, or any successor legislation, will 
have the same meaning when used in this Bylaw unless otherwise defined in this 
Bylaw. 

 
 
 
 

041



 

 

Page 2 of 23 
 

2.2 DEFINITONS OF TERMS 
 

“Barbeque” means a devise that cooks food by applying heat from below, fueled 
by propane. 
 
“Board” means the elected Board for Cultus Lake Park. 
 
“Boulevard” means that portion of space between the road edges on median strips 
or Islands.  
“Bylaw Compliance Enforcement Officer” means the persons duly appointed by 
the Board as such and will include any Peace Officer. 
“CAO” means the Chief Administrative Officer; a position appointed by the Board. 
 
“Camper” means any person included in site occupancy. 

 
“Camperized Van” means a van equipped with beds and cooking equipment. 
 
“Campground” means Sunnyside Campground including all public areas, 
individual sites, campground buildings, foreshore, beaches, wharves and any other 
area within Sunnyside Campground. 
 
“Campground Buildings” means buildings including but are not limited to: 
washrooms, recreation hall, laundry room, campground store, outhouses, offices 
and storage buildings. 
 
“Campground Staff” means any person employed by Cultus Lake Park. 

 
“Camping Stove” a portable stove powered by propane, butane gas canisters, or 
any other means, designed to be used for cooking while outdoors. 
 
“Charcoal/Coal” means a carbonaceous material obtained by heating wood or 
other organic substances in the absence of air. 
 
“Dangerous Animal” means any animal that is or is deemed to be potentially 
harmful to humans by nature, aggression, venom, toxins, or size and that may 
require specifically designed, secure enclosures to ensure safekeeping. 
 
“Designate” means a person appointed by the Campground Administrator. 
 
“Extra Seasonal Vehicle Pass” means the additional adhesive seasonal vehicle 
permit provided by Sunnyside Campground, for a fee, to be affixed for the duration 
of the season to a specific vehicle as registered with the campground. 

 
“Foreshore” means the area under the Lease Agreement from the Ministry of 
Forests, Lands and Natural Resource Operations within Cultus Lake Park along the 
lakeshore and 100 meters or 328 feet into the lake from the high water mark. 
 
“Guest” means any person included in site occupancy. 
 
“Human Transporter” means any battery powered or motorized equipment such 
as a Segway. 

042



 

 

Page 3 of 23 
 

 
 

“Owner” includes any person who owns, has in their custody or control, or harbors 
any pet, or is an occupant of a leased premise of where a pet is kept. 
 
“Park Staff” means any person employed by Cultus Lake Park. 
 
“Person” means a natural person, a company, corporation, partnership, firm, 
association, society, or party and the heirs, executors, administrators, personal or 
other legal representatives of a person to whom the context can apply according to 
law. 
 
“Public Areas” means any street, laneway, avenue, way, drive, boulevard, 
sidewalk, driveway, beaches, wharves, field, campground building or structure, 
playground or such premises as the Campground Administrator may from time to 
time designate. 
 
“Recreational Vehicle” means a motor vehicle or trailer equipped with living space 
and amenities found at home.  
 
“Registered Camper” means any person(s) the reservation information states the 
site is registered to. 
 
“Season” means the seasonal camping season and will be from the second Sunday 
in April until the 30th of September of each calendar year. 
 
“Seasonal Vehicle Pass” means the adhesive seasonal vehicle permit provided by 
Sunnyside Campground, to be affixed for the duration of the season to a specific 
vehicle as registered with the campground. 
 
“Smoker Units” means an apparatus for cooking at low temperatures in a 
controlled, smoky environment, powered by a wide variety of fuels, including 
electricity, propane or natural gas, wood, charcoal and pellets. 
 
“Unmanned Aerial Vehicle” A powered, aerial vehicle that does not carry a human 
operator, uses aerodynamic forces to provide vehicle lift, can fly autonomously or 
be piloted remotely, can be expendable or recoverable and can carry a lethal or 
nonlethal payload. Commonly known as a UAV or drone. 
 
“Unsightly” means in addition to its common dictionary meaning and regardless of 
the condition of other properties in the neighborhood, will include property having 
any one or more of the following characteristics: 
 
(a) the storage, location or accumulation visible to a person standing on a public 

highway or on nearby property, or in a building or structure situated on a public 
highway or nearby property, of filth, rubbish, graffiti or any other discarded 
materials; 

 
(b) the untidy storage, location or placement of building materials on a site where 

construction is not taking place, except where they cannot be seen from a public 
highway or from nearby property, or from a building or structure situated on a 
public highway or nearby property;  

 

043



 

 

Page 4 of 23 
 

(c) landscaping or vegetation that is dead or characterized by uncontrolled growth 
or lack of maintenance, or is damaged;   

 
(d) any other similar conditions of disrepair, dilapidation, or deterioration; 
 
(e) any unlicensed or unregistered vehicles in a state of disrepair or disassembly. 
 
“Vehicle” means a device in, on or by which a person or thing is or may be 
transported or drawn on a highway, but does not include a device designed to be 
moved by human power, a device used exclusively on stationary rails or tracks or a 
motor assisted cycle and for the purpose of this Bylaw will include boat or other 
trailers; and will include the meaning designated to a vehicle in the British Columbia 
Motor Vehicle Act. 
 
“Visitor” means any person visiting a registered camper. 
 
“Wharf” means a structure on the shore extending out into the foreshore. 

 
2.3 In this Bylaw, unless the context otherwise requires, the singular will include the 

plural and the masculine includes the feminine gender. 
 

2.4 The headings contained in this Bylaw are for convenience only and are not to be 
construed as defining, or in any way limiting, the scope or the intent of the provisions 
of this Bylaw. 

 

3. RULES AND REGULATIONS 

All campers and visitors in Sunnyside Campground are subject to the provisions 
as outlined in the Sunnyside Campground Bylaw No. 1165, 2020.  
 
 

4. NOISE REGULATION 
 
Exemptions 
 
4.1 Notwithstanding anything contained herein, no person will be guilty of an 

infraction of this Bylaw while:  
 
a) operating or in charge of Fire Department, Police, Ambulance and Park Staff 

vehicles while in the execution of their duties. 
 

b) operating any motor vehicle, machinery or other apparatus or thing during an 
emergency or for a public purpose or in furtherance of the public interest 
including, without limiting the generality of the foregoing, water main and 
sewer main break repairs. 
 

c) performing works of an emergency nature for the preservation or protection 
of life, health or property, provided that, the responsibility will be on the person 
performing the work to show cause that the work was of an emergency 
nature. 

 
4.2 General Prohibitions 

044



 

 

Page 5 of 23 
 

a) No person will make, cause, or permit to be made or caused, any noise in or 
on any public area in the campground which disturbs or tends to disturb the 
quiet, peace, rest, enjoyment, comfort or convenience of any person or 
persons in the vicinity of that place. 

 
 

b) No person being the registered camper of a campsite will allow or permit such 
campsite to be used so that noise or sound which occurs on or emanates 
from, disturbs or tends to disturb the quiet, peace, rest, enjoyment, comfort or 
convenience of any person or persons on the same site or in the 
neighborhood or vicinity of that site.  

c) In terms of this Bylaw, quiet hours will be maintained between 11:00 pm and 7:00 
am when the campground will be free of any excessive noise that could disrupt 
the peaceful enjoyment of the campground. No person will make unnecessary 
or continuous noise during these quiet hours.  

 
4.3 Public Address Systems 

a) Public address and/or sound systems are not permitted in the campground 
without written permission from the Campground Administrator. 
 

4.4 Motor Vehicle Noise 

a) The following noises are considered unnecessary, objectionable or liable to 
disturb the quiet, peace, rest, enjoyment, comfort or convenience of campers 
and visitors: 

i. the squeal of a tire on a road surface made by a motor vehicle which is 
accelerating, stopping or changing direction; 

ii. a loud, roaring or explosive sound emitted by a motor vehicle within the 
campground; 

iii. the amplified sound of a radio, CD-player, or other sound playback 
device or amplification equipment, or the sound of a musical 
instrument, that emanates from a motor vehicle and can be easily 
heard by someone outside the motor vehicle; 

iv. the sound of an automobile security system which is made, either 
continuously or intermittently, for a period exceeding three (3) minutes, 
or made more than three (3) times in a 24-hour period; 

v. the sound of a horn or other warning device on a motor vehicle used 
for any purpose other than as an audible warning incidental to the safe 
operation of the motor vehicle.  

4.5 Vehicles Idling and Air Quality 

a) It will be an offence to idle or otherwise run continuously for more than three 
(3) minutes at the same location, except: 

i. a vehicle containing equipment that must be operated inside or in 
association with a vehicle;  

045



 

 

Page 6 of 23 
 

ii. a vehicle serving as a facility for taking measurements or making 
observations by or on behalf of the campground, public utility, police, fire 
or ambulance. 

 
 
 
4.6 Specific Prohibitions 

 
Without limiting the generality of subsection 4.2 herein: 

 
a) No person will play or operate any radio, stereophonic equipment or other 

instrument or any apparatus for the production or amplification of sound either in 
or on a campsite or on any road, laneway, wharf, foreshore or other public area 
in such a manner as to disturb the quiet, peace, rest, enjoyment, comfort or 
convenience of any person or persons in the neighborhood or vicinity of those 
premises or place 
 

b) No person being the registered camper of a campsite will allow or permit such 
campsite to be used by a person or persons for playing or operating any radio or 
stereophonic equipment or other instrument or other apparatus for the production 
or amplification of sound in such a manner as to disturb the quiet, peace, rest, 
enjoyment, comfort or convenience of any person or persons in the neighborhood 
or vicinity of said campsite. 

 
c) No person will own, keep or harbor any animal which by its barking, cries or 

sounds unduly disturbs the peace, quiet, rest or tranquility of the surrounding 
neighborhood or of persons in the vicinity. 

 
d) No person may operate, or cause, suffer or permit the operation of, any motorized 

lawn-grooming or garden equipment in the campground between the hours of 
7:00 pm and 9:00 am, with the exception of campground and Park staff. 

 
e) No person will create a nuisance or disturbance upon any portion of a road, 

laneway or other public area by participating in a fight or other similar physical 
confrontation between consenting or non-consenting persons. Failure to comply 
will result in fines and/or eviction.   
 

5. GATE CLOSURE AND VISITOR DEPARTURE 
 

5.1 Seasonal campers will have the option of card-swipe entry for the electronic gate 
outside of gatehouse operational hours. 

 
5.2 Day visitors will be required to leave the campground by 11:00 pm every day.  

 
5.3 Overnight visitors will be required to leave the campground by 11:00 am on the 

date of visitor pass expiry.  
 

5.4 No visitors are permitted entry after 10:00 pm. 
 

6. CAMPERS AND VISITORS 
 

046



 

 

Page 7 of 23 
 

6.1 Campsite fees include two adults and multiple children.  
 

6.2 Extra guests 19 years and older will be considered adults and charged an 
additional fee. Adult occupancy is not permitted to exceed four (4) per campsite.  

 
6.3 It is the responsibility of the registered camper to ensure that their visitor(s) comply 

with all requirements of this Bylaw.  
 

6.4 The registered camper will be held responsible and accountable for their conduct 
and the conduct of their guest(s) and visitor(s). Unacceptable conduct will be subject 
to section 23 [Evictions] of this Bylaw at the discretion of the Campground 
Administrator and/or Manager of Visitor Services, Accommodations and Bylaw 
Enforcement and in consultation with the CAO. 

 
6.5 In the event that a registered camper refuses to pay any outstanding charges, 

campground staff will prohibit the removal of camping materials or unit from the 
campground and/or be subject to eviction.  

 
6.6 Belligerent or disrespectful behavior will not be tolerated anywhere in the 

campground. Violators will be subject to fines and/or eviction. 
 

6.7 The Manager of Visitor Services, Accommodations and Bylaw Compliance 
Enforcement Officers, Sunnyside Campground Administrator or designate, and 
Sunnyside Campground Bylaw Compliance and Enforcement Officers reserve the 
right to refuse admittance to any person. 

 
7. PUBLIC AREAS 

 
7.1 It is prohibited for any person to operate an Unmanned Aerial Vehicle (commonly 

known as a Drone) within the campground. 
 

7.2 Persons 18 years and under must be accompanied by an adult when off their site 
after 11:00 pm. Fines will be applied per attendance and may result in eviction. 

 
7.3 All Playgrounds close at dusk. 

 
8. VEHICLES 

 
8.1 Day Visitor Vehicles: There is a limit of two (2) day visitor vehicles per site. Each 

vehicle may be occupied by two (2) adult visitor(s) and children. Additional fees will 
apply. 

 
8.2 Overnight Camping Visitor Vehicles: There is a limit of one (1) overnight camping 

visitor vehicles per site, providing that the maximum overnight site occupancy of four 
(4) adults will not be exceeded. Additional fees will apply. 

 
8.3 Parking is prohibited on the Beach Drive Boulevard, unless as designated otherwise 

by Park signage. 
 
8.4 Operation of all vehicles in the campground must comply with the Motor Vehicle 

047



 

 

Page 8 of 23 
 

Act.  
 
8.5 Motorcycles are considered vehicles for the purposes of the compliance and 

enforcement of this Bylaw and are required to be registered prior to entry to the 
campground.  

 
8.6 All vehicles must obey all posted speed limits. 
 
8.7 Unlicensed vehicles or low powered vehicles are prohibited in the campground which 

include but are not limited to electric bikes, mopeds and scooters, pocket bikes, 
mini bikes, children-sized ride-on vehicles, human transporters, motorized scooters 
and skateboard, dirt bikes, all-terrain vehicles and golf carts, without prior written 
permission of the Campground Administrator. 

 
8.8 All registered campers and visitors are subject to sections 184 and 194 of the Motor 

Vehicle Act with regard to wearing protective helmets. 
 
8.9 Vehicles must be parked in such a way as to not impede the flow of traffic on any 

road or laneway.  
 

 
9. LIQUOR 

 
The Liquor Control and Licensing Act will be strictly enforced.  
 
9.1 Open liquor and/or alcoholic beverages are prohibited in all public areas, beaches, 

campground buildings, playgrounds, road ways and green spaces. Fines will be 
levied per attendance.  

 
9.2 Open liquor and/or alcoholic beverages may only be consumed on individual 

campsites.  
 

10. AGE RESTRICTION 

Persons under 21 years of age may not be permitted to occupy any campsite unless 
accompanied by the registered camper, aged 21 years of age or older. 
 

11. PETS 
 

11.1 Pets must always be secured or leashed  and under the control of the handler.  
 

11.2 Pets must not be left unattended. 
 

11.3 Pet(s) that repeatedly disturb the quiet enjoyment of campers may be required to be 
removed from the campground by their custodian and/or the registered occupant 
of the site the pet(s) is associated with and will be subject to fines per attendance. 

 
11.4 All pets must have ID tags including owner or custodial contact information attached 

to collars.  
 

048



 

 

Page 9 of 23 
 

11.5 Seasonal pets must have ID tags including the registered campsite number(s). 
 

11.6 Refer to Cultus Lake Park Animal Control and Regulations Bylaw No. 1142, 
2019 Schedule “C” for off-leash areas and dog swim areas. 

 

 

11.7 Pets are not allowed on the beaches, on the wharves, in the water, (except for in 
the dog swim areas) or in the playground areas. 

 
11.8 Handlers of pets will be responsible for all clean-up and disposal of their pet’s 

feces into a garbage receptacle.  
 

11.9 It is prohibited for any person to own, keep or harbor any dangerous animal, 
snakes, lizards or crocodilians within Sunnyside Campground.  

 

12. PLANTS AND TREES 
 

12.1 It is prohibited to cut, trim or damage plants and/or trees, including fallen trees. 
 

12.2 Use of nails, screws or any material which could damage a tree is prohibited. 
 
12.3 No person will plant any tree, plant or flower in the ground within the campground, 

excluding planter boxes and raised garden beds that had been approved by the 
Park in 2010. Replacement of these previously approved planter boxes and 
raised garden beds are not allowed without written permission from the 
Campground Administrator. 

 
12.4 No person will place or store any planter or planting pots outside of the property 

pins of their seasonal camping site.  
 

12.5 Violators will be subject to fines and/or eviction. 

 

13. ELECTRICITY 
 

13.1 All lights are required to be turned off during daylight hours and when retiring for 
the night.  

 
13.2 Air conditioners are required to be turned off when the site is not occupied for 

twelve (12) hours or more.  
 

13.3 One string of Energy Efficient exterior lights, 15m/50’ is permitted per site and is 
to be turned off overnight and/or when the site is not occupied. 

 
13.4 One Energy Efficient 5.0 cubic feet exterior refrigerator displaying Energy Guide 

rating sticker is permitted per seasonal site. The refrigerator must be child-
proofed with an appropriate locking device. Seasonal campers must pay for a 
decal at time of registration which must be clearly displayed on the outside of the 
refrigerator. 

049



 

 

Page 10 of 23 
 

 
13.5 Freezers, electric ranges and generators are not permitted. 

 
13.6 Each seasonal site is entitled to one 30 amperage electrical outlet. Any abuse of 

electrical usage or tampering with electrical outlets or boxes will be subject to 
fines and/or eviction. 

 

13.7 No person will install additional breakers or breaker box systems off an existing 
electrical outlet.  

 
13.8 No person will block access to a breaker box. 

 
 

14. GARBAGE, RECYCLING AND DISPOSAL OF PROPANE BOTTLES 
 

14.1 No person will remove any recycling or waste from any disposal or recycling 
receptacle or remove any recyclable item from any site other than their own or 
any Campground area, except for campground staff.  

 
14.2 No person is permitted to solicit any recycling material from any other person in 

the Campground.  
 

14.3 All campers are required to remove all used or unused propane bottles (white 
and green) upon departure from the campground. It is prohibited to deposit or 
discard any propane bottles anywhere in Sunnyside Campground, including 
trash bins. 

 
15. SITE CONDITION 

It is the responsibility of the registered camper to maintain the overall appearance of 
their site to ensure it does not become unsightly in the opinion of the campground 
administrator.  

 
16. INFORMATION 

 
16.1 To protect the privacy of campers, staff will not release any information about 

Sunnyside Campground registered customers. If campers expect guests, it is 
required that they ensure that the guests know the seasonal campers’ site 
number and the name of the person under which it is registered, or entry will be 
denied. 

16.2 Phone Messages: Only messages of extreme urgency will be delivered to 
individual sites. 

 
17. CAMPFIRES AND FIRE BANS 

 
17.1 Open burning wood fires are prohibited in the campground except on registered 

sites. Fires must be in a container, apparatus or physical construct that is capable 
of controlling the spread of the fire such as the fire rings provided by the campground 
and must not be left unattended and an adult must be present at all time. The only 
material permitted to be burned in fire pits, except for those units as approved in 

050



 

 

Page 11 of 23 
 

17.2, is untreated wood. 
 

17.2 CSA-approved free-standing propane and natural gas fire pits, barbeques and 
camp stoves are permitted on registered sites. 

 
17.3 Smoker units are prohibited in the campground.  

 
17.4 Flames must be kept low six (6) inches (15 cm) in height and a safe distance 

from any tree, building, vehicle and combustible structure or any type of material 
that may be subject to combustion. 

 
17.5 All propane or natural gas units are prohibited on the wharves and the beach.  

 
17.6 The use of charcoal, coal or briquettes is prohibited within the public areas of the 

campground.  
 

17.7 The use of campfires is permitted daily from 7:00 am to 1:00 pm and from 5:00 pm 
to 11:00 pm. 

 
17.8 Camp fire regulations may be relaxed during inclement weather with the approval 

of the Manager of Visitor Services, Accommodations and Bylaw Enforcement, or 
designate.  

 
17.9 Campfires must not be left unattended. An adult must be present at all times if a fire 

is being used. 
 

17.10 Materials prohibited from burning include but are not limited to:  garbage, rubber, 
plastics, hazardous materials, treated, painted or stained wood and/or petroleum 
products not expressly approved in this section. 

 
17.11 In the event of a Fire Ban all fire ban regulations must be strictly adhered to. 

Please refer to the Cultus Lake Park Burning Conditions, Restrictions and Fire 
Ban Bylaw No. 1144, 2019 for Bylaws pertaining to fire bans within Cultus Lake 
Park.  

 
17.12 Barbeque and Charcoal/Coal units are prohibited on wharves and beach areas. 

 
18. WATERCRAFT  

 
Please refer to the Cultus Lake Park Boating and Foreshore Bylaw No. 1143, 2019 for 
Bylaws relating to watercraft, boating, moorage and the foreshore.  

 
19. SEASONAL OCCUPANCY 

 
19.1 Only the registered camper(s) may use the site: 

 
a) Subletting or assignment of seasonal sites is not permitted and will be 

subject to eviction.  
 
b) Change of site occupancy name is allowed only between spouses and 

requires the consent of the Campground Administrator. 

051



 

 

Page 12 of 23 
 

 
19.2 Site Usage 

 
a) Seasonal campers are permitted, per site: one (1) recreational vehicle unit plus 

one (1) tent for immediate family only and as the seasonal site size permits 
in consideration of section 19.3 (b) of this Bylaw, below; or  

b) Two (2) tents for immediate family only if no recreational vehicle unit is on 
site. 

 
19.3 Vehicle Passes 

 
a) Two (2) seasonal vehicle passes are provided at no additional cost for 

each site. It is the responsibility of the seasonal camper to ensure 
adequate parking is available on site in consideration of the recreational 
vehicle unit or trailer size and any other tent(s), boat trailer, shed or utility 
trailer the seasonal camper place on site.  

 
b) A maximum of two (2) extra seasonal vehicle passes may be purchased; 

the recipient(s) of which must be authorized, in writing, by the registered 
seasonal camper, who assumes responsibility for the authorized pass 
holder’s conduct. Each seasonal vehicle pass includes one adult and children.  
Additional adults must register at the gatehouse and pay applicable fees 
overnight visiting. 

 
c) Seasonal passes will not be issued to any camping unit including, but not 

limited to, truck and camper, camperized van or recreational vehicle.  
 

d) Limited parking spaces may be available for rent by the campground and 
may be purchased for additional fees and will be subject to availability at the 
discretion of the Campground Administrator.  

 
e) A motorcycle is considered a vehicle for the purposes of parking passes. A pass 

may be issued in respect to licensed motorcycles or motor scooters provided 
that the vehicles are parked on the seasonal site or in the additional parking 
space(s) as provided by section 19.3 (a) and 19.3 (d).  

 
f) In order to obtain passes, proper identification (e.g. driver’s license) and 

registered seasonal camper’s signature will be required at the time such 
passes are issued and are to be affixed on the vehicle windshield 
immediately. 

 
g) It is prohibited to affix passes to unregistered vehicle(s). The pass will be 

required to be re-purchased by the registered occupant from the remaining 
available passes. If no available passes remain, the registered occupant will 
be required to pay daily or nightly vehicle fees. 

 
h) In the situation of a registered vehicle being sold or a windshield being 

replaced, the old pass must be removed and exchanged for a replacement 
pass, at no additional charge. If the old pass is not provided for exchange, a 
new pass must be purchased and will be subject to availability.    

 
i) Seasonal camper entry after gate closure is permitted via keycard swipe 

052



 

 

Page 13 of 23 
 

system in the pass holders’ lane at the entrance of the Campground. A 
deposit is required for the issue of each card, which will be refunded when 
the card is returned to the Campground gatehouse staff prior to September 
30 at 12:00 pm. If a card is lost, stolen or damaged the deposit will be 
retained and a further deposit is required to issue a replacement card. Fees 
and deposit amounts are outlined in Schedule A of this Bylaw. 

 
 

20. SITE SET-UP AND ALTERATIONS 
 

20.1 Site set-up and alterations require prior written approval from the Campground 
Administrator and Manager of Visitor Services, Accommodations and Bylaw 
Enforcement and must meet all Bylaw requirements. 
 

20.2 Approved site alterations expire at the end of each season.  
 

20.3 Wood decks are permitted and must remain within site boundaries and must be 
removed at the end of each season. Poured concrete decks and other permanent 
deck structures are prohibited except for seasonal campers that have been 
grandfathered in 2010. If the grandfathered deck structures are deemed unsafe, 
by Park Staff, they will be removed, and the site will be brought back to its natural 
state. 
 

20.4 Sheds and Utility Trailers: One shed (must not exceed 4 feet wide x 8 feet long x 7 
feet high) or utility trailer (must not exceed 14 feet long) is permitted per site and 
must be located within the site boundaries. The exterior must be finished and used 
for the sole purpose of storage.  Sheds or utility trailers are subject to the Manager 
of Visitor Services, Accommodations and Bylaw Enforcement, or designate, 
approval. 
 

20.5 Tarps must remain within the campsite boundary and must be used as roof 
coverings only. Tarps must not be secured to trees in any way that could harm or 
damage them. Orange tarps are not permitted to be used on seasonal sites. 
  

20.6 Fences require the Campground Administrator’s written approval, and if approved, 
must not be a height greater than 1.2m (4 feet). Fencing must abide by the 
following: 
 
a) fences along a roadway will not be outside of the campsite property 

lines and must be setback two (2) feet from the roadway; 
 

b) picket fences with pointed tops are prohibited; 
 

c) fencing contiguous to campground washrooms may be solid and 6 feet tall; 
 

d) all fencing must allow persons from outside the campsite to be able to clearly 
see into the campsite without an obstructed view; 

 
e) no solid fencing is permitted and 

 

053



 

 

Page 14 of 23 
 

i. must be a non-permanent and removable wooden, wire, plastic or 
Plexiglas barrier that is one type with a width of less than six inches 
and a height of no greater than 4 feet. 

 
20.7 All portable carport, gazebo and metal structures must be secured and/or 

anchored to the ground. 
  

20.8 No landscape or construction materials will be allowed into the campground without 
an approved Site Set-up / Alteration form signed by the Campground 
Administrator and/or Manager of Visitor Services, Accommodations and Bylaw 
Enforcement. 
 

20.9 One (1) picnic table per site is supplied and must not be damaged or altered in any 
way (including painting). Any coverings protecting or attached to the table must be 
removed upon departure. 

 

20.10 It is the sole responsibility of the seasonal camper or registered occupant to 
ensure that any deck built on-site meets the current British Columbia Building 
Code and has been approved by the Campground Administrator.  
 

20.11 On-site inspection by Bylaw Compliance Enforcement and Park staff may 
occur to ensure Bylaw and Building Code Compliance.  

 
20.12 A person will not add any structure to or beside any recreational vehicle, travel 

trailer or camper other than a deck. 
 
20.13 No accessary buildings or structures are permitted on a campsite or within the 

campground unless approved by the Campground Administrator. 
 
20.14 No person will interfere with the operations of the campground, including but not 

limited to, tampering with electrical, water, sewer or site boundary lines. 

 

21. SATELLITE DISH/ANTENNAE 
 

21.1 Satellite dishes must be installed within the perimeter of the seasonal site and 
can only extend beyond the seasonal site with prior written permission from the 
Campground Administrator. Permission will be denied should any parts of the 
satellite including, but not limited to, cable, dish, wiring, etc. cross over or under 
any roadway or pathway.  

 
21.2 Satellite dishes or any part thereof must not be attached to utility poles or 

Sunnyside Campground structures.  
 

21.3 Satellite dishes attached to trees must be attached in such away so as to not 
harm a tree in any manner. Examples include: bungee cords, zap straps or 
satellite poles. 

 
21.4 All Satellite dish equipment must be removed at the end of season. 

 
21.5 Satellite dishes in violation of this section are subject to removal without notice. 

054



 

 

Page 15 of 23 
 

 
21.6 Sunnyside Campground is not responsible for any theft of satellite signal or 

piracy of media content.  

 

 
22. DEPARTURE PROCEDURES 

 
22.1 Sites and fire pits must be cleaned before departure. 

 
22.2 Ropes and other tying devices which are attached to trees must be removed 

before departure. 
 

22.3 All building materials, furniture, appliances and any other large items must be 
removed from the campground at the expense of the seasonal camper. None of 
these items are to be left at or within waste removal bins.  

 
22.4 Any unsecured items such as, but not limited to, cement blocks and bricks must 

be removed from sites prior to the departure date. All costs incurred by 
Sunnyside Campground for the removal and disposal of items will be charged 
to the registered site occupant, plus 25 percent for overhead costs.   

 
22.5 Departure time for seasonal camping is no later than 12:00 noon on 

September 30. 
 

22.6 Failure to comply with these procedures may jeopardize future site 
occupancy. 

 
22.7 A clean-up fee will be applied to registered campers whose site is not cleaned on 

departure. The clean-up fee will be added as a site charge levied in the following 
year to the returning seasonal camper. 

 
23. EVICTIONS 

 
23.1 In the event a camper fails to abide by any section of this Bylaw, the camper may 

be subject to the following: 
 
a) Seasonal camper: be evicted from the campground and given forty-eight (48) 

hours to remove all personal property. 
 

b) For a seasonal camper who is evicted, any refund will be calculated by using 
the overnight full hook-up rates currently in effect applied to the total number of 
registered nights prior to the eviction departure date and is subject to a two week 
period for campground staff to find seasonal occupancy for the site. The number 
of unregistered nights, to a maximum of 14, will be added to the number of 
registered nights of the evicted seasonal prior to calculating the refund. 

 
c) Overnight campers will be required to leave the campground and remove all 

personal property immediately. 
 

d) A seasonal or daily camper who has been evicted will not be permitted back 

055



 

 

Page 16 of 23 
 

to Sunnyside Campground for two (2) years and only with approval of the 
Campground Administrator. If the Campground Administrator grants approval 
for a seasonal camper to return to the Campground, the individual will be 
placed on the wait list. 

 
e) Evictions will be at the sole discretion of the Campground Administrator and/or 

Manager of Visitor Services, Accommodations, and Bylaw Compliance 
Enforcement in consultation with the CAO. 

 

24. SEASONAL NON-RENEWAL 
 

24.1 Annually, registered seasonal camper’s site files will be reviewed and may be 
subject to non-renewal of the seasonal site if one or more of the following 
criteria is applicable: 
 
a) Multiple warnings and notice on several occasions during the past season 

or previous seasons relating to: 
 

i. Belligerent/disrespectful behavior 
 

ii. Documentation of reoccurring issues of prohibitive behavior over one 
or more seasons; 

 
iii. Written or verbal warning by Bylaw Compliance Enforcement Officer 

throughout the season relating to noise, which are documented in shift 
patrol logs; 

 
iv. Other Bylaw infractions. 

 
b) Occurrences where the attendance of the RCMP is required to attend 

(including but not limited to: domestic disturbances; physical violence; public 
intoxication; belligerent behavior; or threats against campground staff). 

 
 

c) Abusive/disrespectful or threatening behavior or language towards 
campground staff. 

 
d) Nonpayment of campground fees, by the applicable deadline.  

 

24.2 Notice of non-renewal may be given at any time.  
 

24.3 Occupants of sites that are subject to non-renewal will not be permitted back 
to Sunnyside Campground for two (2) years and only with the approval of 
the Campground Administrator and/or Manager of Visitor Services, 
Accommodations, and Bylaw Compliance Enforcement and CAO.  

 
 
 

056



 

 

Page 17 of 23 
 

25. FEES AND FINES 
 

25.1 All campers and visitors in Sunnyside Campground are subject to the fees noted in 
Schedule A of this Bylaw and the fines and provisions as outlined in Cultus Lake 
Park Bylaw Notice Enforcement Bylaw No. 1140, 2019, and Schedule A-11 of said 
bylaw.  
 

25.2 Each occurrence or day that a contravention of the provisions of this Bylaw exists 
or is permitted to exist will constitute a separate offence. 

 
 
26. SEVERABILITY 

If any part of this Bylaw is for any reason held invalid by a Court or competent jurisdiction, 
the invalid portion will be severed and the severance will not affect the validity of the 
remainder. 

 

27. REPEAL 

Sunnyside Campground Bylaw No. 1151, 2019 and all amendments are repealed upon 
adoption.  

28. EFFECTIVE DATE 

This Bylaw will come into force and effect upon its adoption. 
 

READ A FIRST TIME THIS 15 DAY OF JANUARY, 2020 
 
READ A SECOND TIME THIS 15 DAY OF JANUARY, 2020 
 
READ A THIRD TIME THIS 15 DAY OF JANUARY, 2020 
 

  ADOPTED this XX day of XXXX, 2020 

 

 
______________________________ _____________________________ 
Joe Lamb, Chair     Bonny Bryant 
Cultus Lake Park Board    Chief Administrative Officer 
 
 

  

057



 

 

Page 18 of 23 
 

 
 
I HEREBY CERTIFY the foregoing to be a true 
and correct copy of Cultus Lake Park Sunnyside 
Campground Bylaw No. 1165, 2020 

 
 
 
 
 ______________________________ 
 Chief Administrative Officer 
  

058



 

 

Page 19 of 23 
 

 

Schedule A 
 

Fees 
 

Administration fee (charged to seasonal and waitlist refunds).............................................. $30.00 
 
Annual on-site refrigerator fee: up to 5.0 cu ft. …………………………..……….....................$45.00 
 
Annual on-site refrigerator fee: over 5.0 cu ft. (grandfathered) ..............................................$90.00 
 
Buoy rental (Weekly)...............................................................................................................$75.00 
 
Buoy rental (Daily)..................................................................................................................$15.00 
 
Cancellation fee (if cancelled 7 days prior to arrival).............................................................$13.00 
 
Cost of rectifying non-approved site alterations …………………………Actual Hourly rate + 25% 
overhead + materials + other related costs 
 
Cost of removal of unauthorized items disposed of.…….........................Actual Hourly rate + 25% 
overhead + materials 
 
Cost of replacement tree due to willful damage…………………………Actual Hourly rate + 25% 
overhead + materials (mature tree up to 14 feet in height) 
 
Cost of seasonal site clean-up.................................................................Actual Hourly rate + 25% 
overhead + other related costs 
 
Day visitor..............................................................................................................................$11.00 
 
Extra seasonal parking spot and/or boat storage..............................................$100.00 per season 
 
Extra seasonal vehicle pass (maximum 2)..................................................................$50.00 each 
 
Full hookup – daily – Sunday to Thursday low season ........................................................$46.00 
 
Full hookup – daily Friday and Saturday – low season........................................................$47.00 
 
Full hookup – daily long weekend – low season ..................................................................$55.00 
 
Full hookup – daily Sunday through Thursday – high season..............................................$51.00 
 
Full hookup – daily Friday and Saturday – high season.......................................................$58.00 
 
Full hookup – daily long weekend – high season.................................................................$60.00 
 
Group site day use – low season .......................................................................................$150.00 
 

059



 

 

Page 20 of 23 
 

Group site day use – high season ........................................................................................$200.00 
 
Group site overnight – low season .......................................................................................$275.00 
 
Group site overnight – high season....................................................................................$320.00 
 
Late night entry keycard deposit ............................................................................................$25.00 
 
Late night entry keycard fee for lost, stolen or damaged cards .............................................$25.00 
 
Late payment fee (per day) .....................................................................................................$5.00 
 
Overnight full hook-up April monthly camping fee………..……….............................$900.00/month 
 
Overnight full hook-up May monthly camping fee.....................................................$900.00/month 
 
Overnight full hook-up June monthly camping fee....................................................$900.00/month 
 
Overnight full hook-up September monthly camping fee..........................................$900.00/month 
 
Overnight visitor – no vehicle – extra adult on site (maximum - 4 adults per site)….………$11.00 
 
Overnight guest boat launch ..................................................................................................$20.00 
 
Overnight Camping visitor vehicles (maximum 1 per site, includes driver)...........................$20.00 
 
Overnight family vehicle (must be from same address and may be required to show proof of 
address) .............................................................................................................................$11.00 
 
Overnight campers with pets ..........................$5.00 daily per pet or max $20.00 per week per pet 
 
Picnic fee (extended campsite time – low season only).......................................................$20.00 
 
Reservation fee ...................................................................................................................$12.00 
 
Tenting – double Site – daily Sunday through Thursday – low season……………….……. $65.00 
 
Tenting – double Site – daily Friday and Saturday – low season……………….…………..$66.00 
 
Tenting – double Site – daily long weekends – low season……………………………….…$66.00 
 
Tenting – double Site – daily Sunday through Thursday – high season…………………. $73.00 
 
Tenting – double Site – daily Friday and Saturday – high season…………………………$77.00 
 
Tenting – double Site – daily long weekends – high season……………………………….…$82.00 
 
Tenting – regular – daily Sunday through Thursday – low season........................................$33.00 
 
Tenting – regular – daily Friday and Saturday – low season.................................................$34.00 
 

060



 

 

Page 21 of 23 
 

Tenting – regular – daily long weekend – low season...........................................................$34.00 
 
Tenting – regular – daily Sunday through Thursday – high season.......................................$38.00 
 
Tenting – regular – daily Friday and Saturday – high season................................................$45.00 
 
Tenting – regular – daily long weekend – high season..........................................................$47.00 
 
Tenting – view – daily Sunday through Thursday – low season...........................................$36.00 
 
Tenting – view – daily Friday and Saturday – low season....................................................$37.00 
 
Tenting – view – daily long weekend – low season...............................................................$37.00 
 
Tenting – view – daily Sunday through Thursday – high season..........................................$42.00 
 
Tenting – view – daily Friday and Saturday – high season...................................................$49.00 
 
Tenting – view – daily long weekend – high season..............................................................$51.00 
 
Tenting – waterfront – daily Sunday through Thursday – low season..................................$45.00 
 
Tenting – waterfront – daily Friday and Saturday – low season............................................$46.00 
 
Tenting – waterfront – daily long weekend – low season.....................................................$54.00 
 
Tenting – waterfront – daily Sunday through Thursday – high season.................................$50.00 
 
Tenting – waterfront – daily Friday and Saturday – high season..........................................$57.00 
 
Tenting – waterfront – daily long weekend – high season.....................................................$59.00 
 
Tenting – preferred beachfront sites A, B, C and D – daily Sunday through Thursday – low 
season…...............................................................................................................................$46.00 
 
Tenting – preferred beachfront sites A, B, C and D – daily Friday and Saturday – low 
season................................................................................................................................$47.00 
 
Tenting – preferred beachfront sites A, B, C and D – daily long weekend – low 
season................................................................................................................................$58.00 
 
Tenting – preferred beachfront sites A, B, C and D – daily Sunday through Thursday – high 
season…................................................................................................................................$51.00 
 
Tenting – preferred beachfront sites A, B, C and D – daily Friday and Saturday – high 
season................................................................................................................................$59.00 
 
 
Tenting – preferred beachfront sites A, B, C and D – daily long weekend – high 
season................................................................................................................................$61.00 
 

061



 

 

Page 22 of 23 
 

Sani-dump non-camper..........................................................................................................$10.00 
 
Seasonal deposit .................................................................................................................$250.00 
 
Seasonal non-refundable prepayment...............................................................................$1,000.00 
 
Seasonal regular site ........................................................................................................$4,817.00 
 
Seasonal view site ............................................................................................................$5,255.00 
 
Seasonal waterfront site...................................................................................................$5,627.00 
 
Seasonal waitlist ..................................................................................................................$100.00 
 
Unrequired early positioning - application fee......................................................................$100.00 
 
 
 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

062



 

 

Page 23 of 23 
 

Schedule B 
Seasonal Calendar 

 
 
Second Friday in  
January  
 

 Deadline for refunds on seasonal site deposit. 

No refund given after this date. 

 
First Monday in  
February 
 

 Partial non-refundable site payment due date. 

Second Monday in 
March 

 Final seasonal site payment is due. If payment not received in full 
a $5.00 penalty charge will be added each day to a maximum of 
30 days.  After 30 days your site will be considered forfeited and 
no refunds will be issued. 

Second Sunday in April  Seasonal move-in day. 

September 15  Deadline for seasonal deposit. If payment not received in full a 
$5.00 penalty charge will be added each day to a maximum of 30 
days.  After 30 days your site will be considered forfeited and no 
refunds will be issued. 

September 30, 12:00 pm  End of seasonal camping season. 

 
 

063



064



 

 Cultus Lake Park  
TREE AND PLANT BYLAW NO. 1153, 2019 

Amendment Bylaw No. 1166, 2020 
A Bylaw to amend Cultus Lake Park Tree and Plant Bylaw No. 1153, 2019. 

______________________________________________________________ 

 
Section 12 of the Cultus Lake Park Act (1932 and Amendments) enables the Cultus Lake Park Board 
to adopt Bylaws, and Section 9.2 (1) provides that Section 220 – Enforcement Powers of the 
Community Charter apply to the enforcement of the bylaws of the Board, and Section 261 – Payment 
of Fines and Other Penalties to Municipality under the Community Charter provides that fines and 
other penalties imposed and collected under or because of a Cultus Lake Park bylaw must be paid to 
the Park.   

 
The Board for Cultus Lake Park did enact a bylaw cited as Cultus Lake Park Tree and Plant Bylaw 
No. 1153, 2019. 
 
The Board for Cultus Lake Park deems it advisable to amend said bylaw.  
 
The Board for Cultus Lake Park, in open meeting assembled, enacts as follows: 
1. TITLE 

 
This Bylaw may be cited for all purposes as “The Cultus Lake Park Board Bylaw Tree and Plant 
Bylaw No. 1153, 2019 Amendment Bylaw No. 1166, 2020”. 
 

2.  AMENDMENTS 
 

Cultus Lake Park Tree and Plant Bylaw No. 1153, 2019 is amended as follows: 
 
2.1 Removing section 4.10 and replacing with the following:   
 

4.10 No person will remove or damage a tree without permission or after an application 
is denied. Fines will be paid in accordance with Cultus Lake Park Bylaw Notice 
Enforcement Bylaw No. 1140, 2019, Schedule A-13 of said Bylaw and will also 
incur the comparable value replacement cost of the removed or damaged tree. 

 
2.2 Adding section: 
 
 4.14 Tree removal permits, regarding construction, will not be issued until  

the leaseholder has a valid building permit for the leased lot where the structure 
will be built. 

 
2.3  Adding to Schedule A:  

 
(a) Maidenhair Tree ‘Gingko biloba’ 

065



 

(b) Pyrus calleryana ‘Chanticleer’ 
(c) Tilia Cordata ‘Litlle Leaf Linden’ 
(d) Acer platanoides ‘Royal Red’ 
(e) Metasequoia glyptostroboboides ‘Ogon’ 
(f) Oak 
(g) Beech 
(h) Maple 
(i) Locust 
(j) Katsura 

 
 

3 EFFECTIVE DATE 

 READ A FIRST TIME this 15 day of JANUARY, 2020 
 
 READ A SECOND TIME this 15 day of JANUARY, 2020 
 
 READ A THIRD TIME this 15 day of JANUARY, 2020 
 
 ADOPTED this XX day of XXXXX, 202X 

 
 
 

___________________________   ____________________________ 
Joe Lamb, Chair     Bonny Bryant  
Cultus Lake Park Board    Chief Administrative Officer 
 
 
 
 
 
    
 
I HEREBY CERTIFY the foregoing to be a true 
and correct copy of The Cultus Lake Park Board  
Tree and Plant Bylaw No. 1153, 2019  
Amendment Bylaw No. 1166, 2020 
 
 
____________________________ 
Chief Administrative Officer 

066



 

 

 Cultus Lake Park  
PROPERTY MAINTENANCE BYLAW NO. 1149, 2019 

Amendment Bylaw No. 1167, 2020 
A Bylaw to amend Cultus Lake Park Property Maintenance Bylaw No. 1149, 2019. 

______________________________________________________________ 

Section 12 of the Cultus Lake Park Act (1932 and Amendments) enables the Cultus Lake Park Board 
to adopt Bylaws, and Section 9.2 (1) provides that Section 220 – Enforcement Powers of the 
Community Charter apply to the enforcement of the bylaws of the Board, and Section 261 – Payment 
of Fines and Other Penalties to Municipality under the Community Charter provides that fines and 
other penalties imposed and collected under or because of a Cultus Lake Park bylaw must be paid to 
the Park.   
 
The Board for Cultus Lake Park did enact a bylaw cited as Cultus Lake Park Property Maintenance 
Bylaw No. 1149, 2019; 
 
The Board for Cultus Lake Park deems it advisable to amend said bylaw;  
 
The Board for Cultus Lake Park, in open meeting assembled, enacts as follows: 
1. TITLE 

 
This Bylaw may be cited for all purposes as “Cultus Lake Park Property Maintenance Bylaw No. 
1149, 2019 Amendment Bylaw No. 1167, 2020”. 
 

2. AMENDMENTS 
 

Cultus Lake Park Property Maintenance Bylaw No. 1149, 2019 is amended as follows: 
 
2.1 Adding section: 
 
  Garbage, Recycling, Greens Waste and Compost – Wildlife Attractants 

 
 3.6 All leaseholders, tenants or occupiers of a leased lot must ensure that any and all 

garbage, recycling, greens waste bins and any structures to contain such 
receptacles must be kept entirely on the leased lot. 

 
 3.7 Garbage, Recycling and Greens Waste bins must only be set out between 12:00 

pm the day prior to pick up and 8:00 am only on the designated day of collection 
and must be returned to the leased lot the day of collection. 

 
 3.8 All leaseholders, tenants or occupiers of a leased lot must ensure that any and all 

garbage, recycling and greens waste bins are stored in a safe, sanitary and 
inoffensive manner. 

 

067



 

 

 3.9 All leaseholders, tenants or occupiers of a leased lot must ensure that any and all 
garbage, recycling, greens waste bins, pet food, composts, and barbeques are 
stored in such a manner as to avoid attracting wild and domestic animals. 

 
 3.10 All leaseholders are responsible for all garbage clean up, within two hours of being 

notified there is a garbage clean up required. 
 
 3.11 All leaseholders, tenants or occupiers of a leased lot must ensure that all composts 

and compostable substances are stored in a safe, sanitary and inoffensive 
manner. 

 
  

 
3. EFFECTIVE DATE 

 READ A FIRST TIME AS AMENDED this 15 day of JANUARY 2020 
 
 READ A SECOND TIME this 15 day of JANUARY 2020 
 
 READ A THIRD TIME AS this 15 day of JANUARY 2020 
 
 ADOPTED this XX day of XXXXX, 20XX 

 
 
 

___________________________   ____________________________ 
Joe Lamb, Chair     Bonny Bryant  
Cultus Lake Park Board    Chief Administrative Officer 
 
 
 
 
 
    
 
I HEREBY CERTIFY the foregoing to be a true 
and correct copy of Cultus Lake Park Property  
Maintenance Bylaw No. 1149, 2019 Amendment  
Bylaw No. 1167, 2020 
 
 
____________________________ 
Chief Administrative Officer 

068



 

 Cultus Lake Park  
BOATING AND FORESHORE BYLAW NO. 1143, 2019 

Amendment Bylaw No. 1168, 2020 
A Bylaw to amend The Cultus Lake Park Boating and Foreshore Bylaw No. 1143, 2019 

______________________________________________________________ 

 
Section 12 of the Cultus Lake Park Act (1932 and Amendments) enables the Cultus Lake Park Board 
to adopt Bylaws, and Section 9.2 (1) provides that Section 220 – Enforcement Powers of the 
Community Charter apply to the enforcement of the bylaws of the Board, and Section 261 – Payment 
of Fines and Other Penalties to Municipality under the Community Charter provides that fines and 
other penalties imposed and collected under or because of a Cultus Lake Park bylaw must be paid to 
the Park.   

 
The Board for Cultus Lake Park did enact a bylaw cited as Cultus Lake Park Boating and Foreshore 
Bylaw No. 1143, 2019; 
 
The Board for Cultus Lake Park deems it advisable to amend said bylaw;  
 
The Board for Cultus Lake Park, in open meeting assembled, enacts as follows: 
1. TITLE 

 
This Bylaw may be cited for all purposes as Cultus Lake Park Boating and Foreshore Bylaw No. 
1143, 2019, Amendment Bylaw No. 1168, 2020. 
 

2. AMENDMENTS 
 
Cultus Lake Park Boating and Foreshore Bylaw No. 1143, 2019 is amended as follows: 

 
2.1 Adding sections: 
 

3.3 (t) All buoy’s in the foreshore must display, in a conspicuous location and in a 
permanent and legible manner, a R# (residential house number), S# (Sunnyside site 
number) or NR# (a number supplied by the Park). 

 
3.3 (u) No person will place or relocate a buoy, buoy anchor, boat lift or other mooring 

device in the foreshore except as authorized by the CAO. 
 
3.3 (v) If there are two registrants on the moorage registration form, both registrants must 

sign the form and the indemnity. 
 
 
 
 
 

069



 

 
 

3. EFFECTIVE DATE 

 READ A FIRST TIME this 15 day of JANUARY, 2020 
 
 READ A SECOND TIME this 15 day of JANUARY, 2020 
 
 READ A THIRD TIME this 15 day of JANUARY, 2020 
 
 ADOPTED this XX day of XXXXX, 20XX 

 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
__________________________   ____________________________ 
Joe Lamb, Chair     Bonny Bryant  
Cultus Lake Park Board    Chief Administrative Officer 
 
 
 
 
 
    
 
I HEREBY CERTIFY the foregoing to be a true 
and correct copy of Cultus Lake Park Boating and  
Foreshore Bylaw No. 1143, 2019, Amendment  
Bylaw No. 1168, 2020. 
 
 
 
____________________________ 
Chief Administrative Officer 

070



 

 Cultus Lake Park  
PARKING AND TRAFFIC REGULATIONS BYLAW NO. 1154, 2019 

Amendment Bylaw No. 1169, 2020 
A Bylaw to amend The Cultus Lake Park Parking and Traffic Regulations Bylaw No. 1154, 2019 

______________________________________________________________ 

Section 12 of the Cultus Lake Park Act (1932 and Amendments) enables the Cultus Lake Park Board 
to adopt Bylaws, and Section 9.2 (1) provides that Section 220 – Enforcement Powers of the 
Community Charter apply to the enforcement of the bylaws of the Board, and Section 261 – Payment 
of Fines and Other Penalties to Municipality under the Community Charter provides that fines and 
other penalties imposed and collected under or because of a Cultus Lake Park bylaw must be paid to 
the Park.   

 
The Board for Cultus Lake Park did enact a bylaw cited as The Cultus Lake Park Parking and Traffic 
Regulations Bylaw No. 1154; 
 
The Board for Cultus Lake Park deems it advisable to amend said bylaw;  
 
The Board for Cultus Lake Park, in open meeting assembled, enacts as follows: 
1. TITLE 

 
This Bylaw may be cited for all purposes as Cultus Lake Park Parking and Traffic Regulations 
Bylaw No. 1154, 2019 Amendment Bylaw No. 1169, 2020 
 

2. AMENDMENTS 
 
Cultus Lake Park Parking and Traffic Regulations Bylaw No. 1154, 2019 is amended as follows: 

 
2.1 Adding to section 2.2 DEFINITIONS OF TERMS: 
 

“To Park or park” means to bring a vehicle or recreational vehicle to a stop and leave it 
unoccupied. 

 
“Public Areas” means any street, laneway, avenue, way, drive, boulevard, sidewalk, 
driveway, beaches, wharves, school ground, or such premises as the Board may from 
time to time designate 

 
 “Stand” means a vehicle that is stopped and occupied. 
 

“Store” means to park on more than three (3) days in a calendar month or for a period of 
time exceeding 72 hours. 

 
 “Trailer” means an unpowered vehicle towed by another. 
 
 

071



 

 
 
2.2 Remove and replace section 11 with: 

 
11.   PARKING IN PUBLIC AREAS AND LEASED LOTS 
 
 11.1 No person will park any vehicle, recreational vehicle or trailer without 

displaying valid insurance, be it motorized or non-motorized, within the 
public areas.  

 
 11.2 (a) No person will park a recreational vehicle or trailer, regardless of 

whether the trailer is attached to a towing vehicle, unless it can be 
completely contained within the lease lot.  

 
  (b) Concessions will be made for seasonal maintenance, cleaning, 

loading and/or unloading of recreational vehicles and boats on 
trailers (hitched or unhitched to a vehicle) to a maximum of 72 
hours. 

 
 11.3 No person will store any vehicle, recreational vehicle or trailer, regardless 

of whether the trailer is attached to a towing vehicle, within the residential 
overflow parking area along Sunnyside Boulevard. 

 
 11.4  No person will park any vehicle with a posed G.V.W Exceeding 3700 KG, 

or having an overall length, of more than 7 meters within the Park. 
 

2.3 Changing Schedule A to read: 
 
 Summer Rates: 

• $3.50 per hour (max. 2 hours) or $12 per day, Monday through Thursday. 
 

3. EFFECTIVE DATE 

 READ A FIRST TIME this 19 day of FEBRUARY, 2020 
 
 READ A SECOND TIME this 19 day of FEBRUARY, 2020 
 
 READ A THIRD TIME this 19 day of FEBRUARY, 2020 
 
 ADOPTED this XX day of XXXXX, 20XX 

 
 
 

___________________________   ____________________________ 
Joe Lamb, Chair     Bonny Bryant  
Cultus Lake Park Board    Chief Administrative Officer 
 
 

 
 
 
 

072



 

    
 
I HEREBY CERTIFY the foregoing to be a true 
and correct copy of Cultus Lake Park Parking  
and Traffic Regulations Bylaw No. 1154, 2019  
Amendment Bylaw No. 1169, 2020 
 
 
____________________________ 
Chief Administrative Officer 

073



074



 

 Cultus Lake Park  
MANAGEMENT OF PUBLIC AREAS BYLAW NO. 1146, 2019 

Amendment Bylaw No. 1170, 2020 
A Bylaw to amend Cultus Lake Park Management of Public Areas Bylaw No. 1146, 2019. 

______________________________________________________________ 

Section 12 of the Cultus Lake Park Act (1932 and Amendments) enables the Cultus Lake Park Board 
to adopt Bylaws, and Section 9.2 (1) provides that Section 220 – Enforcement Powers of the 
Community Charter apply to the enforcement of the bylaws of the Board, and Section 261 – Payment 
of Fines and Other Penalties to Municipality under the Community Charter provides that fines and 
other penalties imposed and collected under or because of a Cultus Lake Park bylaw must be paid to 
the Park.   
 
The Board for Cultus Lake Park did enact a bylaw cited as Cultus Lake Park Management of Public 
Areas Bylaw No. 1146, 2019; 
 
The Board for Cultus Lake Park deems it advisable to amend said bylaw;  
 
The Board for Cultus Lake Park, in open meeting assembled, enacts as follows: 
1. TITLE 

 
This Bylaw may be cited for all purposes as “Cultus Lake Park Management of Public Areas Bylaw 
No. 1146, 2019 Amendment Bylaw No. 1170, 2020”. 
 

2. AMENDMENTS 
 

Cultus Lake Park Management of Public Areas Bylaw No. 1146, 2019 is amended as follows: 
 
2.1 Adding to section 2.2 DEFINITIONS OF TERMS: 
 

“Natural Park Feature” means a tree, shrub, herb, flower, grass, turf or other plant and 
all soil, sand, silt, gravel, rock, mineral, wood, fallen timber, or other natural resource within 
the Park. 

 
2.2 Adding section: 
 
 3.16 No person will cut, trim, dig up, excavate, deface, remove, damage, possess, or in 

any way injure any Natural Park Feature without prior written permission or permit 
issued by the CAO or designate. 

 
 
  

 
 

 

075



 

 
3. EFFECTIVE DATE 

 READ A FIRST TIME this 15 day of JANUARY, 2020 
 
 READ A SECOND TIME this 15 day of JANUARY, 2020 
 
 READ A THIRD TIME this 15 day of JANUARY, 2020 
 
 ADOPTED this XX day of XXXXX, 20XX 

 
 
 

___________________________   ____________________________ 
Joe Lamb, Chair     Bonny Bryant  
Cultus Lake Park Board    Chief Administrative Officer 
 
 
 
 
 
    
 
I HEREBY CERTIFY the foregoing to be a true 
and correct copy of Cultus Lake Park Management  
of Public Areas Bylaw No. 1146, 2019 Amendment  
Bylaw No. 1170, 2020 
 
 
____________________________ 
Chief Administrative Officer 

076



(?§wwto/
Stated/ S? c^>iesewe'

Cultus Lake Park

BYLAW NOTICE ENFORCEMENT BYLAW NO 1140,2019

Amendment Bylaw No. 1171, 2020

A Bylaw to amend Cultus Lake Park Bylaw Notice Enforcement Bylaw No. 1140, 2019

Section 12 of the Cultus Lake Park Act (1932 and Amendments) enables the Cultus Lake Park Board
to adopt Bylaws, and Section 9.2 (1) provides that Section 220 - Enforcement Powers of the
Community Charter apply to the enforcement of the bylaws of the Board, and Section 261 - Payment
of Fines and Other Penalties to Municipality under the Community Charter provides that fines and
other penalties imposed and collected under or because ofaCultus Lake Park bylaw must be paid to
the Park.

The Board for Cultus Lake Park did enact a bylaw cited as Cultus Lake Park Bylaw Notice Enforcement
Bylaw No. 1140,2019.

The Cultus Lake Park Board deems it advisable to amend said Bylaw.

The Cultus Lake Park Board in open meeting assembled, enacts as follows:

1. TITLE

This Bylaw may be cited as "Cultus Lake Park Bylaw Notice Enforcement Bylaw No. 1140, 2019,
Amendment Bylaw 1171,2020."

2. AMENDMENTS

Cultus Lake Park Bylaw Notice Enforcement Bylaw No. 1140, 2019 is amended as follows:

2.1 Adding section:

5.4 Leaseholder Bylaw Fines

(a) If the fine for a Bylaw contravention is not paid in full before the 31st of
December in the year received, on written notice to the leaseholder, the
amount will be added to and form part of the lease fees on the leased lot as
fees in arrears.

(b) Where there are arrears outstanding, payments will be applied first to
arrears, then to current charges.

(c) The CAO will not approve any lease transfers for any leased lot until all
fees and fines have been paid in full.

Page 1 of 2
077



2.2 That Schedules A-2, A-3, A-4, A-6, A-8, A-9, A-10, A-11, A-12, A-13 and A-14

attached to and forming part of this bylaw replace the current corresponding
schedules.

3. EFFECTIVE DATE

This Bylaw will come into force and effect upon its adoption.

READ A FIRST TIME this 15th day of JANUARY. 2020

READ A SECOND TIME this 15th day of JANUARY, 2020

READ A THIRD TIME this 15th day of JANUARY, 2020

RESCINDED THIRD READING on this day 19th OF FEBRUARY, 2020

READ A THRID TIME AS AMENDED on this day 19th of FEBRUARY, 2020.

ADOPTED this XX day of XXXXX, 20XX

Joe Lamb, Chair Bonny Bryant
Cultus Lake Park Board Chief Administrative Officer

I HEREBY CERTIFY the foregoing to be a true
and correct copy of Cultus Lake Park Bylaw
Notice Enforcement Bylaw No. 1140, 2019,
Amendment Bylaw No. 1171,2020

Chief Administrative Officer

Page 2 of 2
078



Cultus Lake Park Bylaw Notice Enforcement Bylaw No. 1140, 2019, Amendment Bylaw 1157, 2019

Schedule A-2 - Cultus Lake Park Animal Control and Regulations

Bylaw No. 1142, 2019

Bylaw
Notice
Bylaw

Citation

Cultus Lake
Park Animal
Control and
Regulations

Bylaw No.
1142, 2019

Section

3.5

3.6

3.7

4.6

4.7

4.8

4.9

4.10

4.24

4.25

4.26

4.28 (a)

4.28 (b)

4.28 (c)

4.28 (d)

4.30

Description

Excessive Pets

Keeping of unauthorized animals or reptiles

Feeding Wildlife

Unlicensed dog(s)

Unleashed dog(s)

Dog(s) on wharf or beach

Failing to clean up after dog(s)

Dog(s) running at large

Dog(s) barking/howling

Operating a Kennel

Removal of Dog from Impound

Aggressive Dog not secured

Aggressive Dog running at large

Aggressive Dog not muzzled

Aggressive Dog notmicrochipped

Aggressive/vicjous dog in the Park

A1
Penalty

$100

$500

100

$200

$100

$100

$100

$100

$200

$500

$200

$500

$500

$500

$500

$500

A2
Early

Payment
Penalty

$80

$450

80

$175

$80

$80

$80

$80

$175

$450

$175

$450

$450

$450

$450

$450

A3
Late

Payment
Penalty

$120

$550

120

$225

$120

$120

$120

$120

$225

$550

$225

$550

$550

$550

$550

$550

M
Compliance
Agreement
Available

No

No

No

No

No

No

No

No

No

No

No

No

No

No

No

No

Page 2 of 27

079



Cultus Lake Park Bylaw Notice Enforcement Bylaw No. 1140, 2019, Amendment Bylaw 1157, 2019

Schedule A-3 - Cultus Lake Park Boating and Foreshore

Bylaw No. 1143, 2019

Bylaw
Notice
Bylaw

Citation

Cultus Lake
Park

Boating and
Foreshore

Regulations
Byfaw No.

1143, 2019

Section

3.2 (a)

3.2 (a) (i)

3.2 (a) (ii)

3.2 (a) (iii)

3.2 (b)

3.2 (c)

3.2 (d)

3.2 (e)

3.2 (f)

3.2 (g)

3.3 (a)

3.3 (b)

3.3 (f)

3.3 (h)

3.3 (h)

3.30)

Description

Operate boat without muffling device

Operate boat with dry stacks/headers

Operate boat with water injected headers

Operate boat which disturbs others

Motorboat within swim areas

Boats moored to public wharves

Operate a motorboat over 5 km

Prohibited discharge

Fueling from public boat launch

Fueling from public wharves during prohibited times

Houseboats moorect/anchored within the foreshore

Boat Itfts/whan/es installed without permission

Non-complying buoy in the foreshore

Unacceptable apparatus moored to a buoy

More than one apparatus moored to a buoy

Use of unacceptable anchors

A1
Penalty

$500

$500

$500

$500

$200

$200

$300

$500

$200

$100

$500

$500

$500

$250

$250

$200

A2
Early

Payment
Penalty

$450

$450

$450

$450

$175

$175

$265

$450

$175

$80

$450

$450

$450

$220

$220

$175

A3
Late

Payment
Penalty

$550

$550

$550

$550

$225

$225

$335

$550

$225

$120

$550

$550

$550

$280

$280

$225

A4
Compliance
Agreement
Available

No

No

No

No

No

No

No

No

No

No

No

No

No

No

No

No

Page 3 of 27

080



Cultus Lake Park Bylaw Notice Enforcement Bylaw No. 1140, 2019, Amendment Bylaw 1157, 2019

Cultus Lake
Park

Boating and
Foreshore

Regulations
Bylaw No.

1143, 2019

3.3 (o)

3.3 (q)

3.3 (s)

3.3 (t)

3.3 (u)

3.3 (v)

3.4 (a)

3.4 (b)

3.4 (c)

3.4 (d)

Failure to provide insurance for swim rafts

No overnight occupancy in the foreshore

Failure to affix buoy sticker before July 1st

Failure to legibty and permanently display R, S or NR
number on buoy

Replacing or relocating a buoy, anchor, boat Irft or
mooring dewce without authorization

Failure to sign properly when two regisfrants on
moorage

Boat moorage in swim area

Mooring a boat to non-compliant buoy

Store boat on Park property overnight

Boats chained or tethered to any tree

$200

$500

$100

$100

$500

$100

$500

$500

$250

$250

$175

$450

$80

$80

$450

$75

$450

$450

$220

$220

$225

$550

$120

$120

$550

$125

$550

$550

$280

$280

No

No

No

No

No

No

No

No

No

No

Page 4 of 27

081



Cultus Lake Park Bylaw Notice Enforcement Bylaw No. 1140, 2019, Amendment Bylaw 1157, 2019

Schedule A-4 - Cultus Lake Park Burning Conditions, Restrictions and Fire Ban

Bylaw No. 1144, 2019

Bylaw
Notice
Bylaw

Citation

Cultus Lake
Park

Burning
Conditions,
Restrictions

and Fire
Ban Bylaw
No. 1144,

2019

Section

3.1

3.1

3.1

3.1

3.2

3.3

3.4

3.5

3.6

3.7

3.8

3.9

3.11 (b)

Description

Fire not in designated areas.

Fire not in acceptable container

Fires left unattended

Burning of other materials

Use of non-CSA approved gas appliances

Use of smoker units within the Park

Burning which causes a nuisance

Fire exceeds allowable limits

Use of Propane barbeques not permitted

Fire in public area without CAO permission

Use of propane unit on wharves/beach

Use of charcoal/coal/briquettes in public areas

Use of open flame during a fire ban

A1
Penalty

$500

$500

$500

$100

$500

$250

$250

$250

$500

$500

$500

$500

$500

A2
Early

Payment
Penalty

$450

$450

$450

$80

$450

$220

$220

$220

$450

$450

$450

$450

$450

A3
Late

Payment
Penalty

$550

$550

$550

$120

$550

$280

$280

$280

$550

$550

$550

$550

$550

A4
Compliance
Agreement
Available

No

No

No

No

No

No

No

No

No

No

No

No

No

Page 5 of 27

082



Cultus Lake Park Bylaw Notice Enforcement Bylaw No. 1140, 2019, Amendment Bylaw 1157, 2019

Schedule A-6 -Cultus Lake Park Management of Public Areas

Bylaw No. 1146, 2019

Bylaw Notice
Bylaw

Citation

Culttis Lake
Park

Management
of Public

Areas Bylaw
No. 1146,

2019

Section

3.1

3.2

3.3

3.4

3.5

3.6

3.7

3.8

3.9

3.12

3.13

3.14

3.15

3.16

Description

Use fertilizers/pesticides/herbicides in public
areas

Mow grass in public area

Prohibited use of beaches/wharves/playg rounds

Prohibited use of parking lots when closed

Use of closed public areas

Removal from garbage/recycling receptacle

Consume/possess open liquor

Operation of drone

Place/occupy temp accommodation

Damage to tree in the Park

Damage any infrastructure in public areas

Advertising in public areas

Camping in public areas

Alter or injure a Natural Park Feature without
permission or valid permit

A1
Penalty

$100

$100

$100

$100

$200

$100

$250

$100

$250

$500

$500

$500

$500

$500

A2
Early

Payment
Penalty

$80

$80

$80

$80

$175

$80

$220

$80

$220

$450

$450

$450

$450

$450

A3
Late

Payment
Penalty

$120

$120

$120

$120

$225

$120

$280

$120

$280

$550

$550

$550

$550

$550

A4
Compliance
Agreement
Available

No

No

No

No

No

No

No

No

No

No

No

No

No

No

Page 7 of 27

083



Cultus Lake Park Bylaw Notice Enforcement Bylaw No. 1140,2019, Amendment Bylaw 1157,2019

Schedule A-8 -Cultus Lake Park No Smoking

Bylaw No. 1148, 2019

Bylaw
Notice
Bylaw

Citation

Cultus Lake
Park No

Smoking
Bylaw No.

1148, 2019

Section

3.

Description

Smoking in prohibited areas

A1
Penalty

$200

A2
Early

Payment
Penalty

$175

A3
Late

Payment
Penalty

$225

A4
Compliance
Agreement
Available

No

Page 10 of 27

084



Cultus Lake Park Bylaw Notice Enforcement Bylaw No. 1140,2019, Amendment Bylaw 1157, 2019

Schedule A-9 - Cultus Lake Park Property Maintenance

Bylaw No. 1149, 2019

Bylaw Notice
Bylaw

Citation

Cuftus Lake
Park Property
Maintenance

Bylaw No.
1149,2019

Section

3.1 (a)

3.1 (b)

3.1 (c)

3.1 (d)

3.1 (e)

3.1 (f)

3.1 (g)

3.2

3.3

3.4 (a)

3.4 (b)

3.4 (c)

3.4 (d)

3.5

3.6

Description

Permit rubbish, to collect

Rubbish to overflow from container

Leased lot unsightly

Permit dead landscaping/vegetation

Infestation of insects orvermin

Accumulation of construction waste

Accumulation of motor vehicle or parts

Vacant building in disrepair.

Place graffiti on any structure

Permit boulevard to become untidy

Permit the accumulation of weeds

Accumulation of hazardous objects

Permit landscaping to obstruct site lines

Permit garden waste on public area

Receptacles and/or bins not kept entirely on
leased lot

At
Penalty

$500

$500

$500

$200

$500

$500

$500

$500

$500

$500

$200

$500

$200

$500

$100

A2
Early

Payment
Penalty

$450

$450

$450

$175

$450

$450

$450

$450

$450

$450

$175

$450

$175

$450

$80

A3
Late

Payment
Penalty

$550

$550

$550

$225

$550

$550

$550

$550

$550

$550

$225

$550

$225

$550

$120

A4
Compliance
Agreement
Available

No

No

No

No

No

No

No

No

No

No

No

No

No

No

No

Page 11 of 27

085



Cultus Lake Park Bylaw Notice Enforcement Bylaw No, 1140, 2019, Amendment Bylaw 1157,2019

Cultus Lake
Park Property
Maintenance

Bylaw No.
1149, 2019

3.7

3.7

3.8

3.9

3.10

3.11

Receptacles and/or bins placed outside of
designated time

Receptacles and/or bins not returned to lease lot
on same day

Receptacles and/or bins not stored in a safe,
sanitary and inoffensh/e manner

(Wild and domestic animal attractancies) not
stored properly

Garbage not cleaned up within two hours of
notification

Compostable substances not stored in a safe,
sanitary and jnoffensive manner

$100

$100

$300

$300

$300

$300

$80

$80

$235

$235

$235

$235

$120

$120

$365

$365

$365

$365

No

No

No

No

No

No

Page 12 of 27

086



Cuitus Lake Park Byiaw Notice Enforcement Bylaw No. 1140, 2019, Amendment Bylaw 1157, 2019

Schedule A-10 -Cultus Lake Park Special Event

Bylaw No. 1150, 2019

Bylaw
Notice
Bylaw

Citation

Cultus Lake
Park

Special
Event

Bylaw No.
1150.2019

Section

3.2

6.5

6.7

6.9

6.17

6.19

6.21

6.23

6.26

7.3

7.4

7.5

7.6

7.7

7.8

Description

Failure to obtain Permit

Improper clean up after a 48 hours timeframe

Unapproved use of generator

Unapproved event vehicle parking

Discharge of any waste or water on Cultus Lake
Park property by Food vendor

Unapproved wedding ceremonies

Unapproved filming

Unapproved additional services

Failure to display Special Event Permit

Fasten anything without permission

Construct shelter without approval

Unapproved posting of advertisements

Distribution of printed material unless approved

Sell/advertise food/drink or without permission

Failure to Park in designated parking areas

A1
Penalty

$500

$100

$100

$100

$200

$500

$500

$200

$100

$100

$100

$100

$100

$100

$100

A2
Early

Payment
Penalty

$450

$80

$80

$80

$175

$450

$450

$175

$80

$80

$80

$80

$80

$80

$80

A3
Late

Payment
Penalty

$550

$120

$120

$120

$225

$550

$550

$225

$120

$120

$120

$120

$120

$120

$120

A4
Compliance
Agreement
Available

No

No

No

No

No

No

No

No

No

No

No

No

No

No

No

Page 13 of 27

087



CulEus Lake Park Bylaw Notice Enforcement Bylaw No. 1140, 2019, Amendment Bylaw 1157, 2019

7.9 Consumption of alcohol outside designated licensed
areas

$250 $220 $280 No

Page 14 of 27

088



Cultus Lake Park Bylaw Notice Enforcement Bylaw No. 1140,2019, Amendment Bylaw 1157, 2019

Schedule A-11 -Cultus Lake Park Sunnyside Campground

Bylaw No-1151, 2019

Bylaw Notice
Bylaw

Citation

Cultus Lake
Park

Sunnyside
Campground

Bylaw A/o.
1151.2019

Section

4.2 (a)

4.2 (b)

4.2 (c)

4.3

4.4(3)0)

4.4 (a) (ii)

4.4 (a) (iii)

4.4 (a) (iv)

4.4 (a) (v)

4.5

4.6 (a)

4.6 (b)

4.6 (c)

Description

Make/cause noise which disturbs

Noise from campsite which disturbs

Noise between 11:00 pm and 7:00 am

Noise from unapproved public address or sound
system.

Tire noise from motor vehicle

Noise from a motor vehicle

Amplified noise from a vehicle

Vehicle alarm exceeding (3) minutes

Noise from a vehicle hom

Vehicle to idle for more than (3) minutes.

Amplified noise permitted by registered camper
which disturbs

Amplified noise which disturbs others

Dog(s) barking/howling

A1
Penalty

$500

$500

$500

$500

$500

$500

$500

$500

$500

$500

$500

$500

$200

A2
Early

Payment
Penalty

$450

$450

$450

$450

$450

$450

$450

$450

$450

$450

$450

$450

$175

A3
Late

Payment
Penalty

$550

$550

$550

$550

$550

$550

$550

$550

$550

$550

$550

$550

$225

A4
Compliance
Agreement
Available

No

No

No

No

No

No

No

No

No

No

No

No

No

Page 15 of 27

089



Cultus Lake Park Bylaw Notice Enforcement Bylaw No. 1140,2019, Amendment Bylaw 1157, 2019

Cuftus Lake
Park

Sunnyside
Campground

Byfaw No.
1151, 2019

4.6 (d)

4.6 (e)

5.2

5.3

5.4

6.2

6.6

7.1

7.2

7.3

8.1

8.2

8.3

8.4

8.5

8.6

8.7

8.8

8.9

Prohibited operating of lawn equipment

Creating a nuisance by fighting

Day visitors past 11 :00 pm

Overnight visitors past 11 :00 pm

Entry by visitors after 10:00 pm

Campsite exceeds 4 adults per

Belligerent or disrespectful behavior

Operation of drone

Persons under 18 not accompanied by adult

Trespassing in the playgrounds after dusk

Day Visitor exceeds to adults

Exceeds overnight vehicle capacity

Prohibited parking on Beach Drive

Failure to comply with the Motor Vehicle Act

Unregistered motorcycle

Speeding

Prohibited vehicles

Failure to wear helmet

Impeding Traffic

$200

$500

$100

$100

$100

$100

$100

$100

$100

$100

$100

$100

$250

$250

$250

$250

$100

$50

$500

$175

$450

$80

$80

$80

$80

$80

$80

$80

$80

$80

$80

$220

$220

$220

$220

$80

$35

$450

$225

$550

$120

$120

$120

$120

$120

$120

$120

$120

$120

$120

$280

$280

$280

$280

$120

$65

$550

No

No

No

No

No

No

No

No

No

No

No

No

No

No

No

No

No

No

No

Page 16 of 27

090



Cultus Lake Park Bylaw Notice Enforcement Bylaw No. 1140, 2019, Amendment Bylaw 1157, 2019

Cultus Lake
Park

Sunnyside
Campground

Bylaw No.
1151, 2019

9.1

9.2

10

11.1

11.2

11.3

11.4

11.5

11.7

11.8

11.9

12.1

12.2

12.3

12.4

13.1

13.2

13.4

Open liquor in public place

Alcohol left unattended on site

Under 21 years of age occupying campsite

Unleashed dog(s)

Pets left unattended

Dog(s) repeatedly disturbing campers

Dog(s) unlicensed

Seasonal dog(s) without ID tags

Dog(s) on wharf or beach

Failure to clean-up after dog(s).

Harbouring prohibited/dangerous animals

Damage to vegetation

Damage to tree(s) by use of nails, screws or any
material

Planting Vegetation

Planter/Pot outside property pins

Lights on during prohibited times

Air conditioner violation.

Failure to display fridge deca!

$250

$250

$100

$100

$100

$200

$200

$200

$100

$100

$500

$500

$100

$200

$100

$100

$100

$50

$220

$220

$80

$80

$80

$175

$175

$175

$80

$80

$450

$450

$80

$175

$80

$80

$80

$35

$280

$280

$120

$120

$120

$225

$225

$225

$120

$120

$550

$550

$120

$225

$120

$120

$120

$65

No

No

No

No

No

No

No

No

No

No

No

No

No

No

No

No

No

No

Page 17 of 27

091



Cultus Lake Park Bylaw Notice Enforcement Bylaw No. 1140,2019, Amendment Bylaw 1157, 2019

Cuttus Lake
Park

Sunnyside
Campground

Bylaw No.
1151,2019

13.5

13.6

13.7

13.8

14.1

14.2

14.3

15

17.1

17.1

17.1

17.3

17.4

17.5

17.6

17.7

17.9

17.10

Use of Freezers, electric ranges or generators.

Tampering/Abuse of electrical

Adding Breaker or Breaker Box

Blocking access to Breaker Box

Removal of items from receptacle

Solicit recycling material

Deposit or discard propane bottles

Unsightly Campsite

Wood fires not on a registered site

Fires not contained

Burning of other materials

Use of a Smoker unit

Fire exceeds allowable limits.

Use of propane barbeques/natural gas un'rts on
wharves/beach

Use ofcharcoal/coal/briquettes

Use ofcampfires outside hours

Fires left unattended

Burning Prohibited Materials

$100

$250

$500

$250

$100

$100

$100

$500

$500

$100

$250

$250

$500

$500

$100

$500

$500

$80

$220

$450

$220

$80

$80

$80

$450

$450

$80

$220

$220

$450

$450

$80

$450

$450

$120

$280

$550

$280

$120

$120

$120

$550

$550

$120

$280

$280

$550

$550

$120

$550

$550

No

No

No

No

No

No

No

No

No

No

No

No

No

No

No

No

No

Page 18 of 27

092



Cultus Lake Park Bylaw Notice Enforcement Bylaw No. 1140,2019, Amendment Bylaw 1157, 2019

Cultus Lake
Park

Sunnyside
Campground

Bylaw No.
1151,2019

17.11

17.12

19.1 (a)

19.2 (a)

19.2 (b)

19.3 (a)

19.3 ©

19.3 (d)

19.3 (f)

19.3 (g)

20.1

20.3

20.4

20.5

20.5

20.6

20.6

20.6 (a)

Burning during a Fire Ban

Use of barbeque and charcoal/coal units on
wharves/beach

Subletting or assignment of seasonal sites

Too many units on seasonal site

Exceeding number of tents

Unauthorized use of Vehicle parking passes

Unauthorized use of seasonal parking passes

Unauthorized parking in additional stalls

Passes not affixed to vehicle

Passes affixed to unregistered vehicle

Site alternation without approval

Failure to remove deck at end of season

Shed & Utility Trailers exceed size/number

Tarps secured to frees that harms/damages

Use of Orange tarps on seasonal sites

Fencing without approval

Fencing contrary to the Bylaw provisions

Fencing outside property fines

$500

$500

$500

$100

$100

$250

$250

$250

$100

$250

$250

$250

$100

$250

$100

$-100

$100

$100

$450

$450

$450

$80

$80

$220

$220

$220

$80

$220

$220

$220

$80

$220

$80

$80

$80

$80

$550

$550

$550

$120

$120

$280

$280

$280

$120

$280

$280

$280

$120

$280

$120

$120

$120

$120

No

No

No

No

No

No

No

No

No

No

No

No

No

No

No

No

No

No

Page 19 of 27

093



Cultus Lake Park Bylaw Notice Enforcement Bylaw No. 1140, 2019, Amendment Bylaw 1157,2019

Cultus Lake
Park

Sunnyside
Campground

Bylaw No.
1151, 2019

20.6 (b)

20.6 (d)

20.6 (e)

20.7

20.8

20.9

20.9

20.10

20.12

21.

22.

20.14

23.

23.1 (a)

23.1 (c)

Use of picket fencing

Obstructing view

Use of solid fence

Portable structures not securely anchored

Unapproved landscape/construction materials

More than one picnic table per site

Damage or alterations made to picnic table

Not meeting BC Building Code for deck

Unapproved structure on campsite

Satellite dish installed contrary to provisions

Failure to comply with Departure Procedures

Interference with campground operations

Failure to comply with eviction

Failure to remove belongings within 48 hours

Overnight campers' failure to remove
belongings immediately

$100

$100

$100

$100

$250

$100

$300

$300

$300

$100

$100

$300

$500

$250

$250

$80

$80

$80

$80

$220

$80

$265

$265

$265

$80

$80

$265

$450

$220

$220

$120

$120

$120

$120

$280

$120

$335

$335

$335

$120

$120

$335

$550

$280

$280

No

No

No

No

No

No

No

No

No

No

No

No

No

No

No

Page 20 of 27

094



Cultus Lake Park Bylaw Notice Enforcement Bylaw No. 1140, 2019, Amendment Bylaw 1157, 2019

Schedule A-12 -Cultus Lake Park - The Cabins at Cultus Lake Park

Bylaw No. 1152, 2019

Bylaw
Notice
Bylaw

Citation

Cultus Lake
Park - The
Cabins at

Cuttus Lake
Park Bylaw

No. 1152,
2019

Section

4.2 a)

4.2 b)

4.2 c)

4.3 (a)

4.4 (a) (i)

4.4 (a) (ii)

4.4 (a) (iii)

4.4 (a) (iv)

4.4 (a) (v)

4.5 (a)

4.6 (a)

4.6 (b)

4.6 (c)

4.6 (d)

Description

Mafce/cause noise which disturbs.

Noise from cabin which disturbs

Noise between 11:00 pm and 7:00 am

Noise from public address or sound system

Tire noise from motor vehicle

Noise from a motor vehicle

Amplified noise from a vehicle

Vehicle alarm exceeding (3) minutes

Noise from a vehicle horn

Vehicle to idle for more than (3) minutes

Amplified noise which disturbs

Person disturbs others

Dog(s) barking/howling

Nuisance by fighting

A1
Penalty

$500

$500

$500

$500

$500

$500

$500

$500

$500

$500

$500

$500

$200

$500

A2
Early

Payment
Penalty

$450

$450

$450

$450

$450

$450

$450

$450

$450

$450

$450

$450

$175

$450

A3
Late

Payment
Penalty

$550

$550

$550

$550

$550

$550

$550

$550

$550

$550

$550

$550

$225

$550

A4
Compliance
Agreement
Available

No

No

No

No

No

No

No

No

No

No

No

No

No

No

Page 21 of 27

095



Cuitus Lake Park Bylaw Notice Enforcement Bylaw No. 1140, 2019, Amendment Bylaw 1157, 2019

Cultus Lake
Park - The
Cabins at

Cultus Lake
Park Bylaw

No. 1152.
2019

5.1

5.5

6.1

6.2

6.3

7.1

7.2

7.3

7.5

7.6

8.1

8.2

6.3

8.5

8.6

9.2

10.1

10.2

Unregistered vehicle

Belligerent or disrespectful behaviour

Operation of drone at the cabins.

Person under 18 not accompanied by adult

Use of common areas after dusk

RV or camperized van parking at the cabins

Unlicensed vehicle

Uncompliant vehicle

Failure to display Sunnyside Parking Permit

Vehicles impede traffic flow

Underage occupant in cabin without registered
guest 22 years and older.

Unaccompanied underage occupant

Over the occupancy limit

Smoking in prohibited areas

Erection of tents

Consume/possess open liquor

Pet over height

More than one (1) pet per cabin

$150

$100

$100

$100

$100

$100

$200

$100

$100

$100

$100

$100

$100

$200

$100

$250

$100

$100

$125

$80

$80

$80

$80

$80

$175

$80

$80

$80

$80

$80

$80

$175

$80

$220

$80

$80

$175

$120

$120

$120

$120

$120

$225

$120

$120

$120

$120

$120

$120

$225

$120

$280

$120

$120

No

No

No

No

No

No

No

No

No

No

No

No

No

No

No

No

No

No

Page 22 of 27

096



Cultus Lake Park Bylaw Notice Enforcement Bylaw No. 1140, 2019, Amendment Bylaw 1157, 2019

Cultus Lake
Park-The
Cabins at

Cultus Lake
Park Bylaw

No. 1152,
2019

10.3

10.4

10.5

10.6

10.7

10.8

11.1

11.2

12,1

12.2

13.1

13.3

13.4

13.5

13.6

13.7

13.8

Unleashed dog(s)

Unattended Pets

Pets not confined

Pets not declared

Failure to clean up after dog(s)

Harboring prohibited and dangerous animals

Cutting, damaging planfs/trees

Damage to tree(s)

Lights on during prohibited times

Air conditioner on

Use of campfires outside the hours permitted

Use of a smoKerunit

Fire exceed allowable limits

Use of charcoal, coal or briquettes

Fires left unattended

Burning of other materials

Campfire during a fire ban

$100

$100

$100

$100

$100

$500

$500

$100

$100

$100

$100

$250

$250

$100

$500

$100

$500

$80

$80

$80

$80

$80

$450

$450

$80

$80

$80

$80

$220

$220

$80

$450

$80

$450

$120

$120

$120

$120

$120

$550

$550

$120

$120

$120

$120

$280

$280

$120

$550

$120

$550

No

No

No

No

No

No

No

No

No

No

No

No

No

No

No

No

No

Page 23 of 27

097



Cultus Lake Park Bylaw Notice Enforcement Bylaw No, 1140, 2019, Amendment Bylaw 1157,2019

Schedule A-13 -Cultus Lake Park Tree and Plant

Bylaw No. 1153, 2019

Bylaw
Notice
Bylaw

Citation

Cuttus Lake
Park Tree
and Plant
Bylaw No.

1153, 2019

Section

3.8

3.11

4,5

4,6

4.10

4,10

4.14

Description

Failure to display permit

Removal of debris not completed

Damage to trees

Topping of trees without Arborist

Removal or damage of a tree without permission

Removal or damage of a tree after a denied
application

Failure to obtain a valid building permit

At
Penalty

$100

$100

$500

$500

$500

$500

$200

A2
Early

Payment
Penalty

$80

$80

$450

$450

$450

$450

$175

A3
Late

Payment
Penalty

$120

$120

$550

$550

$550

$550

$225

A4
Compliance
Agreement
Available

No

No

No

No

No

No

No

Page 24 of 27

098



Schedule A-14 "Cultus Lake Park Parking and Traffic Regulations

Bylaw No. 1154, 2019

Bylaw
Notice
Bylaw

Citation

Cultus Lake
Park

Parking and
Traffic

Regulations
Bylaw No.

1154. 2019

Section

5

7.1

7.2

7,3

7.4

7.5

7.5

8.1

8.2

9.5

10

11.1

Description

Parking overtime limit

Parking in reserved space

Parking outside designated area

Parking in designated area

Parking without displayed permit

Counterfeit permit

Expired permit

Parking/stopplng in prohibited area

Display unauthorized sign

Tamper with meter

Parking away from curb

Failure to display valid vehicle, RV or trailer

insurance within the public areas

A1
Penalty

$100

$200

$100

$100

$100

$500

$100

$100

$100

$500

$100

$300

A2
Early

Payment
Penalty

$80

$175

$80

$80

$80

$450

$80

$80

$80

$450

$80

$265

A3
Late

Payment
Penalty

$120

$225

$120

$120

$120

$550

$120

$120

$120

$550

$120

$335

A4
Compliance

Agreement

Available

No

No

No

No

No

No

No

No

No

No

No

No

099



Cultus Lake
Park

Parking and
Traffic

Regulations
Bylaw No.

1154, 2019

11.2(a)

11.3

11.4

12.1

12.2

12.3 (b)

12.4

12.5

12.6

12.7

12,8

12.9

12.10

12.11

12.13

Parking vehicle, RV or trailer outside leased [ot

Storing vehicle, RV or trailer within overflow parking

area (Sunnyside Boulevard)

G.V.W exceeding 3700 KG or length of 7 meters

long within the Park

Ignoring authorized personnel

Speeding

Fail to stop

Use outside of designated area

Travel contrary to traffic control device

Obstruct traffic

Disturb by public address system

Noise from motor vehicle

Operate golf cart

Cross at undesignated area

Park over delignated parking lines

Park on roadway to Parking Lot D

$500

$500

$200

$500

$100

$100

$200

$200

$200

$500

$500

$100

$100

$100

$100

$450

$450

$175

$450

$80

$80

$175

$175

$175

$450

$450

$80

$80

$80

$80

$550

$550

$225

$550

$120

$120

$225

$225

$225

$550

$550

$120

$120

$120

$120

No

No

No

No

No

No

No

No

No

No

No

No

No

No

No

100



DATE:

SUBMITTED BY:

SUBJECT:

^uvs'lo/
c^>wfeci/ <Sr c^)tesewe'

CULTUS LAKE PARK

REPORT/RECOMMENDATION TO BOARD

April 15,2020 FILE: 0550

Jacquie Spencer,
Manager of Visitor Services, Accommodations & Bylaw Enforcement

Public Feedback Regarding Short-Term Rentals, Bed & Breakfasts, Secondary
Suites and Home-Based Businesses

PURPOSE:

To provide the Board with an overview and synopsis of the public feedback following the community
meeting regarding Short-Term Rentals, Bed and Breakfasts, Secondary Suites and Home-Based
Businesses, held on February 3, 2020.

RECOMMENDATION:

THAT the Cuftus Lake Park Board receive the Short-Term Rentals, Bed and Breakfasts, Secondary

Suites and Home-Based Businesses Community Meeting Report for information.

DISCUSSION:

The Board identified short-term rentals, secondary suites, bed and breakfast and home-based
business regulations as a strategic priority to deliver more accessible and consistent experiences for
visitors and residents of Cultus Lake Park. A consultant's report on short-term vacation rentals was
considered by the Board on August 15, 2018. A letter regarding short-term rentals, secondary suites,
bed and breakfast and home-based business regulations was sent to residents and a survey was held
from September 20, 2019 to October 4, 2019 for community feedback. The results of the survey
included: 75.21 percent in favor of properly managed and licensed Short-Term Vacation Rentals;
84.61 percent in favor of properly managed and licensed Bed and Breakfast Homes; 76.92 percent in
favor of properly managed and licensed Home-Based Businesses; and 80.17 percent in favor of
Secondary Suites.

A Community Meeting was held February 3, 2020 to gather feedback regarding short-term rentals,
secondary suites, bed and breakfast and home-based business regulations, with the results attached.

Staff have developed proposed bylaws to address Short-Term Rentals and Home-Based Businesses
for Board consideration at the April 15, 2020 regular meeting.

s:\c!pb documents\0550 board - fneet;ngs\0550-70 - reports - board meeting s\202CH03 18 2020\2020.04.15 public feedback re str bb ss hbb report.doc

101



STRATEGIC PLAN:

This report does impact the Cultus Lake Park Board's Strategic Plan Initiative by seeking to
continuously improve the customer experience.

ATTACHMENTS:

Short-Term Rentals, Bed & Breakfasts, Secondary Suites, and Home-Based Businesses Community
Meeting Report.

Prepared by: Approved for Submission to the Board by:

'7
../'

^

,/>"

./
/

^•-

c .

Jacquie Spencer Joe Lamb
Manager of Visitor Services, Accommodations Acting Chief Administrative Officer
and Bylaw Enforcement

102



f@.tVt&'t<V
^toieclt &r <^>wsewe/

Short-term Rentals, Bed & Breakfasts, Secondary Suites and Home-
based Businesses Community Meeting Report

February 28, 2020

Purpose of Report
• To provide an overview and synopsis on the outcome of the community meeting re: Short-

term Rentals, Bed & Breakfasts, Secondary Suites and Home-based Businesses held on
February 3, 2020.

Overview
Written comments have been edited for brevity and clarity, and similar comments have been
combined to avoid repetition. All efforts were made to ensure that this report contains a
comprehensive and accurate overview of the community's feedback.

Cultus Lake Park is in the process of identifying and developing a process to effectively manage
Short-term Rentals, Bed & Breakfasts, Secondary Suites and Home-based Businesses. As a
result of research undertaken on this subject matter, it was identified that there are upwards of 90
Short-term Rentals currently operating in the community with no oversight.

Communitv Enflaaement
The Cultus Lake Park Board held a community input meeting on February 3, 2020 from 6:30 - 8
p.m. at the Cultus Lake Community School. The purpose of the meeting was to engage the
community in dialogue regarding how Short-term Rentals, Bed & Breakfasts, Secondary Suites
and Home-based Businesses should be managed in the Park.

The meeting was attended by approximately 100 members of the community and four Park Board
Commissioners: Joe Lamb (Chair), Darcy Bauer, Larry Payeur and Casey Smit; Chief
Administrative Officer, Bonny Bryant; and several staff members, who provided support.

The meeting format included four "Conversation Stations." They were:
• Overview of Short-term Rentals, Bed & Breakfasts, Secondary Suites and Home-based

Businesses

• Permits/Licences/Leases
• Bylaws and Enforcement
• Input, Feedback & Ideas

The Conversation Stations provided the opportunity for one-on-one or small group dialogue
between Cultus Lake Park Board Commissioners, the Chief Administrative Officer, staff and
community members,

At each Conversation Station, community members were provided with pens and post-it notes
and were asked to write down concerns, feedback and ideas. In addition, community members
emailed Cultus Lake Park with ideas, feedback and input.

103



t@tV(S'to/
^lotecf^ Sv <^>t€sewe'

Community Feedback
There were 23 emails and 80 post-it notes with comments submitted with ideas, feedback and
input.

There was a great deal of community engagement at the community meeting and the submissions
were thoughtful and substantial.

All information collected via email and submitted at the community meeting was reviewed in order
to develop this report.

No personal or specific information provided in any of the feedback has been shared in this
document. No comment or input is attributed to any one Individual and no identifying details have
been used. Some feedback representing similar ideas has been compiled for brevity. Every
attempt has been made to ensure that all feedback has been accurately represented to the best
of the writer's ability.

The intent of this report is to provide a useful synopsis of the feedback given by the community
regarding Short-term Rentals, Bed & Breakfasts, Secondary Suites and Home-based Businesses.

There were several overarching themes that emerged from the feedback. They are:

Clear Regulations and Defined Criteria Are Required
* Park staff should evaluate each property to determine maximum occupancy based on size

ofhouse/parking.
• Limit the number of guests allowed at any one time.
• Business insurance proof should be provided to the Park Office.
• There should be a limit on the number of homes allowed as Short-term Rentals

(recommended 10%) or limit the number of Short-term Rentals on any street, then have a
waiting list.

• Rental requirement should be that a person 25 years or older must be present at rental at
all times,

• Secondary suites should meet official building codes.
• Develop a Park Code of Conduct of Behaviour - based on respect for environment,

community, individuals and safety; create standardized rules for behaviour in the Park (to
go along with house rules).

• Information on noise, garbage, smoking and other bylaws should be included In tenant
information and in contract.

• All current suites are illegal and should be fined.
• No weekend-only rentals.

• Leaseholder must know who is in each rental.
* Neighbours should be included in the application process/be informed of approved

licences/permits.
• Respect for neighbours is key.
• Renters must be clearly informed of community rules, bylaws, etc. including who to call

for issues.

• Existing Short-term Rentals, Bed & Breakfasts, Secondary Suites and Home-based
Businesses must register.

104



r@ws'(o'

• Nothing should happen to existing Short-term Rentals, Bed & Breakfasts, Secondary
Suites and Home-based Businesses.

• Having more than one of the four elements (Short-term Rental, Bed & Breakfast,
Secondary Suite and Home-based Business) in the home should be allowed/should be
done on a case-by-case basis.

• Home-based Business - homeowner only, no outside activities.

• Proper insurance must be in place.
• Building inspections are a must.
• A Bed & Breakfast should be separate from a Secondary Suite approval, if the sole

purpose of the Secondary Suite is for a Bed & Breakfast. If at a later date the use is
changed for a long-term rental, the person can then apply for the Secondary Suite through
that application process.

• No signage for Home-based Businesses.
• No customers/clients visiting home for Home-based Businesses.
• Option for entire community to use one rental agency to simplify the process.
• Cultus Lake Park should be provided with contact information for homeowner/renter and

this should be provided to security.
• A short-term rental operator meeting should be held early to discuss the previous year's

successes and challenges.

• Establish an inspection program to ensure Short-term Rentals are complying with
requirements.

• Short-term renters should be able to have visitors but not have people stay overnight.
• Pets should be at the discretion of the Short-term Rental operator.

Fees
• The Park should benefit from having Short-term Rentals.
• There should be additional dialogue with community regarding fees.
• Fees should be paid to the Park every time the home is rented (each renter).
• Consider Big White as an example for Short-term Rentals - apparently, they require

registration of all rental properties and act as an agency for rentals. (Provides standard for
renters and community and is a hub for issues and complaints. Fees for booking cover
costs.)

• Request security deposit for fines.
• Charge fees every time a new renter comes in.

• Charge fee per night ($5 Cultus Lake Park Board fee).
• Residents who do not have a Short-term Rental, Bed & Breakfast, Secondary Suite or

Home-based Business should not have to pay for costs created by these elements.
• Only Short-term Rentals run as full-time businesses (not by families supplementing their

income/covering expenses with limited rentals) should be charged fees.
• Make the permit/! ice nce a reasonable cost.

Timing is Important
• The 2020 rental season is coming up - and there is a demand for Short-term Rentals for

this coming season at Cultus Lake Park. It is crucial for renters to understand and have
time to make applications and receive permits/llcences.

105



t@tVis'to'
'tesewe'

Costs/Use of Resources
• If people rent a Cultus Lake Park home, the renters take the place of the owners - there

are no increased costs because of Short-term Rentals, Bed & Breakfasts, Secondary
Suites or Home-based Businesses.

• More Park resources are used as a result - increase in garbage, strain on sewer and

water systems, etc.

Cultus Lake Park Should Not Be Involved
• Cultus Lake Park Board continually tries to make money off residential leaseholders.
• Cultus Lake Park should have the same role as they do for long-term rentals - none.
• Chair Lamb has a conflict of interest and should recuse himself from the process.

Bylaw Enforcement Is Crucial
• There are bylaws already In place to handle all of this,
• Bylaws must be enforced - including 11 p.m. "quiet time."

• Bylaws should include how to govern "parties."
• Bylaw enforcement must be increased. (For example, first infraction - fine, second

infraction - fine doubles, third infraction - fine triples, fourth Infraction - cancel licence.)
• If three nuisance/noise complaints occur during a three-month period, an auto renew of

the option to terminate/buy out lease should occur at the next Board meeting.
• False Alarm Bylaw in Maple Ridge is a good example - $150 for the first call-out fee, $300

for the second, $600 for the third, and $1,200 for all subsequent call-outs.
• In the summer, security must go past 7 p.m.

* "Citizens on Patrol" was previously very successful in monitoring infractions and
reassuring leaseholders.

• Leaseholders should be notified of bylaw infractions immediately to allow them to hold
back money to cover cost of fine.

• In Whistler, if there is a noise complaint (even a banging door), the owner of the unit is
emailed and immediately fined.

• Fine owners the same as renters.

• Allow RCMP to decide if it requires a bylaw infraction.
• Permits/licences should be renewed annually to ensure compliance with rules/bylaws;

should be issued for the duration of ownership.
• Short-term Rentals should be permitted for a short time period; all applications get put into

a draw and only a defined number can be licensed. They are licensed for one to three
years and then another draw takes place.

• Non-compliance with rules/bylaws needs to be addressed swiftly.
• Fines to renter/homeowner for non-compliance.

• There should be a charge to the homeowner every time a Park employee has to attend to
the house because of a renter, whether there is a fine or not.

• Zero tolerance for chronic complainers might be an idea.
• Current bylaws should be enough (there are enough bylaws in place).
• There should be a way to put forward a case that does not fit within the new bylaws or

criteria. It should be reviewed on its own merit.
• A hlerarch of concerns relative to permlt/licence standards could be:

1. Occupant safety in the rental;
2. Ease of operation and administration of the regulatory system; and

106



Uws'tw
tect

3. Revenue from the system.

• A muHi-year implementation plan that addresses first year and follow-up year
requirements and any issues/concerns should be in place.

• Establish occupant safety policy — with fire response plan created by homeowner and
submitted to Cultus Lake Park.

• Implement a permit/ticence in which the obligation of the Short-term Rental operator and
the Park Board to patrol and enforce bylaws is clearly stated.

Most Rentals Are NOT a Full-time Business/Are Not There to Make Money (But to Cover
Expenses)

• Many people rent out their cabins so that they can afford them.
• Those who do rent them out to help with costs are responsible and make sure that

whoever stays there understands the rules and guidelines of the Park,
• It is Important to use data to identify the impact of Short-term Rentals (one to three or four

nights) vs. weekly (five nights and more).

Garbage
• Create a "walk-up" garbage service and require all Short-term Rentals to subscribe (Palm

Springs example).
• Make garbage pick-up weekly in June, July and August

Parking Is an Issue
* Current parking limitations and allowances should remain in effect.
• Parking is an issue for overnight guests - needs a solution.
• Open a parking lot overnight for guests.
• Motorhomes, trailers and campers at people's homes should no longer be allowed for

more than 24 hours, unless Park is notified,
» Motorhomes, trailers and campers should not be parked at forest for longer than one week.
• Parking limitations should be held to passes issued to leaseholders.
• Current bylaw for overnight parking needs to be changed.
• Put restrictions on maximum number of people (not just overnight guests) and vehicles at

one time at a property.

When Regulated, Short-term Rentals Are an Asset to a Community
• Cultus Lake Park Board should manage Short-term Rentals, Bed & Breakfasts, Secondary

Suites and Home-based Businesses.

• Homes occupied during the off-season deter crime.
• There are rarely problems with Secondary Suite long-term rentals; they become a part of

the community.

Additional Concerns/Comments
* Secondary Suites do not pay their share of costs for utilities or services.
« Every home should have a water meter for incoming and outgoing sewer and be charged

for what they use.
• What happens at the neighbour's house is important.
* Short-term Rental guests do not care about the community.
* Short-term Rentals - two to three days usually means party time (poor neighbours).

107



(@wm't(r
^wtec^ (ST ^>tcsww'

• There needs to be a way to manage "over-complaining" neighbours.
• Parties should not be allowed,
• Trailers for renters should not be allowed.
« Concerns about Short-term Rental fee for those who do a small amount of renting to cover

expenses and who take care that guests are aware of the rules - not the same as a Short-
term Rental business.

• Concerns regarding stress on infrastructure such as the sewer system.
» No further development of existing parkland for residential housing.
• It is not fair that only Short-term Rentals, Bed & Breakfasts, Secondary Suites and Home"

based Businesses are being discussed and not longer-term rentals - there are issues
there too.

• There is a big difference between renting a place in your home and being an absentee
landlord.

* No new Short-term Rental permits should be granted.
• The lack of accoLintability of Short-term Rental leaseholders is extremely concerning.
• Three comments cited recent issues with Short-term Rentals near their homes.
* Ensuring a sense of community for residences is important.
• We admire the Board's decision to take on "thorny" issues during your current mandate.

Questions
Defining Short-term Rentals, Bed & Breakfasts, Secondary Suites and Home-based
Businesses

• How are you defining each of the categories?

Economic Impact
• What is the economic impact of licensing these commercial uses?

Current Situation/Data
• How many Short-term Rentals, Bed & Breakfasts, Secondary Suites and Home-based

Businesses are there now?
* Where is the data for why we need this now - or has it always been this way?
• What were the numbers of Short-term Rentals in: a) 1980;b)1990;c) 2000; and d) 2010?
• What value do Short-term Rentals have on the local economy?
• What effect will Cultus Lake Park regulations have on the current value that Short-term

Rentals bring to the local community?
• What is the breakdown of noise complaints between Short-term Rentals, Bed & Breakfasts

and Secondary Suites compared to full/part-time residents?
• Has Cultus Lake Park received any complaints surrounding Short-term Rentals? How

many?

Benefits to Cultus Lake Park
• Is there a financial benefit to Park revenue due to overnight visitors?
• Cultus Lake Park promotes visits to the Park through partnership with Tourism Chilliwack.

Are Short-term Rentals helpful to that promotion?

108



c@tVt&'i(v
^wtectf <&' ^'wsetve'

Management of Short-term Rentals, Bed &, Breakfasts, Secondary Suites and Home-based
Businesses

• How will you monitor "additional parking" and "adequate servicing?"
• What will be the fine for failing to apply for a licence?
• Do you have the technology in place to track these licences?
• How will applications be accepted?
• Do you have the technology in place to track complaints?
» Will you be concerned about leaseholders having proper insurance in place?
• In regard to the Regional Tax that Airbnb collects in the province, have you checked to

see ifAirbnb is collecting in the Park area and where that tax is being submitted? FVRD?
• Wilt you limit the number of Short-term Rentals, Bed & Breakfasts, Secondary Suites and

Home-based Businesses?
• Do you receive reports of complaints from the RCMP in regard to infractions that these

categories are called on and are you able to document them on the leaseholder file?
• If the leaseholder uses a property manager who is licensed, will the leaseholder also need

a business licence?

Leases
• The Residential Tenancy Act says that any rental over 30 days is a long-term rental and

the Act applies. In Cultus Lake Park, since we are all ieaseholders, this would imply a sub-
lease. Do the current leases accommodate sub-leases in this regard, or will the new
Version 5 of the lease address this?

• If a tenant has an issue with a landlord, wit! Cultus Lake Park Board need to be included
in the dispute?

Occupancy
• How would occupancy be monitored? By neighbours?

Bylaws/Enforcement
• What Is the definition of a "party" for an owner or renter?
• Will bylaw enforcement be available 24/7/365 for reporting of infractions related to

complaints on Short-term Rentals?
• Noise after 11 p.m, is not supposed to be allowed, but how and when is this enforced?
• Who should a neighbour call for a noise or parking complaint, or if people are on the docks

drinking and throwing beer bottles into the lake?
• Has Cultus Lake Park already drafted the bylaws to permit and license the commercial

use on residential leaseholders' property and are now looking for input?
• Are there any other problems that the Park Board is addressing with the new bylaws?
• In the off-season, who will residents call to complain about noise, etc.

Specific to Secondary Suites
< Will stoves be allowed in Secondary Suites?

Specific to Home-based Businesses
• Will Home-based Business owners be allowed to post a sign on the exterior of their

building indicating the business service?

109



'^tvis'ta'
^totect/ 6v ^cesewe/

• Will clients be permitted to attend to a Home-based Business? If so, what about parking,
noise, odour, smoke, heat, etc.?

• Will the Home-based Business allow for the sale of products or materials?
• If the Home-based Business requires a business licence to operate in the Park - what

else is needed?

Increased Costs
• Is there data on increased garbage, parking and utilities like sewer and water due to Short-

term Rentals?
» Will Cultus Lake Park be included in the Provincial Government's speculation tax with

Short-term Rentals, etc.?

Permits/Licences
• How will you determine the licensing fee?

o How will the licensing fee be fair to those who only do weekly rentals in summer,
but have a long-term tenant for the balance of the year?

o How will you ensure that permit/licence fees are fair?
o Will a larger home (more sleeping capacity - more people, garbage, vehicles, etc.)

pay a higher fee than a small two-bedroom cottage?
o Will fees be based on the amount of days the rental property is rented out?
o Will fees be based on the percentage of rental income?
o Are fees for a Short-term Rental that operates as a Short-term Rental the same as

a home that only rents out fn a very limited way?
o Some Short-term Rentals are seasonal vs. annual -will there be a pro-rated cost?
o What is the increase in lease cost or licensing for Secondary Suites or Bed &

Breakfasts?
• If homes have already been rented for the summer, do fees apply for this year?
• If we rent for the short term (May - Sep), then what do we do if we want to rent for the off-

season (Oct - Apr)?
• If you previously had a Short-term Rental and are now renting it full time, would there be

any trouble in getting another permit for a Short-term Rental?
• If I have a Secondary Suite in my home but have no intention of renting it out. do I have

to register it?
• If I am running a Bed & Breakfast out of my Secondary Suite already, do I first need to

apply to have my Secondary Suite approved before I apply for a Bed & Breakfast permit?
• We know that there are Secondary Suites in the various neighbourhoods ~ has any

leaseholder applied for Secondary Suite or Bed & Breakfast use?
* Do we assume that carriage lane houses fall into the Short-term Rentals, Bed &

Breakfasts, Secondary Suites or Home-based Businesses categories? How many are
there currently?

• At one time, Bed & Breakfasts paid for a business licence. Is there a reference in the
bylaws regarding Bed & Breakfasts or only in Plan Cultus?

Real Estate
» Will approval for Short-term Rentals be pre-approved as a part of the sale of a

lease/home?

110



Uws'io'
^wiect' &r ^>zeswv^

Timeline
• What is the planned implementation date for the regulations?

MisceHaneous
• What happens if renters bring a boat? Where do they tie up?

Additional Comments
• There was one comment regarding Sunnyside that was not about Short-term Rentals, Bed

& Breakfasts, Secondary Suites and Home-based Businesses.
* There were seven comments regarding the format of the meeting. Five did not like the

format and two did. The comments included;
o It was hard for some meeting attendees to hear the conversations at each

Conversation Station.
o The participant wanted answers, not to provide input.
o The participant felt that materials should have been given out prior to the meeting.
o The participant prefers a Q&A format where they can hear other people's questions

and concerns.
o The participant thought the format was great and well-organfzed.
o The participant thought the meeting was well-organized.

111



112



CULTUS LAKE PARK

RECOMMENDATION TO BOARD

DATE: April15,2020 FILE: 3900

SUBMITTED BY: Jacquie Spencer
Manager of Visitor Services, Accommodations & Bylaw Enforcement

SUBJECT: Proposed Short-Term Rental Bylaw

PURPOSE:

The purpose of this report is to provide the Board with the proposed Short-Term Rental Bylaw.

RECOIVIMENDATION:

THAT the Cultus Lake Park Board give First, Second and Third readings to the Cultus Lake Park
Short-Term Rental Bylaw No. 1174, 2020.

DISCUSSION:

At the September 18, 2019 Cultus Lake Board meeting, approval was received by the Park Board to
circulate a Survey via the Cultus Lake Park website and the Park Office requesting input from the
residents regarding Short Term Vacation Rental, Home Based Business, Bed & Breakfast and
Secondary Suites.

Letters to all leaseholders were mailed out informing them of the opportunity to share their views on
these topics either by completing an online Survey Monkey or by dropping into the Park Office to
complete a paper copy. The Survey was available to complete between September 20 and October
4,2019.

At the October 16, 2019 Park Board meeting, the Cuitus Lake Park Board received the Survey results
for information. The results showed strong community support for Short Term Rental, Home Based
Business, Bed & Breakfast and Secondary Suites. Due to these results, the Park Board provided
direction to the Chief Administrative Officer to proceed with preparing procedures, policies and bylaws
regarding managing these areas.

On February 3, 2020 a Community Meeting was held to gather public input on Short-Term Rentals,
Home Based Businesses, Bed and Breakfasts and Secondary Suites. Staff have provided the results
of this meeting with a report at the March 18, 2020 regular meeting.

Bylaw Compliance and Enforcement staff will monitor online booking sites such as Airbnb to ensure
listed Cultus Lake Park properties are advertising with valid Short-Term Rental (STR) permits, as well
as monitoring residential areas for noise and parking issues.
The proposed STR fees are as follows:

113



Short-Term Rental Fee Structure

Nonrefundable Application Fee $150.00
12-month permit fee $1,000.00
1-week permit fee $125.00

This option provides leaseholders with the opportunity to operate for a select number of weeks
throughout the year. The weeks are at the leaseholder's discretion but would be required to be
identified with the Park Office at the time of permit application. Enforcement measures for the 1-week
permits would be the same to those of the 12 month permits. It is estimated that including the 1-week
permit fee may be more labour-intensive administratively, but compliance rates may be higher with a
1 week permit as a result of the opportunity for leaseholders to tailor their STR permit timelines as
they require.

Leasehold properties that operate STR's may be used differently than leasehold properties that are
occupied seasonally or full-time. Homes that are occupied seasonally or full-time may have occupants
that leave the Park for work or other business on a regular basis for work, school, or other activities.
During these times of absence, water and sewer systems are not used. For STR guests, many of
which book for week-long stays, the lake is likely the draw and therefore they will stay within the Park
for the majority of their stay. While this is beneficial to Cultus Lake Park commercial businesses, there
is also an increased strain on Park services such as water, sewer, staffing, garbage and parking. The
STR guests will use beaches, wharves, playgrounds, public washrooms, and garbage facilities. Full-
time or seasonal residents and ieaseholders may produce more consistent levels of garbage, and
only use beaches, wharves and public areas when returning from work or school. Leaseholders and
residents become accustomed to Park parking arrangements and are aware of overflow parking
procedures.

Park staff must maintain the Park beaches, wharves, washrooms, playgrounds and public spaces.
Administrative staff handle STR parking permit inquiries and other matters as they arise. The Bylaw
Compliance and Enforcement department as well as security personnel will field complaints regarding
STR's, and the RCMP may need to address issues from time to time. The cost of the impact of STR's
on the Park is considerable. Currently, the cost and resources of these operations addressing STR's
in the Park is borne by all ieaseholders. By creating an application and permit fee for STR's, these
costs will be paid by those leaseholders operating the STR's.

With regards to the proposed bylaw, section 3.2 states:

"For a Leaseholder to be eligible to apply for a Short-term Rental permit and to operate a
Short-term Rental within the Park they must be entered into the Cultus Lake Park Building Site
Lease that allows for this usage of the residence."

This is necessary as the current residential leases do not provide for this use. Upon approval of a
STR permit, the leaseholder will be required to enter into V5, Cultus Lake Park Building Site Lease.
The current fee for the new lease is $250, and any applicable filing fees, and payment will be required
at that time.

To aid the financial administration of the permit process, section 3.10 states:

"The permit will be valid for (1) year, to commence on January 1 and to be terminated on
December 31 of each year. Fees will not be prorated. "

To ensure an STR permit is provided to leasehold accounts in good standing, section 4.1 has been
included:

2 I P a g e

114



"Prior to any leaseholder applying for a Short-term Rental permit they must ensure that all
outstanding fines, fees and encumbrances are removed, via payment or compliance, from
title."

Leaseholder accountability for STR's was a high priority from the results from the Community
Meeting, so section 4.5 has been included to ensure there will always be a contact point:

"All Short-term Rental applicants must provide contact information for one (1) local contact,
other than the applicant, who is available on a 24/7 basis, during the use of Short-Term Rental
by a guest, to respond within thirty minutes to any telephone enquiries regarding the Short-
term Rental, and who have consented to the applicant to allow their contact information to be
made available to the Cuttus Lake Park staff."

STRATEGIC PLAN:

This report does impact the Cultus Lake Park Board's Strategic Plan Initiative by seeking to
continuously improve the customer experience.

Prepared by: Approved for submission to the Board by:

•I ^ ^

f.

^

Jacquie Spencer
Manager of Visitor Services
Accommodation & Bylaw Enforcement

Joe Lamb
Acting Chief Administrative Officer

3|P a g e

115



116



^Vt&ttQ^
^totscf/ &• c^&s&u<e/

Cultus Lake Park

SHORT-TERM RENTAL BYLAW

Bylaw No. 1174, 2020

A Bylaw to regulate Short-term Rentals.

Section 12 of the Cuttus Lake Park Act (1932 and Amendments) enables the Cultus Lake Park
Board to adopt Bylaws, and Section 9.2 (1) provides that Section 260 - Enforcement Powers of
the Community Charter apply to the enforcement of the Bylaws of the Board, and Section 261 -
Payment of Fines and Other Penalties to Municipality under the Community Charter provides that
fines and other penalties imposed and collected under or because of a Cultus Lake Park Bylaw
must be paid to the Park.

Every person who offends against any of the provisions of this Bylaw or who suffers or permits
any act to be done in contravention or in violation of any of the provisions of this Bylaw, or who
neglects to do or refrains from doing anything required to be done by any of the provisions of this
Bylaw, or who does any act or thing which violates any of the provisions of this Bylaw, will be in
breach of this Bylaw, and will be liable to the fees as outlined in Schedule A of this Bylaw and the
fines and provisions as outlined in the "Cultus Lake Park Bylaw Notice Enforcement Bylaw No.
1140,2019".

The Cultus Lake Park Board in open meeting assembled, enacts as follows:

1. TITLE

1.1 This Bylaw may be cited as "Cultus Lake Park Short-term Rental Bylaw No. 1174,
2020".

2. INTERPRETATION

2.1 Words or phrases defined in the British Columbia Interpretation Act, Motor Vehicle
Act, Local Government Act, Community Charter or any successor legislation, will
have the same meaning when used in this Bylaw unless otherwise defined in this
Bylaw.

2.2 DEFINITIONS OF TERMS

"Applicant" means the leaseholder that is applying for a Short-term Rental permit.

"Board" means the elected Board for Cultus Lake Park.

"Bylaw Compliance and Enforcement Officer" means a person acting as a Cultus
Lake Park Bylaw Compliance and Enforcement Officer, or any other person acting in
another capacity on behalf of the Cultus Lake Park Board.

Page 1 of 7
117



"Bylaw Notice" means a ticket issued under the Cultus Lake Park Bylaw Notice
Enforcement Bylaw No. 1140, 2019.

"CAO" means the Chief Administrative Officer; a position appointed by the Board.

"Emergency" means a sudden serious and/or dangerous situation which needs
immediate action. Examples are, but not limited to, natural disasters, environmental
hazards or pandemics.

"Fee" means a fee charged as outlined in Schedule "A" of this Bylaw.

"Leased lot" means iand, with or without improvements, located within the Park,
used for residential and/or commercial purposes.

"Leaseholder" means a person(s) having a current and valid lease with the Cultus
Lake Park.

"Park" means the area within the Park boundaries as outlined in the Cultus Lake
Park Act. 1932, and the foreshore assigned to the Park by the Province of British
Columbia.

"Park Staff" means any person employed by the Park.

"Permittee" means a leaseholder who holds a valid permit from Cultus Lake Park
to operate a Short-term rental.

"Post/PostecT means keeping continuously displayed in a conspicuous area of the
home.

"Resident" means the leaseholder or a person(s) renting a residence within the
Park as a permanent address from a leaseholder.

"Short-term Rental" means the rental of all or a portion of the residence, used to
provide accommodation, for a period of less than thirty (30) days.

"Substantiated" means that a reported Bylaw violation was investigated, and
credible evidence was gathered that supported the reported allegation.

2.3 In this Bylaw, unless the context otherwise requires, the singular will include the
plural and the masculine includes the feminine gender.

2.4 The headings contained in this Bylaw are for convenience only and are not to be
construed as defining, or in any way limiting, the scope or the intent of the
provisions of this Bylaw.

3. GENERAL REGULATIONS

3.1 No Leaseholder or Resident will operate a Short-term Rental within Cultus Lake
Park without a valid Short-term Rental permit issued from Cultus Lake Park.

All Short-term Rental permits are valid for one rental area per leased lot.
Leaseholders who permit more than one Short-term Rental area on one leased lot

3.2 All
Leaseholders who permit more

Page 2 of 7
118



will be subject to the fines as outlined in Cultus Lake Park Bylaw Notice Enforcement
Bylaw No. 1140, 2019, Schedule A-16 and will have their Short-term Rental permit
revoked.

3.3 All Short-term Rental permits can be suspended in the case of an emergency. This
is at the sole discretion of the Board.

3.4 For a Leaseholder to be eligible to apply for a Short-term Rental permit and to
operate a Short-term Rental within the Park they must be entered into the Cultus
Lake Park Building Site Lease that allows for this usage of the residence.

3.5 All Short-term Rental permittees are solely responsible for providing guests with
adequate parking and valid parking permits as per the Cultus Lake Park Parking
and Traffic Regulations Bylaw No. 1154, 2019 and all amendments.

3.6 All Short-term Rental permittees will ensure all garbage, recycling and green waste
bins are secured within the leased lot and only roadside during Pick up Time.

3.7 All Short-term Rental permittees are responsible for all garbage clean up, within two
hours of being notified there is garbage clean up required.

3.8 All Short-term rental permittees will keep a copy of the permit posted in a
conspicuous place in the premises.

3.9 All Short-term Rental permits issued under this Bylaw are nontransferable.

3.10 All Short-term Rental permits issued under this Bylaw are nonrefundable.

3.11 Annual Short-term Rental permits will be valid for (1) year, to commence on January
1 and to terminated on December 31 of each year and fees will not be prorated.

3.12 Weekly Short-term Rental permits will be valid for the date specific weeks applied
and paid for. Permittees must contact the Cultus Lake Park office, no less than
seven (7) business days prior to receiving a weekly permit.

3.13 No person may obstruct a Bylaw Compliance and Enforcement Officer in the fulfilment
of his or her duties under this Bylaw.

4. PERMIT APPLICATION PROCESS

4.1 Prior to any [easeholder applying for a Short-term Rental permit they must ensure
that all outstanding fines, fees and encumbrances are removed, via payment or
compliance, from title.

4.2 All Short-term Rental applicants must submit a Garbage Management Plan, beyond
Cultus Lake Parks bi-weekly garbage and weekly recycling and greens waste
scheduled service.

4.3 All Short-term Rental applicants must provide contact information for one (1) local
contact, other than the applicant, who is available on a 24/7 basis, during the use
of Short-Term Rental by a guest, to respond within two (2) hours to any telephone
enquiries regarding the Short-term Rental, and who have consented to the
applicant to allow their contact information to be made available to the Cultus Lake
Park staff.

Page 3 of 7
119



4.4 All Leasehoiders for the proposed Short-term Rental property being applied for
must provide written consent agreeing to the property being used as a Short-term
Rental.

4.5 Applicant must submit application form, along with all supporting documentation
required as noted on the application, to the Cultus Lake Park office.

4.6 When the application is submitted to the Cultus Lake Park office for processing,
the applicant will be required to pay the non-refundable application processing fee.

4.7 All Short-term permit applications will be reviewed and approved or denied by the
CAO.

4.8 The applicant will be notified on the status of the application.

4.9 If approved, the applicant will be required to pay the Short- term Rental permit
fee.

4.10 Once the Short-term Rental permit fee has been received, the applicant will
receive a Short-term Rental permit and permit number.

5. PERMIT RENEWAL PROCESS

5.1 Annual Short-term Rental permit renewal form and invoices will be mailed from the
Cultus Lake Park office to the Short-term Rental permitee no later than 30 (thirty)
days prior to the expiration date of December 31, of each year. If payment is not
received by the due date a new application and application fee will need to be
processed.

5.2 Weekly Short-term Rental permits will be subject to a new application and
application fee every three (3) years.

5.3 Upon submission of a renewal for a Short-term Rental permit, Park staff will review
Park records to determine if there any concerns with the Short-term Rental. In
considering an application for a Short-term Rental permit renewal, the Park staff

may;

(a) consider whether a Short-Term Rental permit held by the applicant has
been revoked in the preceding two (2) permit periods;

(b) consider not renewing the permit, if there are Park records that show
there were more than three Substantiated reports of any Cultus Lake
Bylaw violation occurring at the residence while it was rented out; or

(c) withhold approval of a permit if an applicant and/or leaseholder has
outstanding unpaid penalties issued under the Bylaw Notice Enforcement
Bylaw No. 1140,2019.

5.4 Once the renewal process is complete and the applicant has their new permit, the
permittee must ensure they continue to abide by all the conditions for operating a
Short-term Rental as set out in this Bylaw and pay the renewal fee.

Page 4 of 7
120



6. ADVERTISING AND ONLINE BOOKING PLATFORM REGULATIONS

6.1 Every online advertisement for a permitted Short-Term Rental must disclose:

(a) a valid permit number;

(b) the maximum number of parking space available to guests at the residence
and exact location of parking available for permits issued that may exceed
allowable parking spaces at the residence; and

(c) the maximum permitted guest-occupancy applicable to the Short-term
Rental.

6.2 No advertising signs will be placed on the leased lot.

7. REVOKING CANCELLATION OR REFUSAL OF PERMIT

7.1 Revoking, cancellation or refusal of a Short-term Rental permit will be at the sole
discretion of the CAO in consultation with the Manager of Visitor Services,
Accommodations and Bylaw Enforcement.

7.2 Where the application for a Short-term Rental permit is refused, or a Short-term
Rental permit is cancelled or revoked, notice will be provided to the applicant or
permittee who is subject to the decision. The applicant or permitee is entitled to
have the Board reconsider the matter.

7.3 A notice under Section 7.2 of this Bylaw, will be issued to the applicant or
permittee or delivered by registered mail to the address given by the applicant or
permittee on the application for the permit within 14 days.

7.4 An applicant or permittee who wishes to have the Board reconsider the refusal,
revocation or cancellation of a Short-term Rental permit will give written notice of
its request for reconsideration to the CAO and such notice must include a
description of the grounds upon which the request for reconsideration is made.
Such request must be made within 28 days of the date on the letter noted in
Section 7.3 of this Bylaw. Where the request for reconsideration has not been
received within the time period specified, the applicant will have lost the right for
reconsideration.

7.5 Upon receipt of a written notice under Section 7.4 of this Bylaw, CAO will respond
within 28 days.

8. FEES AND FINES

8.1 All leaseholders, residents, visitors, and persons are subject to the fees as outlined
in Schedule A of this Bylaw and the provisions and fines as outlined in Cultus Lake
Park Bylaw Notice Enforcement Bylaw No. 1140, 2019 and Schedule A-16 in that
Bylaw.

8.2 Each occurrence or day that a contravention of the provisions of this Bylaw exists or is
permitted to exist will constitute a separate offence.

8.3 See Schedule A for the list of Fees.

Page 5 of 7
121



9. SEVERABILITY

If any part of this Bylaw is for any reason held invalid by a court or competent Jurisdiction,
the invalid portion will be severed, and the severance will not affect the validity of the
remainder.

10. EFFECTIVE DATE

This Bylaw will come into force and effect upon its adoption.

READ A FIRST TIME this XX day of XXX, 2020

READ A SECOND TIME this XX day of XXX, 2020

READ A THIRD TIME this XX day ofXXXX, 2020

ADOPTED this XX day of XX 2020

Joe Lamb, Chair Erica Lee,
Cultus Lake Park Board Chief Financial Officer

I HEREBY CERTIFY the foregoing to be a true
and correct copy of Cultus Lake Park Short-term
Rental Bylaw No. 1174, 2020

Chief Administrative Officer

Page 6 of 7
122



SCHEDULE A

Fees

Nonrefundable application fee.....................................................................$150.00

Annual permit fee....................................................................................$1000.00

Weekly permit Fee......................................................................$125.00 (per week)

Annua! renewal fee.................................................................,...............$1000.00

Page 7 of 7
123



124



'^wis'to/
<^wtect' &• ^resewe'

CULTUS LAKE PARK

RECOMMENDATION TO BOARD

DATE: April15,2020 FILE: 3900

SUBMITTED BY: Jacquie Spencer
Manager of Visitor Services,
Accommodations & Bylaw Enforcement

SUBJECT: Home-based Business and Commercial Business Licenses

PURPOSE:

The purpose of this report is to provide the Board with the proposed Home-based Business and
Commercial Business License Bylaw.

RECOMMENDATION:

THAT the Cultus Lake Park Board give First, Second and Third readings to the Cultus Lake Park
Home-based Business License Bylaw No. 1175, 2020.

THAT the Cultus Lake Park Board give First, Second and Third readings to the Cultus Lake Park
Commercial Business License Bylaw No. 1176, 2020.

DISCUSSION:

At the September 18, 2019 Cultus Lake Board meeting, approval was received by the Park Board to
circulate a Survey via the Cultus Lake Park website and the Park Office requesting input from the
residents regarding Short Term Vacation Rental, Home Based Business, Bed & Breakfast and
Secondary Suites.

Letters to all leaseholders were mailed out informing them of the opportunity to share their views on
these topics either by completing an online Survey Monkey or by dropping into the Park Office to
complete a paper copy. The Survey was available to complete between September 20 and October
4,2019.

At the October 16, 2019 Park Board meeting, the Cultus Lake Park Board received the Survey results
for information. The results showed strong community support for Short Term Rental, Home Based
Business. Bed & Breakfast and Secondary Suites. Due to these results, the Park Board provided
direction to the Chief Administrative Officer to proceed with preparing procedures, policies and bylaws
regarding managing these areas.

On February 3, 2020 a Community Meeting was held to gather public input on Short-Term Rentals,
Home Based Businesses, Bed and Breakfasts and Secondary Suites. Staff have provided the results
of this meeting with a report at the March 18, 2020 regular meeting.

125



Further, the Cultus Lake Park Act (1932 and Amendments) Section 14 gives the Board the
authority to grant business licenses through implementation of Bylaws approved by the Board.

The Cultus Lake Park Board will request that all Home-based and Commercial businesses attain an
annual Business License as established in the respective Bylaws.

Attached for your review are the proposed Bylaws for Cultus Lake Park Home Based Businesses
Licences and Commercial Businesses Licences.

STRATEGIC PLAN:

This report does impact the Cultus Lake Park Board's Strategic Plan Initiative by seeking to
continuously improve the customer experience.

Prepared by: Approved for submission to the Board by:

^

Jacquie Spencer
Manager of Visitor Services
Accommodation & Bylaw Enforcement

Joe lamb
Acting Chief Administrative Officer

2 I Pa g e

126



^frKS/fo'
^wlect/ &r ^•tesewe'

Cultus Lake Park

HOME-BASED BUSINESS LICENCE BYLAW

Bylaw No. 1175, 2020

A Bylaw to regulate Home-based Business Licences.

Section 12 of the Cultus Lake Park Act (1932 and Amendments) enables the Cultus Lake Park
Board to adopt Bylaws, and Section 9.2 (1) provides that Section 260 - Enforcement Powers of
the Co/77/??un/?yC/7arfer apply to the enforcement of the Bylaws of the Board, and Section 261 -

Payment of Fines and Other Penalties to Municipality under the Community Charter provides
that fines and other penalties imposed and collected under or because of a Cultus Lake Park

Bylaw must be paid to the Park.

Every person who offends against any of the provisions of this Bylaw or who suffers or permits
any act to be done in contravention or in violation of any of the provisions of this Bylaw, or who
neglects to do or refrains from doing anything required to be done by any of the provisions of this

Bylaw, or who does any act or thing which violates any of the provisions of this Bylaw, will be in
breach of this Bylaw, and will be liable to the fees as outlined in Schedule A of this Bylaw and
the fines and provisions as outlined in the "Cultus Lake Park Bylaw Notice Enforcement Bylaw
No. 1140,2019

The Cultus Lake Park Board in open meeting assembled, enacts as follows:

1. TITLE

1.1 This Bylaw may be cited as "Cultus Lake Home-based Business Licence Bylaw
No. 1175,2020".

2. INTERPRETATION

2.1 Words or phrases defined in the British Columbia Interpretation Act, Motor Vehicle
Act, Local Government Act, Community Charteror any successor legislation, will

have the same meaning when used in this Bylaw unless otherwise defined in this

Bylaw.

2.2 DEFINITIONS OF TERMS

"Applicant" means the leaseholder that is applying for a Home-based Business
licence.

"Board" means the elected Board for Cultus Lake Park.

127



"Business Licence" means the Licence issued by Cultus Lake Park to the
licencee to conduct business as outlined in the applicant's application.

"Bylaw Compliance and Enforcement Officer" means a person acting as a Cultus

Lake Park Bylaw Compliance and Enforcement Officer, or any other person acting in

another capacity on behalf of the Cultus Lake Park Board.

"Bylaw Notice" means a ticket issued under the Cultus Lake Park Bylaw Notice

Enforcement Bylaw No. 1140, 2019.

"CAO" means the Chief Administrative Officer; a position appointed by the Board.

"Fee" means a fee charged as outlined in Schedule "A" of this Bylaw.

"Home-based Business" means the operation of a commercial or industrial
undertaking of any kind or nature or the providing of professional, personal or
other services, for the purpose of gain or profit, within a leased lot.

"Leased lot" means land, with or without improvements, located within the Park,

used for residential and/or commercial purposes.

"Leaseholder" means a person(s) having a current and valid lease with Cultus

Lake Park.

"Licencee" means a business entity which holds a valid licence to operate a
business within the Park under this Bylaw.

"Nuisance" means anything that annoys, irritates, disturbs or interferes with a

person's use or enjoyment of private or public property or is offensive to the senses

or causes injury to health, comfort or convenience of any person.

"Park" means the area within the Park boundaries as outlined in the Cultus Lake

Park Act. 1932, and the foreshore assigned to the Park by the Province of British
Columbia.

"Park Staff" means any person employed by the Park.

"Person" includes any corporation, partnership, sole proprietorship, party or
individual.

"Post/Posted' means keeping continuously displayed in a conspicuous area of

the home.

"Substantiated" means that a reported Bylaw vioiation was investigated, and

credible evidence was gathered that supported the reported allegation.

2.3 In this Bylaw, unless the context otherwise requires, the singular will include the

plural and the masculine includes the feminine gender.

128



2.4 The headings contained in this Bylaw are for convenience only and are not to be

construed as defining, or in any way limiting, the scope or the intent of the

provisions of this Bylaw.

3. GENERAL REGULATIONS

3.1 No Person, Leaseholder or Resident will operate a Home-basecf Business within

Cultus Lake Park without a valid Cultus Lake Park Home-based Business licence.

3.2 For a Leaseholder to be eligible to apply for a Home-based Business licence and

to operate a Home-based Business within the Park they must be entered into the
Cultus Lake Park Building Site Lease that allows for this usage.

3.3 All Home-based Business licencees are solely responsible for providing guests

with adequate parking and valid parking permits as per Cultus Lake Park Parking
and Traffic Regulations Bylaw No. 1154,2019.

3.4 Every person who operates a business within the Park must comply with all
Bylaws of the Park and all applicable laws, rules, codes, regulations and orders
of all Federal or Provincial authorities having jurisdiction over such business.

3.5 Where any Federal or Provincial enactment or any other Park Bylaw applies to
any matter covered by this Bylaw, the issuance of a licence under this Bylaw will
not relieve the licencee from complying with the provision of such other
enactments or Bylaws.

3.6 All Home-based Business licences issued under this Bylaw are nontransferable.

3.7 All Home-based Business licences issued under this Bylaw are nonrefundable.

3.7 A person may not carry on a business in or on any premises other than those
identified on the Home-based Business licence without first making an
application for a new licence or a change to the licence.

3.8 The granting of a licence under this Bylaw in no way implies that the licences is
competent in the business operation for which they are licenced or that the
licenced business or the business premises comply with the Park's Bylaws or
other applicable legislation relevant to the business.

3.9 The licence will be valid for (1) year, to commence on January 1 and to
terminated on December 31 of each year and fees will not be prorated.

3.10 The Home-based Business licence must be posted at the place of business in a
conspicuous location.

3.11 Every licencee must notify Cultus Lake Park in writing of:

(a) Any change in the type or nature of the business;

(b) Any change in the type or nature of the goods or services
provided; or

(c) Any change in location.

129



3.12 No person may obstruct a Bylaw Compliance and Enforcement Officer in the
fulfillment of his or her duties under this Bylaw.

4. BUSINESS LICENCE APPLICATION PROCESS

4.1 Prior to applying for a Home-based Business licence the applicant must eliminate
outstanding fines, fees and encumbrances, via payment or compliance, from title.

4.2 An application for a Home-based Business licence will be made on a form
provided by Cultus Lake Park.

4.3 All Leaseholders for the proposed Home-based Business licence property being
applied for must provide written consent agreeing to the property being used as
Home-based Business licence property.

4.4 Submit Home-based Business licence application form, along with all supporting

documentation required as noted on the application, to the Cultus Lake Park

Office.

4.5 When the application is submitted to the Cultus Lake Park office for processing,
the applicant will be required to pay a non-refundable application processing fee.

4.6 All Home-based Business licence applications will be reviewed and approved or

denied by the Board.

4.7 The applicant will be notified on the status of the application.

4.8 If approved, the applicant will be required to pay the Home-Based Business

licence fee.

4.9 Once the Home-based Business licence fee has been received, the applicant will

receive a Home-based Business licence and Home-based Business licence

number.

5. PERMIT RENEWAL PROCESS

5.1 Home-Based Business licence renewal forms and invoices will be mailed from
the Cultus Lake Park office to the Home-Based Business licencee no later than
30 (thirty) days prior to the expiration date of December 31, of each year.

5.2 Upon submission of a renewal for a Home-based Business licence, Park staff will
review Park records to determine if there are any concerns with the Business. In
considering an application for a Home-based Business licence renewal, the park
staff may;

a) consider whether a Home-based Business licence held by the applicant
has been revoked in the preceding two (2) licence periods;

b) consider not renewing the Home-based Business licence, if there are
Park records that show there were more than three Substantiated
reports of any Cultus Lake Bylaw violation occurring at the business.

130



c) withhold approval of a Home-based Business licence if an applicant
and/or lease holder has outstanding unpaid penalties issued under the
Bylaw Notice Enforcement Bylaw No. 1140,2019.

5.3 Once the renewal process is complete and the applicant has their new Home-
based Business licence, the applicant must ensure they continue to abide by all
the conditions for operating a Business as set out in the Bylaw and pay the renewal
fee.

6. REVOKING CANCELLATION OR REFUSAL OF BUSINESS LICENCE

6.1 Revoking, cancellation or refusal of a Home-based Business licence will be at the
sole discretion of the CAO in consultation with the Manager of Visitor Services,
Accommodations and Bylaw Enforcement.

6.2 Where the application for a Home-based Business licence is refused, or a Home-
based Business licence is revoked, notice will be provided to the applicant or
licencee who is subject to the decision. The applicant or licences is entitled to
have the Board reconsider the matter.

6.2 A notice, under Section 6.2 of this Bylaw, will be issued to the applicant or
licencee or delivered by registered mail to the address given by the applicant or
licencee on the application for the Home-based Business licence within 14 days.

6.3 An applicant or licencee, who wishes to have the Board reconsider the refusal,
revocation or cancellation of a Home-based Business licence, will give written
notice of the request for reconsideration to the CAO and such notice must
include a description of the grounds upon which the request for reconsideration is
made. Such request must be made within 28 days of the date on the letter
noted in Section 6.3 of this Bylaw. Where the request for reconsideration has not
been received within the time period specified, the applicant will have lost the
right for reconsideration.

6.4 Upon receipt of a written notice under Section 6.4 of this Bylaw, the CAO will
respond within 28 days.

7. FEES AND FINES

7.1 All leaseholders, residents, visitors, and persons are subject to the fees as

outlined in this Schedule A of this Bylaw and the provisions and fines as outlined
in Cultus Lake Park Bylaw Notice Enforcement Bylaw No. 1140, 2019 and
Schedule A-17 in that Bylaw.

7.2 Each occurrence or day that a contravention of the provisions of this Bylaw exists or

is permitted to exist will constitute a separate offence.

7.3 See Schedule A for the list of fees.

131



8. SEVERABILITY

If any part of this Bylaw is for any reason held invalid by a court or competent jurisdiction,
the invalid portion will be severed, and the severance will not affect the validity of the
remainder.

9. EFFECTIVE DATE

This Bylaw will come into force and effect upon its adoption.

READ A FIRST TIME this XX day of XXX, 20XX

READ A SECOND TIME this XX day of XXX, 20XX

READ A THIRD TIME this XX day ofXXXX, 20XX

ADOPTED this XX day of XX 20XX

Joe Lamb, Chair Erica Lee,
Cultus Lake Park Board Chief Financial Officer

! HEREBY CERTIFY the foregoing to be a true
and correct copy of Cultus Lake Park Home-based
Business Licence Bylaw No. 1175, 2020

Chief Administrative Officer

132



SCHEDULE A

Fees

Nonrefundable Application fee..................,...................................................$150.00

Home-based Business Licence fee................................................................$200.00

Home-based Business Licence renewal fee....................................................$200.00

133



134



^uts/to/
^wtecf/ &• <^>tesewe'

Cultus Lake Park

COMMERCIAL BUSINESS LICENCE BYLAW

Bylaw No. 1176, 2020

A Bylaw to regulate Commercial Business Licences.

Section 12 of the Cultus Lake Park Act (1932 and Amendments) enables the Cultus Lake Park
Board to adopt Bylaws, and Section 9.2 (1) provides that Section 260 - Enforcement Powers of

the Community Charter apply to the enforcement of the Bylaws of the Board, and Section 261 -
Payment of Fines and Other Penalties to Municipality under the Community Charter provides
that fines and other penalties imposed and collected under or because of a Cultus Lake Park
Bylaw must be paid to the Park.

Every person who offends against any of the provisions of this Bylaw or who suffers or permits

any act to be done in contravention or in violation of any of the provisions of this Bylaw, or who

neglects to do or refrains from doing anything required to be done by any of the provisions of this
Bylaw, or who does any act or thing which violates any of the provisions of this Bylaw, will be in
breach of this Bylaw, and will be liable to the fees as outlined in Schedule A of this Bylaw and
the fines and provisions as outlined in the "Cultus Lake Park Bylaw Notice Enforcement Bylaw
No. 1140,2019.

The Cultus Lake Park Board in open meeting assembled, enacts as follows:

1. TITLE

1.1 This Bylaw may be cited as "Cultus Lake Commercial Business Licence Bylaw
No. 1176,2020".

2. INTERPRETATION

2.1 Words or phrases defined in the British Columbia Interpretation Act, Motor Vehicle
Act, Local Government Act, Community Charter or any successor legislation, will

have the same meaning when used in this Bylaw unless otherwise defined in this
Bylaw.

2.2 DEFINITIONS OF TERMS

"Applicant" means the commercial leaseholder that is applying for a Commercial
Business Licence.

"Board" means the elected Board for Cultus Lake Park

135



"Business Licence" means the licence issued by Cultus Lake Park to the
licences to conduct business as outlined in the applicant's application.

"Bylaw Compliance and Enforcement Officer" means a person acting as a Cultus

Lake Park Bylaw Compliance and Enforcement Officer, or any other person acting in

another capacity on behalf of the Cultus Lake Park Board.

"Bylaw Notice" means a ticket issued under the Cultus Lake Park Bylaw Notice
Enforcement Bylaw No. 1140, 2019.

"CAO" means the Chief Administrative Officer; a position appointed by the Board.

"Fee" means a fee charged as outlined in Schedule "A" of this Bylaw.

"Commercial Leaseholder" means a commercial leaseholderwith a current and
valid commercial lease with Cultus Lake Park,

"Licencee" means a commercial business entity which holds a valid licence to
operate a business within the Park under this Bylaw.

"Park" means the area within the Park boundaries as outlined in the Cultus Lake
Park Act. 1932, and the foreshore assigned to the Park by the Province of British
Columbia.

"Person" includes any corporation, partnership, sole proprietorship, party or
individual.

"Post/PostecT means keeping continuously displayed in a conspicuous area of
the business.

2.3 In this Bylaw, unless the context otherwise requires, the singular will include the

plural and the masculine includes the feminine gender.

2.4 The headings contained in this Bylaw are for convenience only and are not to be

construed as defining, or in any way limiting, the scope or the intent of the

provisions of this Bylaw.

3. GENERAL REGULATIONS

3.1 All Commercial Leaseholders who operate a commercial business within Cuftus

Lake Park must have a valid Commercial Business licence issued by Cultus Lake
Park.

3.2 All Commercial Leaseholders must abide by the terms of lease, as set out in the

signed commercial lease with Cultus Lake Park.

3.3 All Commercial Leaseholders who operate a Commercial Business within Cultus

Lake Park must pay the annual fee for a Commercial Business licence.

136



3.4 The licence will be valid for (1) year, to commence on January 1 and to
terminated on December 31 of each year and fees will not be prorated.

3.5 The Commercial Business licence must be posted at the place of business in a
conspicuous location.

3.6 No person may obstruct a Bylaw Compliance and Enforcement Officer in the
fulfillment of his or her duties under this Bylaw.

5. BUSINESS LICENCE RENEWAL PROCESS

Commercial Business licence invoices will be mailed from the Cultus Lake Park office to
the Commercial Business licencee no later than 30 (thirty) days prior to the expiration
date of December 31, of each year.

6. CANCELLATION OF BUSINESS LICENCE

All Commercial Business licences will be considered void upon termination or expiration
of said Commercial Lease with Cultus Lake Park.

7. FEES AND FINES

7.1 All leaseholders, residents, visitors, and persons are subject to the fees as

outlined in this Schedule A of this Bylaw and the provisions and fines as outlined
in Cultus Lake Park Bylaw Notice Enforcement Bylaw No. 1140, 2019 and
Schedule A-18 in that Bylaw.

7.2 See Schedule A for the list of fees.

8. SEVERABILITY

If any part of this Bylaw is for any reason held invalid by a court or competent jurisdiction,
the invalid portion will be severed, and the severance will not affect the validity of the
remainder.

9. EFFECTIVE DATE

This Bylaw will come into force and effect upon its adoption.

READ A FIRST TIME this XX day of XXX, 2020

READ A SECOND TIME this XX day of XXX, 2020

READ A THIRD TIME this XX day ofXXXX, 2020

ADOPTED this XX day of XX 2020

137



Joe Lamb, Chair Erica Lee,
Cultus Lake Park Board Chief Financial Officer

I HEREBY CERTIFY the foregoing to be a true
and correct copy of Cuitus Lake Park Commercial
Business Licence Bylaw No. 1176, 2020

Chief Administrative Officer

138



0 0 3 3 0 0 n
» oa c V
)

=i (p 0
)

0
) 1 0 0 =
; 0 (D CD

0 0 3 3 (D 0 EU 00 c w 3 <D co w r~ 0 CD 3 0 CD —
h

CD CD

-6
^

ro 0 0 Q 0

M̂ Q 0 0 0

co 0 I m a c I- m >

139



140



DATE:

SUBMITTED BY:

SUBJECT:

<^wwto'
rioted/ & ^wseww

CULTUS LAKE PARK

REPORT/RECOMMENDATION TO BOARD

April15,2020 FILE: 3900

Jacquie Spencer, Acting Manager of Visitor Services, Accommodations and
Bylaw Enforcement

Bylaw Notice Enforcement Bylaw Amendment

PURPOSE:

To present the Board the Cultus Lake Park Bylaw Notice Enforcement Bylaw No. 1140, 2019
Amendment Bylaw No. 1177, 2020.

RECOMMENDATION:

THAT the Cultus Lake Park Board give First, Second and Third readings to the Cultus Lake Park
Bylaw Notice Enforcement Bylaw No. 1140, 2019 Amendment Bylaw No. 1177, 2020.

DISCUSSION:

In 2019 Cultus Lake Park joined the Upper Fraser Valley Adjudication System and all regulatory
bylaws were rewritten and all fines were combined as "schedules" in the Cultus Lake Park Bylaw
Notice Enforcement Bylaw No. 1140, 2019.

All new bylaws that have fines must have a schedule added to the Cultus Lake Park Bylaw Notice
Enforcement Bylaw No. 1140, 2019, by process of amendment, and the readings must be done
concurrently with the regulatory bylaw being put in place.

With the addition of the Cultus Lake Park Short-Term Rental Bylaw No. 1174, 2020, the Cultus Lake
Park Home-based Business License Bylaw No. 1175, 2020 and the Cultus Lake Park Commercial
Business License Bylaw No. 1176, 2020, their corresponding schedules have been added to the
Cultus Lake Park Bylaw Notice Enforcement Bylaw No. 1140, 2019.

STRATEGIC PLAN:

This report does not impact the Board's Strategic Plan Initiative.

Prepared by: Approved for submission to the Board:

---c .

/

Jacquie Spencer,
Acting Manager of Visitor Services,
Accommodations and Bylaw Enforcement

Joe Lamb,
Acting Chief Administrative Officer

141



142



<^MS/fo/
wtec^ £c ^wswwe"

Cultus Lake Park

BYLAW NOTICE ENFORCEMENT BYLAW NO. 1140,2019

Amendment Bylaw No. 1177, 2020

A Bylaw to amend Cultus Lake Park Bylaw Notice Enforcement Bylaw No. 1140, 2019

Section 12 of the Cu/^sLa/cePa/-A-y4c? (1932 and Amendments) enables the Cultus Lake Park Board
to adopt Bylaws, and Section 9.2 (1) provides that Section 220 - Enforcement Powers of the
Community Charter apply to the enforcement of the bylaws of the Board, and Section 261 - Payment
of Fines and Other Penalties to Municipality under the Community Charter provides that fines and
other penalties imposed and collected under or because ofaCultus Lake Park Bylaw must be paid to
the Park.

The Cultus Lake Park Board deems it advisable to amend Cultus Lake Park Bylaw Notice Enforcement
Bylaw No. 1140,2019.

The Cultus Lake Park Board in open meeting assembled, enacts as follows:

1. TITLE

This Bylaw may be cited as "Cultus Lake Park Bylaw Notice Enforcement Bylaw No. 1140, 2019,
Amendment Bylaw 1177, 2020."

2. AMENDMENTS

Cultus Lake Park Bylaw Notice Enforcement Bylaw No. 1140, 2019 is amended as follows:

(a) Section 12 - SCHEDULES is amended by adding the following wording:
Schedule A-16 - Cultus Lake Park Short-term Rental Bylaw No. 1174,2020; and

(b) Section 12 - SCHEDULES is amended by adding the following:
Schedule A-17 - Cultus Lake Park Home-based Business Bylaw No. 1175,2020; and

(c) Section 12 - SCHEDULES is amended by adding the following:
Schedule A-18 - Cultus Lake Park Commercial Business License Bylaw No. 1176,
2020;and

(d) That Schedule A"16-1 8 attached to and forming part of this bylaw be added to the end
of the Schedule "A" section in correct numerical order.

(e) Section 12 - SCHEDULES is amended by adding the following wording:
"and all amendments" after the word schedules and before the word are.

Page 1 of 2 143



3. EFFECTIVE DATE

This Bylaw will come into force and effect upon its adoption.

READ A FIRST TIME this XX day of XXXXX, 2020

READ A SECOND TIME this XX day of XXXXX, 2020

READ A THIRD TIME this XX day of XXXXX, 2020

ADOPTED this XX day of XXXXX, 2020

Joe Lamb, Chair Erica Lee,
Cultus Lake Park Board Chief Financial Officer

I HEREBY CERTIFY the foregoing to be a true
and correct copy of Cultus Lake Park Bylaw
Notice Enforcement Bylaw No. 1140, 2019,
Amendment Bylaw No. 1177, 2020

Chief Administrative Officer

Page 2 of 2
144



Schedule A-16 - Cultus Lake Park Short-term Rental Bylaw

Bylaw No. 1174, 2020

Bylaw
Notice
Bylaw

Citation

Cultus Lake
Park Short-
term Rental
Bylaw No.
1174,2020

Section

3.1

3.2

3.3

3.4

3.5

3.6

3.6

3.7

3.8

3.12

3.13

4.3

5.1

6.1 (a)

6.1 (b)

Description

Operating a Short-term Rental without a valid permit

Operating more than one STR per leased lot

Operating a STR during a suspension/emergency

Failure to enter the Cultus Lake Park Building Site
Lease allowing STR usage

Failure to provide guests with valid parking permits

Failure to ensure bins are secured within lease lot

Bins on roadside outside Pick up Time

Failure to clean up garbage within two hours of
notification

Failure to post permit

Operating STR outside of permit duration

Obstructing a Bylaw Officer

Emergency Contact fails to respond within two (2)
hours or is not available 24/7

Failure to submit renewal application within 30 days
prior to permit expiration

Failure to advertise valid permit number

Failure to disclose maximum number of parking

A1
Penalty

$500

$500

$500

$500

$100

$100

$100

$300

$300

$500

$500

$250

$100

$500

$100

A2
Early

Payment
Penalty

$450

$450

$450

$450

$80

$80

$80

$175

$265

$450

$450

$220

$80

$450

$80

A3
Late

Payment
Penalty

$550

$550

$550

$550

$120

$120

$120

$225

$335

$550

$550

$280

$120

$550

$120

A4
Compliance
Agreement
Available

No

No

No

No

No

No

No

No

No

No

No

No

No

No

No

145



6.1 (b)

6.1 (c)

6.2

Failure to disclose location for available parking

Failure to disclose maximum guest-occupancy
permitted

Advertisement sign on leased lot

$100

$100

$200

$80

$80

$175

$120

$120

$220

No

No

No

146



Schedule A-17 - Cultus Lake Park Home-Based Business Bylaw

Bylaw No. 1175, 2019

Bylaw
Notice
Bylaw

Citation

Cultus Lake
Park Home-

based
Business
Licence
Bylaw No.

1175,2020

Section

3.1

3.2

3.3

3.7

3.7

3.9

3.10

3.11 (a)

3.11 (b)

3.11 (c)

3.12

5.1

Description

Operating a Home-based business without a valid
Licence

Failure to enter the Cultus Lake Park Building Site
Lease allowing Home-based business usage

Failure to provide guests with valid parking permits

Operating business in location other than identified
on licence

Failure to apply for a new licence when operating
outside of parameters of current licence

Operating Home-based business outside of licence
duration

Failure to post licence

Failure to notify changes to nature of business

Failure to notify changes to nature of goods or
services provided

Failure to notify change of location

Obstructing a Bylaw Officer

Failure to submit renewal application within 30 days
prior to licence expiration

A1
Penalty

$500

$500

$100

$300

$300

$500

$300

$100

$100

$100

$500

$100

A2
Early

Payment
Penalty

$450

$450

$80

$265

$265

$450

$265

$80

$80

$80

$450

$80

A3
Late

Payment
Penalty

$550

$550

$120

$335

$335

$550

$335

$120

$120

$120

$550

$120

A4
Compliance
Agreement
Available

No

No

No

No

No

No

No

No

No

No

No

No

147



Schedule A-18 - Cultus Lake Park Commercial Business Licence

Bylaw No. 1176, 2019

Bylaw
Notice
Bylaw

Citation

Cuftus Lake
Park
Commercial
Business

Licence
Bylaw No.
1176, 2020

Section

3.1

3.3

3.5

3.6

Description

Operating a Commercial Business without a valid
Licence

Failure to pay annual fee

Failure to post licence

Obstructing a Bylaw Officer

A1
Penalty

$500

$500

$100

$500

A2
Early

Payment
Penalty

$450

$450

$80

$450

A3
Late

Payment
Penalty

$550

$550

$120

$550

A4
Compliance
Agreement
Available

No

No

No

No

148



CULTUS LAKE PARK 

REPORT/RECOMMENDATION TO BOARD 

DATE: April 15, 2020 FILE:  0550 

SUBMITTED BY: Joe Lamb  
Acting Chief Administrative Officer 

SUBJECT: Release of Closed Meeting Resolutions 

PURPOSE: 

To provide Closed Meeting Resolutions that the Cultus Lake Park Board may release at an open 
meeting. 

RECOMMENDATION: 

THAT the following Closed Meeting Resolutions be released at the April 15, 2020 Regular 
Board meeting: 

Acting Chief Administrative Officer
March 20, 2020 
IC 4060-20 
THAT in the absence of a Chief Administrative Officer/Corporate Officer, the Board Chair shall 
have the same powers, duties and responsibilities as those officers as set out in Bylaw 2007-03; and 

THAT the Board Chair may delegate said powers, duties and functions to employees of the Park 
as deemed appropriate, thereby granting special authority to certain employees. 

Sunnyside Campground
March 20, 2020 
IC 4061-20 

THAT the Cultus Lake Park Board approve that Sunnyside Campground opening for seasonal 
campers and overnight camping be delayed and that under a weekly review of the of the date to 
ensure the safety of the community; and  

THAT upon Campground opening the park will prorate any lost days and provide a refund to the 
campers once the campground opens.  

STRATEGIC PLAN: 

This report does not impact the Cultus Lake Park Board’s Strategic Plan Initiative. 
_________________________________________________________________________________ 

s:\clpb documents\0550 board - meetings\0550-70 - reports - board meetings\2020\04 15 2020\2020.04.15 release of closed meeting resolutions.doc 

149



2 

Prepared by: 

_____________________________ 
Joe Lamb  
Acting Chief Administrative Officer 

150



f@tvis' to/
c^wiect' <&' ^•cesewe"

CULTUS LAKE PARK

REPORT/RECOMMENDATION TO BOARD

DATE: April15,2020 FILE: 0550

SUBMITTED BY: Joe Lamb,
Acting Chief Administrative Officer

SUBJECT: Purchase of additional land - 216C Lakeshore Drive

PURPOSE:

To provide the Cultus Lake Park Board with information to consider the sale and transfer of additional
lands at 216C Lakeshore Drive to Mr. Graham Williams.

RECOMMENDATION:

THAT the Cultus Lake Park Board approve the sale and transfer of 34 m2 to Mr. Williams for the
construction of a home on 216C Lakeshore Drive. The price will be set at $1,040.70 per square meter
for a total $35.383.50.

THAT the Cultus Lake Park Board direct the Acting Chief Administrative Officer to enter into an in-
kind agreement with Mr. Williams to improve the present parking lot on Lakeshore Drive by increasing
its capacity and efficiency in exchange for the 34 m2 land sate and transfer as outlined in this report.

DISCUSSION:

The owner of 216C Lakeshore Drive Graham Williams is planning to build a home on this property.
On April 16, 2016 he applied for a variance when the planning function still resided with Cultus Lake
Park. At that time the following resolution was carried (attachment #1):

77?afthe Cultus Lake Park Board authorize the issuance of a Development Variance Permit to
facilitate the construction of a new single-family dwelling at 216B Lakeshore Drive; and

T/?afthe variance to reduce the rear line setbacks to Monroe Avenue from 1.83 to 0.9m (plus
overhang) be approved.

TTjafthe Board offer to sell 4 feet on the south side of 216B Lakeshore Drive to Graham Williams at
fair market value.

The reason for the sale of the additional four feet and the variance would allow Mr. Williams to parking
off of Monroe rather than Lakeshore Drive thus retaining the five public parking spaces on Lakeshore
Drive. The property purchase went ahead with the subsequent transfer of the requested 22.382
square meter parcel which bordered 216B Lakeshore Drive. Upon completion of the sale and
transfer, 216B was now identified as 216C with the legal description of Lease Lot 216CQ, 213.5m2
(0.053 Acres). The agreed upon price for the 22.382 square meter parcel was set at $1,040.70 per
square meter, for a total of $23,292.95. (See attachment #2).

s:\clpb documenlsU)550 board - meet;n9s\0550-70 - reports - board meelings\2020\04 15 2020\2020 04 15 purchase of land 216c,doc

151



Mr. Williams was out of the country for over a year and when he returned the planning function had
moved over to FVRD. Mr. Williams appeared before the Board on August 21, 2019 indicating that the
previous approved Cultus Lake Park Board variance from 2016 was now not recognized by the FVRD
and he would have to reapply for a new variance as the approval granted under the Specified Area
Bylaw was now expired. In addition, new rules with respect to parking now applied making it very
difficult for him to now accommodate two parking spaces within the lot lines on Monroe. So, he was
now back to having to accommodate his parking on the Lakeshore Drive side that would put the public
parking spaces in jeopardy. The Chief Administrative Officer was directed to write the FVRD to
request that the DVP approved by the Board in 2016, be accepted by FVRD. This request was
denied by the FVRD.

All three parties (FVRD, CLP, and Mr. Williams) met on December 5, 2019 at the FVRD to review
opportunities to access the lot from Monroe Avenue so that public parking on Lakeshore Drive could
be maintained. It was decided that if CLP could sell Mr. Williams an additional eight feet to
accommodate the cantilevered roof and deck with no physical structures in the ground (essential the
airspace) than FVRD would be flexible in the setbacks on the DVP. This would allow for two parking
spaces on Munroe Avenue and preserves the public parking area on Lakeshore Drive.

As you will see in the next report on this agenda, Mr. Graham Williams has applied to FVRD for a
Development Variance Permit to:

Reduce the interior lot line setback to the building wall on the south property line from 1.2m to
0.60m; and,
Reduce the setback to the eaves, gutters, deck and sunlight control structures from the same
lot line from 1.05m to Om.

With respect to the construction of a new single-family dwelling on the lot at 216B Lakeshore Drive in
Cultus Lake Park.

Mr. Williams provided the following reasons in support of his application: 1) to support the provision of
off-street parking off Munroe rather than off Lakeshore where existing public parking spaces prevent
access to the lot; and, 2) to facilitate the desired house design. Mr. Williams feels that accessing the
lot from Munroe, rather than Lakeshore, results in a reduction in usable floor area within the proposed
dwelling and the variance is needed to accommodate both parking off Munroe and his desired house
design. While access/parking from Lakeshore would impact only the basement level of the house,
access/ parking from Monroe would impact prime floor area within level of the home that is
approximately at grade with Monroe Avenue.

Mr. Graham Daneluz, Director of Planning & Development with the FVRDwas requested if the sale of
additional lands on the vacant CLP unusable property adjacent to the 216C Lakeshore was allowable
under the present zoning bylaw. He replied (attachment #3) that lot 216C is zoned Hillside
Residential (R-4). If CLP were to sell Mr. Williams the 8 feet the entire lot would remain zoned R-4
because the zone boundary is intended to follow the !ot boundary.

The land in question for this potential sale is park property that is unusable because of a number of
factors such as a creek runs through it and the steepness of the slope.

Staff are recommending that a total area of 34 m2 be sold and transferred to Mr. Williams to enable
him to provide two parking spaces on Monroe thus ensuring that the public parking spaces on

152



Lakeshore Drive are preserved. The price will be set at $1,040.70 per square meter (the same price
per square meter as the previous sale) for a total $35,383.50 (attachment #4).

In addition, I am requesting that I be approved to enter into negotiations with Mr. Williams that
services in kind be used for this land sale and transfer. The in-kind services would include moving
back the parking spaces into the hillside and a retaining wall be installed, the fire hydrant be moved to
create more parking spaces and efficiencies in the present parking lot. In addition, Mr. Williams
indicated he will beautify the area with additional trees and shrubs.

I will ask Mr. Williams to provide a drawing of the work to be completed. I will request a quote from
another contractor on the cost of this work. Thus, ensuring a fair and equitable exchange for the 8
feet of property, anything below the sale price will be provided in cash by Mr. Williams.

I have included three letters of support from the August 21, 2019 Board meeting (attachment #5).

Attachment #1 - Resolutions from April 6, 2016
Attachment #2 - Property Purchase Agreement
Attachment #3 - Email dated January 30, 2020 From Graham Daneluz, Director of Planning &
Development
Attachment #4 - Survey dated June 10, 2016
Attachment #5 - Letters of support

STRATEGIC PLAN:

This report does not impact the Cultus Lake Park Board's Strategic Plan Initiative.

Prepared

/'

^

by:

/
/

^ ^"
'^-c.

Joe Lamb
Acting Chief Administrative Officer

153



(a) Development Variance Permit for 216B Lakeshore Drive
• Report dated April 6, 2016 from lan Crane. Manager of Community Services
• Emails dated March 24, 2016 from Rosemary Geddes Lee, and March 25, 201 6 from

Nanette Vye and Fred Granzow opposing applicant acquiring designated parking
spot.

On Table submissions received after the agenda was distributed:
• Letter dated April 5, 2016 from Diane Catt and Charlie and Jeff Fortin opposed to

setting a precedent for exclusive parking; and
• Email dated April 5, 2016 from Duane Lawson expressed concern with interior side

setback being reduced to 0 as it may take away some of his view; and
• Email dated April 6, 2016 from Jan and Richard Cousins opposing the variance

request for an exclusive parking spot.

The Manager of Community Services gave a brief description of the requested variances
for the property and noted that the request for an exclusive parking spot would not be
addressed in a Development Variance Permit application.

The applicant, Graham Williams advised that he was encouraged to build the house in
this manner to retain 5 parking spots on Lakeshore Drive. By applying for the variance
he can have parking off of Monroe rather than Lakeshore, By granting his additional
building area he is able to accommodate parking for himself on Monroe. He had
spoken with the FVRD and they had no objections to the proposal. The Fire Department
also had no objections or concerns regarding access and turn around area. His intent is
to build a two storey house with landscaping at the bottom of this property.

The Manager of Community Services clarified that if a variance is given for a 0 lot line
variance, the applicant can build up to the lot line.

Public Input

Jeff Iverson - parking is very limited in the area and spoke in support of the appfication
in order to allow for the applicant to have two parking spots off of Monroe. He requested
that if he is able to get two parking spots on Monroe that the request for one exciusive
parking spot be removed. The Board advised they would not deal with parking under
the Development Variance Application. Mr. Lawson advised that he also submitted an
email to Bonny Bryant opposing the request for an exclusive parking spot and that he
would resubmit it.

Terry Woodrow" spoke in favor of the variance but did not agree with selling additional
land.

Bob McCrea - spoke in support and added there is already a house on Monroe Ave.that
has parking at the front and back.

Max Newhouse - asked why Cultus Lake Park did not sell a portion of property so he
may have additional parking at the top.

There was no further input from the public.

154



The Board requested that the resolutions be dealt with separately.

3647-16 Moved by: Commissioner Bauer Seconded by: Commissioner Lamb

THAT the Cultus Lake Park Board authorize the issuance of a Development Variance
Permit to facilitate the construction of a new single family dwelling at 216B Lakeshore
Drive; and

THATthe variance to reduce the rearlsne setbacks to Monroe Avenue from 1.83m to
0.9m (plus overhang) be approved.

CARRIED

3648-16 Moved by: Commissioner Turcasso Seconded by: Commissioner Bauer

THATthe Board offerto sell 4 feet on the south side of216B Lakeshore Drive to
Graham WiHiams at fair market value.

CARRIED

155



0«) g
PROPERTY PURCHASE AGREEMENT

This Properly Purchase (the "Agreement") is made and effective the December 14,2016.

BETWEEN: CULTUS LAKE PARK BOARD (the "Lessor"), a Board empowered to manage,
maintain and Improve Cultus lake Park and lease building sites within Cultus
Lake Park for private or public use for a period not exceeding twenty-one (21)
years under the faws of the Cultus Lake Park Act, SBC Chapter 63 of British
Columbia, with Its head office located at;

4165 COLUMBIA VALLEY ROAD, CULTUS LAKE BC V2R 5B5

AND GRAHAM GLYN WILLIAMS (the "Lessee"), with their main address located at:

2165 LAKESHORE DRIVE, CULTUS LAKE BC V2R 5A1

TERMS

This agreement Is for the purchase and subsequent transfer of the requested 22,382 square
meter parcel which borders 216B Lakeshore Drive, Cultus Lake BC V2R 5A1, Upon completion
of sate and transfer, 216B will now be Identified as 216C with the legal description of Lease Lot
216CW, 213.6m2 (0.053 Acres) within Section 36, Township 22, New Westminster District |
2160 Lakeshore Drive, Cultus Lake BC V2R 5A1

The agreed upon price for the 22.382 square meter parcel is $1040.70 per square meter, for a
total of $23,292.95.

This agreement shall be binding upon the parties, their successors, assigns and personal
representatives.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have executed this Agreement as of the date first above
written.

BONNY BRYANT,
DIRECTOR OF PARK OPERATIONS
CHIEF ADMINISTRATIVE OFFICER

Authorized Signatory(fes)

GRAHAM GLYN WILLIAMS

Property Purchase Agroement Page 1 of 1

156



Bonny Bryant

From: Graham Dgneluz <Gd3neluz@fvrd,ca>

Sent: January 30, 2020 5:06 PM
To: Bonny Bryant
Subject: Zoning of 2016B Lakeshore Drive

Hi Bonny,

Lot 2016B is zoned Hillside Residential (R-4). If there is a minor adjustment to the boundary of the lease lot, the entire
lot would remain zoned R"4 because the zone boundary is intended to follow the lot boundary.

Let me know if you need anything further.

Best,

MCIP, HITGraham Daneluz
Director of Planning & Development

1-45950 Cheam Ave, ChiHiwack, BC V2P 1N6
P 604.702.5046 II W wmv.fvrd.ca

Fraser Valley Regional District

157



BYLAW 1375,2016 Page35of51

5.4 R-4 HILLSIDE RESIDENTIAL

Purpose: To provide Lots on the west side of the lake, varying In size and shape and located on
very steep terrain. Building conditions and the ability to access utilities to service lots
vary considerably due to rock outcropplng and the significant difference In height
from front and rear of the lot.

5.4,1 Permitted Uses
The following Uses are permitted In the R-4 Zone;

Primary Uses
5.4.1.1 Single-Detached Dweifing
5.4.1.2 Manufactured Home

Secondairy Uses
5.4.1.3 Accessory Uses

5.4.1.4 Boarding

S.4,2 Site Specific Permitted Uses

Currently no site specific permitted uses.

5*4<3 Regulations

COLUMN I
5.4.3.1

5.4.3.2

Density per Lot
Maximum Lot Coverage for all
BuWings/Structure for lots with a /or width
greater than 7.6 m or a length greater than
19.8m.

Maximum Building /Structure Height
5.4.33

5.4.3.4

5.4.3.5

5.4.3.6

Pffndpa! Building/Structure

Accessory BuHdlng/Structure (less than 10m2)
Accessory Bu?g/Structwe ^Greater
that10m2)

Parking spaces

COLUMN II
One (1) Slngte-Detached Dwelling Unit

60%

8.5m (28ft) Maximum two (2) Stories plus
Basement or Crawlspace and roof.
3m (10ft)
4m (13ft)

2

158



BYLAW 1375,2016 Page 36 of 51

5.4.4 Setbacks from Lot Lines

Single Family
Dwelling 5AAwAS

Eaves, Gutters and
Sunlight Controls

Decks, Balconies,
5.4,4,2

Uncovered
external stairs
Supporting Posts
for Decks,

Balconies
Chimneys/ China
Cabinets, Eating
NOOkS 5A4.1*5A43

Cantitevered Bay
Windows S-4A1-SA4'4

In-ground
structuresSA4-5

Patios 5-4A&

Retaining Walls,
Curbs, atgrade
stairs"-4-7

Accessory
Residential
Accessory
Residential Eaves/
Gutters

Front Lot
Line

3.0m

1.5m

1.5m

1,5m

2.1m

2.4m

2.4m

0.3m

0

0

3.0m

2.7m

Rear Lot
Line

1.8m

0.9m

0.9m

0.9m

1,5m

1.2m

1.2m

0.3m

0

0

o.em

0.45m

Exterior
Lot line

0.6m

0.45m

0.6m

0.6m

0.6m

0.6m

0.6m

0.3m

0

0

0.6m

0.45m

Interior Lot Line
Lot Width
Equal to or
less than
7.62m (25ft)

0.6m

0.45m

0.6m

0.6m

0.6m

0.6 m

0.6m

0.3m

0

0

0.6m

0.45m

Lot width
greater than
7.62m (25ft)
and less
than or
equal to
9.144m
(30ft)

0.9m

0.75m

0,9m

0.6m

0.6m

0.9m

0.9m

0.3m

0

0

0.9m

0.75m

Lot Width
greater than
9.144m
(30ft)

1.2m

1.05m

1.2m

0.6m

0.6m

1.2m

1.2m

0.3m

0

0

1.2m

1.05m

All measurements are in meters and are unobstructed and open to the sky.

5.4.4.1 Building claddlng materials such as siding, brick, stucco, hardy-board or materials required to
enhance fire resistance may project 3.0 centlmetres Into any required setback.

5.4.4.2 Decks or Balconies shall have no enclosing walls. Decks or Balconies may have guard railings
and may have screening to maximum height of 1.5 metres above the floor of the Deck or
Balconies.

159



BYLAW 1375,2016 Page 37 of 51

5.4.4.3 Chimney/ China Cabinets/ Eating Nooks shall not exceed 1 .8 metres In length or 0.6 metres In
depth.

5.4.4.4 Cantilevered Bay Window shall not exceed 3.0 metres In length or 0.6 metres In depth.

5.4.4.5 tn-ground structure means an In-ground swimming pool, in-ground stairs/ or other
underground structures. No potlon of an In-ground structure shall extend more than 0.3
metres above grade, except for required guard railings.

5.4.4.6 Patios may be constructed of concrete asphalt, rock/ gravel/ wood or earth and shall not
exceed 0.45 metres in height.

5.4.4.7 At grade stairs, which are set into the natural grade, may be sited anywhere on a fot.
Retaining Walls and Curbs may be constructed of concrete, wood, stone, rock or masonry
and have no height restrictions. All retaining walls must be applicable BC Building Code
requirements as amended from time to time.

5.4.4.8 All structures, required guard railings and building materials must meet BC Building Code
requirements as amended from time to time.

5*4*5 Additional Regulations forthis Zone

5.4.5.1 Notwithstanding section 5.4.3.2 of this Bylaw, If the /of width or length of the Lot Is less than
7.6 metres and 19.8 metres respectively, Lot Coverage may be greater than 60% as long as
Setbacks are maintained and BC Building Code requirements are met.

5.4.5.2 A Manufactured Home shall have a minimum width and length of 6 metres excluding
approved additions and projections.

5.4.5.3 Plans for all Retaining Walls must be submitted to the Chief Building inspector for approval
prior to the Issuance of a permit. The Chief BuHdSng Inspector will determine the need for
engineering and the Height required.

160



^r

PLAN SHOWING THE CREATION OF LOT 216W FROH FORHER
PARK BOARD LAND. AND FORHER LOT 216B^ SECTION 36
TOWNSHIP 22 , CULTUS LAKE PAW BOARD.

LEGEND:
BEARINGS ARE ASTRONOHIC, AND ARE
DERIVED FROM PLAN OF MARCH 4, 1992.

FOUND PLACED

• o STANDARD IRON POST

a LEAD PtUG

THIS PLAN HILL NOT BE DEPOSITED
IN THE LAND TITLE OFFICE, LOT 216CH
MILL BE A LEASED LOT OF CULTUS LAKE
PARK BOARD LAND.

SCALE- 1 s 150 HETRIC

<??,6fy

fifiu
^1^

ALL DISTANCES ARE IN METRES.
AND ARE HORIZONTAL GROUND

SECTION 36 TOWNSHIP 22

^l^f ^tUN^SfS^BCLS 703
JWe^y 2016.

TUNBRIDGE & TUNBRIDGE
BRITISH COLUMBIA LAND SURVEYORS
CANADA LANDS SURVEYORS
6-7965 VENTURE PLACE, CHILLIWACK, B. C.

PHONE:604-792-4264 ALLANTQTUNBRIDQE. CA

FILE; GOUP F8C345/39-40B AWT
161



Reception

From: John Lee < „ .

Sent: September-04-19 10:55 AM

To: planning@fvrd.ca; Reception
Subject: Parking

Myself and my wife have lived at 27 Lakeshore Cultus Lake for 24 years.

Parking spots have always been very limited.

Many homes on Lakeshore Dr. only have one available parking spot on their property and no spot for a second vehicle
or for family or friends.

This is a common problem at Cultus Lake and in order to help alleviate this problem it would appear it has been
decided to require new construction to provide for 2 parking spots on the lease property. We support this requirement

when it results in easing the parking problem.

We understand that the owner of the lot above us 215 has applied fora variance to provide for parking on Monroefor
his new construction. He already arranged to purchase more land from the Parks Board.

To not allow for parking on Monroe would mean new construction would result in the losingofupto4ofthevery
limited parking spots on Lakeshore. This appears to be contrary to the intent to alleviate the parking problem.

We hope a reasonable solution solution can be found for this problem without the loss of any parking spots on
Lakeshore. Thanks for your consideration.

John and Rosemary Lee

Sent from myiPad

162



Rachel Litchfield

From:

Sent:

To:

Cc:

Subject:

Please see below...

Reception

Tuesday, September 03, 2019 10:54 AM
Rachel Litchfield
Dave DriedJger
FW: Parking on Lakeshore Drive

—"Original Messgfie""""

From: Ge off
Sent: September-03-19 10:23 AM

To: plannlng@fvrd.ca

Cc: Reception

Subject: Parking on Lakeshore Drive

To the Planning Department,

I live at 23 Lakeshore Drive and must park my car in one of the parking spots opposite #27 Lakeshore as we have 2 cars
and only 1 spot in front of our house to park.

Above the parking spots that 1 use is a lot #216 Lakeshore Drive owned by Mr. Graham Williams. Mr. Williams previously
appliedforandwasapprovedfora variance to allow for parking of 2 cars on the street above called Munroe avenue.

Unfortunately, as I was informed, six months passed and he had not yet started to build on his property.

In order to protect our limited number of parking spots on Lakeshore Drive, I am requesting that you approve a variance

which would allow him to build his house with 2 parking spots on Munroe Avenue instead of making him use our limited
parking spots on Lakeshore Drive.

Thank you for consideration of this important matter.

Sincerely,

Dr. Geoffrev W Iverson

163



Rachel Litchfield

From: Reception

Sent: Tuesday, September 03, 2019 9:19 AM
To: Rachel Litchfield
Cc; Dave Driediger
Subject: FW: Parking on Lakeshore Drive

Good morning,

Please see below...

—-Original Message—-

From: Nan Vye [mailto'

Sent; September-01-19 4:01 PM

To: Fraser Valley Regtnal District
Cc: Reception

Subject: Parking on Lakeshore Drive

Attention Planning Department,

Over the 47 years we have lived on Lakeshore Drive, parking has become a problem. In particular/ many of the houses

on the west side of Lakeshore (200 numbers), are high above road level, must access and park on IVlonroe. The lot at

215? Is no exception. The owners (G. Williams) of that lot applied for a variance to accommodate parking from Monroe
for that reason/ as with other properties in that area. If denied, not only would it take away 4+ park spaces on

Lakeshore, it would be an unnecessary challenge for the builder. Parking off Monroe on this piece of property makes

good sense.

We sincerely hope you consider this lot for the variance requested, which would solve not only the parking problem on
Lakeshore Drive but allow a much better parking situation for lot 215?

Sincerely

NanetteVye
Fred Granzow

CultusLakeB.C.V2R4Z9

Sent from myipad

164



^MS^hr
c^wtect' £c ^'resetus'

CULTUS LAKE PARK

REPORT/RECOMMENDATION TO BOARD

DATE: April 15, 2020 FILE: 216C

SUBMITTED BY: Joe Lamb
Acting Chief Administrative Officer

SUBJECT: Development Variance Permit 216C Lakeshore Drive

PURPOSE:

For the Board to consider the issuance of a Development Variance Permit to reduce an interior lot line
setback which is adjacent to the Cultus Lake Park Land.

RECOMIVtENDATION:

THAT the Cultus Lake Park Board supports the issuance of a Development Variance Permit for 216C
Lakeshore Drive to reduce the setback distance 0.6m from the dweitmg and a Om setback for the
eave/gutter to the interior property line.

DISCUSSION:

Details of the variance request are summarized in the attached report received from the Fraser Valley
Regional District (FVRD) Planning and Development Department. In discussion with Mr. Graham
Daneluz, Director of Planning & Development FVRD if the Cultus Lake Park Board approves the sale
of the additional lands to the applicant this DVP will still have to be considered. Mr. Daneluz provided
the following reasons:

Mr. Graham Williams has applied to FVRD for a Development Variance Permit to:

o Reduce the interior lot line setback to the building wall on the south property line from
1.2m to 0.60m; and,

o Reduce the setback to the eaves, gutters, deck and sunlight control structures from the
same lot line from 1.05m to Om.

With respect to the construction of a new single-family dwelling on the lot at 2016B Lakeshore Drive in
Cultus Lake Park.

Mr. Williams provided the following reasons in support of his application: 1) to support the provision of
off-street parking off Munroe rather than off Lakeshore where existing public parking spaces prevent
access to the lot; and, 2) to facilitate the desired house design. Mr. Williams feels that accessing the
lot from Munroe, rather than Lakeshore, results in a reduction in usable floor area within the proposed
dwelling and the variance is needed to accommodate both parking off Munroe and his desired house
design. While access/parking from Lakeshore would impact only the basement level of the house,
access/ parking from Monroe would impact prime floor area within level of the home that is
approximately at grade with Monroe Avenue.

s:\clpb documents\0550 board - meeting s\0550-70 - reports - board meeting s\2020\03 18 2020\216c report 2.doc 165



Prepared

/

/

^

by:

'7

./ //

/

^ .-y

. <.

Joe Lamb
Acting Chief Administrative Officer

166



Fraser Valley Regional District

PLANNING &
DEVELOPMENT

www, fvyc(. c a \ p la. n n iyig @fvr^. c A

February 5,2020 File: 3090-20 "2019-36

Bonny Bryant
Chief Administrative Officer
Cultus Lake Park
4165 Columbia Valley Highway
Cultus Lake, BC,V2R 585

Dear Ms. Bryant:

RE: DEVELOPMENT VARIANCE PERMIT APPLICATION FOR 216C LAKESHORE
DRIVE, CULTUS LAKE PARK

The Fraser Valley Regional District has received a Development Variance Permit Application (DVP) related
to the construction of a new single family dwelling on a residential lease lot in Cultus Lake Park. The
variance request is to reduce an interior lot line setback which is adjacent to Cultus Lake Park land.

As the proposed variance relatestomatterswithinthejurisdictionoftheParkBoard,wewould very much
appreciate comments from the Park Board on matters within the responsibility of the CLPB and the overall
feasibility of the variance. Any comments the CLPB provides will be taken into account by FVRD when
making a decision on the proposed variance.

Property Background and Variance Request

Theleaselotat216CLakeshore Drive has an area of 213.6m2 (2299 sq. ft.) and an average width of 12m (39
ft). The property has road frontage on both Munroe Avenue and Lakeshore Drive. There are currently 4-5

parking spaces on the CLP road between Lakeshore Drive and the subject lot. Additional property details
are provided in Appendix A.

The lease lot is zoned R-4 (Hillside Residential) under Cuttus Lake Park Zoning Bylaw No. 1375,2016.J[\e
[ease holder has requested to reduce the southern interior lot line setback for the dwelling and the eaves/
gutters as follows:

Interior (South) Lot Line Setback

Required

Proposed

Requested Variance

Single Family Dwelling

1.2 metres (4 feet)

0.6 metres (2 feet)

0.6 metres (2 feet)

Eaves, Gutters

1.05 metres (3.4 feet)

0 metres (0 feet)

1.05 metres (3.4 feet)

The result would be a 0.6m setback from the dwelling and a Om setback from the eave/gutter to the

interior property line.

167



Variance Rational

The lease holder provided preliminary designs showing on-site parking and garage access from Lakeshore

Drive. This design would result in the loss of existing on-street parking on Lakeshore Drive.

Subsequently, the applicant submitted a preliminary design with vehicle access and egress from Munroe

Avenue. This option would provide ample on-site parking (2-3 spaces) to meet FVRD zoning requirements,

and would preserve the existing parking on Lakeshore Drive. This design, with no variance, would result in

a smaller area of habitable space than could be achieved with vehicle access from Lakeshore Drive. The

applicant advises the variance will help to achieve a viable design with on-site parking that does not
impact the parking on Lakeshore Drive. The proposed site layout is included in Appendix B.

The applicant is requesting the variance in conjunction with the potential lease of additional CLP lands. At
this point in time, we are considering the variance on its own merits, regardless of any additional land

purchase.

Important Considerations

In providing comments, the CLPB may wish to consider:

• Future use of the neighbouring lot The setback variance may impact future construction on

adjacent CLP lands.
• Leaseholder access to the neighbouring lot for house maintenance (gutter cleaning, etc.)

• Other relevant information

Next Steps

If possible/ please consider this referral at the February 1 9, 2020 CLPB meeting so that the variance may be
addressed by the FVRD Electoral Area Services Committee in March 2020. We request receipt of any
comments by February 26,2020 to avoid delay to the applicant.

Please contact me at 604-702-5484 or at jmundy3fvrd.ca with any questions or concerns.

Sincerely,

,^4: ^^M

JulieMundy
Planner 1

ccTaryn Dixon, Electoral Area H

45950 CfwamAvL'nue ! Chilliw?d<, 8C | V2P )N6 Phone: 604-702-5000 | Toll Frep: 1-800-528-0061 F,-i?<: 604-792-9684

168



APPENDIX A - PROPERTY INFORMATION

NEIGHBOURHOOD MAP

45950 Cheam Avenue I Chilliwack, BC I V^P1M6 Phone: 604-?02-500Q | Toll Free: 1-800-528-0061 ; F3x: 604-792-9684

169



Electoral Area

Address

Pl D
Folio

Lot Size

Owner

Current Zoning

Current OCP

Current Use

Agricultural Land

North

East

West

South

PROPERTY DETAILS

H
216CLakeshoreDrivefr

n/a

733.07000.350

213m2 (2299 sq. ft)

Graham Williams

Hillside Residential (R"4)

n/a

Empty Lot

Agent Graham Williams

Proposed Zoning No change

Proposed OCP n/a

Proposed Use Residential

Reserve No

A

>

<

v

ADJACENT ZONING & LAND USES

Hillside Residential (R-4); Single-family Residence

Wateriront Residential (R-3); Single-family Residence

Conservation Area (P-2); Forest

Local Park (P-1); Bare land

45950 Cheam Avenue | Chiiiiw^ck, BC ] V2P1N6 Phone: 604-702-5000 | To)! Free: 1-800-528-0061 Fax: 604.792-9684

170



APPENDIX B - SITE PLAN

JCR \}e^\(^\ LU
A PuiUinq P^Eqn Compani|

?12 - 4^71 ^ Hockinq Ave, Chllllwack, P,C, V2P 6Z6
Ph; 604 402 0051 Email; o^\cG@\a^\^ca

To whom it may concern;

Attached is a site plan drawing representing a proposed boundary adjustment and setback
variances.

• We are proposing an 8-foot expansion of the lot to the south.

• We are proposing a reduced interior lot line setback on the south property line from 1.2m
to 0.60m.

• We are proposing a reduction in the eaves, gutters and sunlight control interior lot line
setback on the south side of the lot from 1.05m to Om

The site plan is a visual representation of these variances. If you have any comments or
questions, please contact us.

Regards,
Jesse Rayner
Owner

JCR Design Ltd.

171



172



DATE:

SUBMITTED BY:

SUBJECT:

^M&'to/
^zolec^ &- ^•lesewe'

CULTUS LAKE PARK

REPORT/RECOMMENDATION TO BOARD

April 15, 2020

Joe Lamb
Acting Chief Administrative Officer

Development Variance Permit 29 Lakeshore Drive

PURPOSE:

For the Board to consider the issuance of a Development Variance Permit to allow for an additional
story plus a basement or crawlspace.

RECOMMENDATION:

Option 1

THAT the Cultus Lake Park Board support the Development Variance Permit for 29 Lakeshore Drive.

OptLpn_2

THAT the Cultus Lake Park Board not support the Development Variance Permit for 29 Lakeshore
Drive.

DISCUSSION:

Details of the variance request are summarized in the attached report received from the Fraser Valley
Regional District Planning and Development Department.

Prepared by:

,/'

":/--1

Joe Lamb
Acting Chief Administrative Officer

s:\clpb documents\0550 board - meelings\0550-70 - reports - board meelings\2020\03 18 2020\29w dup.doc 173



174



I ^NNnlNiGF&T www.fvrd,^ | pla^i^@f^.^
Fraser Valley Regional District

File No. 3090-20 2020-03

February 27,2020

Bonny Bryant
Chief Administrative Officer
Cultus Lake Park
4165 Columbia Valley Highway
V2R5B5

DearMs.Bryanti

Re: Referral of Development Variance Permit Application for 29 Lakeshore Drive/ Cultus Lake
Park

The Fraser Valley Regional District has received an application for a Development Variance Permit (DVP) in
Cultus Lake Park. We are Inviting you to provide comments on the application.

The DVP application is to permit an additional storey for a house at 29 Lakeshore Drive. The lease lot is
zoned R-3 (Waterfront Residential) under Cultus Lake Park Zoning Bylaw No. 1375, 2016, which allows for a
building to have a maximum of 2 stories, plus a basement or a crawlspace.

The DVP application Is to allow three stories, plus a basement. The proposal will adhere to the maximum
permitted height In the R-3 zone. A copy of the application is attached for your review.

Please identify your organizations comments related to the following:
• Applicable Cultus Lake Park bylaws or policies,
* Technical concerns, or

• Knowledge or Information useful to the proposal

If we have not heard from you by IVIarch 25, 2020, we wltl proceed with processing of the application.
Please do not hesitate to contact me should you have any questions, or if you need more time to provide
comments,

Sincerely,
Digitally signed by Julle

Uv, ^-^ MurKlyl
^ Date:2020.02.2715;41:21

V -OB'OO'

JulieMundy
Planner 1

Enclosure: Application Package - DVP 2020-03 - 29 Lakeshore Drive

45ti50Cl?Am Avenue | ChlllJwAC^OC | V2P1N6 Phone: 60'1-702-SOOQ j Toil Fiec; 1-800-528-0061 ! fw. 604-792-9684

175



PrasorViilloy Regional Dlstiict

PLANNING &
DEVELOPMENT www.fvy^, ca [ p((t^^i^g@fvy^, crt

SCMEDULEA-4
I / We hereby apply under Part 14 of the Local Government Act for a;

(X I DevelopmentVariance Permit

Permit Application

II Temporary Use Permit

D Development Permit

An Application Fee In the amount of $_

upon submission of this application.

. as stipulated In FVRD Application Fees Bylaw No, 1231,2013 must be paid

Civic

Address
29 lakeshore Drive, Cultus Lake

PID

Lot" _Blod<_ Sectlon_ JTownshlp, ..Range, .Ptan_Legal
Description

The property described above is the subject of this applkat'ion and Is referred to herein as the 'subject property/This appflccstlofi fs made

with my full knowledge and consent, t declare that the fnformation submitted in support of the application is true and correct In alf

respects.

Owner's

Declaration
Name of Owner (print)

Antonio Kelly Mendonca

Name of Owner (print)
Shelby Mendonca

natc
Feb.7, 2020

Date
Feb 7, 2020

Owner's

Contact

Information

Address City
Cultus Late

Email

Phone

Postal Code
V2R 5R3

Fax

Office Use
Oflly

Date ,
2o2o-t;>ZT-'-0"nl

Received,
¥ST<YkM^^

Receipt ^0.ilpTo,^^

File No,

Folio No.

.•SOCjo-to

_32>3Lt4)<ume?,_c^
Fees Paid: $ 1^0 D

:lf); '.li

4S950Ctie3mAvcnue j Cliilllwack, OC i V2P1N6 Phone: 604-702-50M I Toll Free; 1-000-528-0061 Fax; 604-792-9684

176



Ac<ont fhereby give permission to..

application.

to act as my/our agent In all matters relatfng to this

Only complete this section !f
tlie applicant Is

NOTihe owner,

r>l(|fiaturoof0'.'iin;r

Slynature of Owner

Datc

Oatc-

Agent's contact

SnformatSon and

declaration

OevelupKtent Oeifciils

Ptopeny Size

fcxisting Use

Proposed Development,

t'liHneofAyc.'nl

Address

Eniflll

Plume

Compnny

Cell

:ity

Piiital Code

Fax

I declare thatthe information submitted in support of this application Is true and correct fr> all respects.

Sfgndtticpuf Agent j Date

Present Zoning

Proposed Variation / Supplement
Add Extra Basement

Ou id^xe^ A 3c) S CCB^ c/ Kaxp^z-e^J
^

(usfi separote sheet If nccesiary)

Reasons In Support of Application Extremely steePlo^241bdow9ara9eto 9round-

Both existing neighbor to north & south are in support of the variance. The variance does not

affect the height. Approx 10 lake front lot out of 107 have steep grades. Parking is an issue, this

plan maximizes parking. Road Height & garage floor height does not work with this lot

45MOCIiCTmAv<;nilc ) CliHliwack.CC I V2F' 1M6 Plioni'; 004-71^-5000 i TollFreff: l-800-52?^061 Fax; 604-?92.9S94

177



i'/ovnidt)! ^(•'qujt'fmu'nt^ (This Is not 911 exhaustive list; other provincial regulations will apply)

Riparian
Areas

Regulation

Please indicate whether the development proposal Involves residential, commercial/ or
Including vegetation removal or alteration; soil disturbance; construction of buildings

and structures; creation of (mpervlous or semi-pen/ious surfaces; trails, roads, docks,
wharves, bridges and/ infrastructure and works of any ktnd - within:

3

^

I

>

30 metres of the high water mark of any water body

a ravine or within 30 metres of the top of a ravine bank

"Water body" Includes; 1) a watercourse, whether It usually contains water or not; 2) a pond, ,
take/ river, creek, or brook; 3) a ditch, spring, or wetland that Is connected by surface flow to 1
or 2 above.

Under the RiparSan Areas Regulation and the Fish Protection Act, a riparian area assessment
report may be required before this application can be approved.

Contaminated Pursuant to the EnvSronmenta! Management Act, an applicant Is required to submit a
Sites Profile completed "Site Profile" for properties that are or were used for purposes indicated In

Schedules of the Contaminated Sites Regulations. Please indicate If;

the property has been used for commercial or industrial purposes.

If you responded 'yes/you may be required to submit a Site Profile. Please contact FVRD
Planning or the Ministry of Environment for further Information.

yes no

Archaeological Are there archaeological sites or resources on the subject property?

Resources
yes no I don't know

If you responded 'yes' or 'I don't know' you may be advised to contact the Archaeology
Branch of the Ministry of Tourism, Sport and the Arts for further Information.

-15950 Chcam Avenue | Clillliw.tdi.BC ] V2P INd
'-'^s^'ssa,. . ~ , iisas3-^x.'^ss,ss3:s~^'_awcicSsi's~^M ..:'. ~.~' eimaie^Ks—'•:.„? n

Phone: 60<1-702-5&00 I Toll Free: 1-800-528-0061 Fax; M4-792-968'!

178



U(-<.^T('aJI iii't'nr^'i^ion

When providing Application Forms to the applicant, Regional District staff shall indicate which of the following
attachments are required for this application. Additional Infoirmation may also be required at a later date.

location IVIap

Site Plan

At a scale of:

1:__ _

Floor Plans

Landscape

Plan

Same scale
as site plan

Reports

Required Received Details

Showing the parcel (s) to which tills application pertains and uses on
adjacent parcels

Reduced sets of metric plans

North arrow and scale

Dimensions of property lines/ nghts-of-ways, easements
Location and dimensions of existing buildings & setbacks to lot lines,
rights-of-ways, easements

Location and dimensions of proposed buildings & setbacks to lot lines,
rights-of-ways, easements

Location of all water features, including streams, wetlands, ponds/
ditches, lakes on or adjacent to the property
Location ofal! existing & proposed water lines, wells, septic fields,
sanitary sewer & storm drain, Including sizes

Location, numbering & dimensions of all vehtcte and bicycle parking,
disabled persons' parking, vehicle stops & loading
Natural & finished grades of site, at buildings & retaining wails
Location of existing & proposed access, pathways

Above ground services/ equipment and exterior lighting details

Location & dimensions of free-standing signs

Storm water management inffsstructufe and impetmesble surfaces
Other;

Uses of spaces & building dimensions

Other;
Location, quantity, size & species of existing & proposed plants, trees &
turf
Contour Information (_ metre contour intervals)

Major topographlcal features (water course, rocks, etc.)

All screening, paving, retaining walls & other details

Traffic circulation (pedestrian, automobile, etc.)

Other;
Geotechnical Report
Environmental Assessment

Archaeological Assessment

Other:

The personal Information on tills form Is being collected In accordance with Section 26 of the Freedom oflnformatSon and

Pfotection of Privacy Act, RSBC 1996 Ch. 165 and the Local Government Act, RSBC201S Ch. t It will only be collected, used and

disclosed for the purpose of administering matters with respect to planning, land use management and related services delivered,

or proposed to be delivered, by the FVRO. Questions about the use of personal Information and the protection of privacy may be

directed to the FVRD Privacy Officer at 45950 Cheam Avenue, ChiHlwack, BC V2P 1N6,Tel: 1-800-528-0061 FOIff&furd.ca.

t'.•<.(•:

fFT^-~fis^"''rp'T'iT"T-~':^~-

-15?'50Cheam Avenue | ChllH',vack.BC I V2P IN6 Phone; 604-702-SOOti ! TollFree: 1-800.S28-0061 Fax: 604-7(>2-?68^t

179



Cultus Lake Park Board

4165 Columbia Valley Road

CultusLake, BCV2R5B5

To Whom it May Concern,

My wife and I have recently submitted an application to the Fraser Valley Regional District for a

variance at 29 Lakeshore Drive. The variance requested ts to add a second basement to the

dwelling to facilitate the house reaching the existing grade; which sits at 24 feet below the crown

of the road.

We are long time residents of Cultus Lake, presently residing at 45642 Rachael Place. In October

2019 we purchased 29 Lakeshore Drive with the intent to build our forever home. The purpose of

reaching out to the Park Office is to garner the Boards support for our variance application.

Precision Design drafted our plan to maximize parking to alleviate some of burden from the

common area parking. (Please refer to attachment A)

The consequences of designing a house with a garage on a steep lot is that we push our house

further over the steep grade/ unlike lots Just south of us with similar grades and no garages. (For

example, lots 32,33,35,36/37,38,40,43/44) These homeowners were able to teep the house tight to

the bank reducing the drop in grade; sacrificing parking in process and adding additional congestion

to the street.

Please find attached (schedule B) a Topography Survey from Vector that shows our tot sloping 24

feet or 7.35 meters from the center of road to back of lot. The distance from the floor in the garage

to existing grade is over 22 feet.

The plans we recently submitted to the FVRD meet the both the current height restrictions and

other property setbacks. We are not planning on building our home higher than other homes in the

area, simply looking for a common sense approach to get from bottom of garage floor to existing

grade that maintains curb appeal for both ourselves and the neighboring properties.

Our submitted proposal, by Precision Design, is a combination of crawlspace and part full height

basement that works well with the existing slope of the lot. The current zoning seems to work with

the majority of lots/ however out of the 107 lake front parcels, only about 10 have the steep terrain

similar to that of lot 29 Lakeshore Drive.

180



With a maximum allowable basement height of 9 Ft and no option to put In a crawl space we are tasked

with looking at other options to get house up to the existing ground level.

There are several other homes on Lakeshore drive that have set a precedent for this already and the

home under construction located at 309 Monroe received this variance as well. We look forward to your

support on this matter.

Kind regards

Kelly Mendonca & Shelby Mendonca

Please feel free to call for any clarification or discussion

181



This is the road side rendering. To show how it will look from the street. It is modest. And you can see front of
house is all garage. Entrance on side.

"s/r

182



Even at 2 floors below garage. House still has steps exiting to backyard.

183



More pictures attached of houses without garage is on the side of the road; you can see from our design we have
tried to maximize parking, which in effect pushes us further out over tlie cliff.

W^M/.-^^^M
^v*wt'm^~\. ;:^[ ^'%

.iF/Ult '^^^.J-^'^^l S^IE?^

184



185



186



A lot of these older houses have no parking due to the steep lots. As the garage pushes the houses over steeper and
Steeper terrain,

187



188



189



190



191



^
era

192



'•". "•' .'•'' ;<^ET //

<.::^i^li:'
.-^^^'•.. '.

£'y.';''
:—'3»'.'-; • •

La.'lce.S^e'^

•i

'v::^l~.. '

"^ ^:^^
.,i.^.g.^"' - .0-

--^:- ^:y':'-" ^-

- I^^A^ ' - .

r 7 .v "I .' " •'

(&-?.-s'
l.U-.BT

•S.:5-

- ^ ^"

•V. -

•Vh,

Ic' '!" .^'

•"^ A . ' ''

ft'--'

>-*

-o

Z3
0
-0

m
T̂
03
0
c
30
I
o
0
0

>
•o

X?
-1

z
~n

0
Xt

>

0

193



PROPERTY DETAILS

Electoral Area

Address

H

PID
29 Lakeshore Drive

n/a

Folio 733.07000.029

Lot Size

Owner

Current Zoning

Current OCP

Current Use

3250 Square feet

Ketly & Sheiby Mendonca

Waterfront Residential (R-3)

n/a

Residential

Agent

Proposed Zoning

Proposed OCP

Proposed Use

n/a

No change

n/a

No change

Development Permit Areas n/a

Agricultural Land Reserve No

North

East

West

South

A

>

<

v

ADJACENT ZONING & LAND USES

Waterfront Residential (R-3); Single-family Residences

Local Park & Recreation (P-1); Cultus Lake

Local Park & Recreation (P-1); Park area

Waterfront Residential (R-3); Single-famlly Residences

194



. ^"l .^'1 .
1 in j inn j illUJUJiiLL_J|L n

tv
! I I 111
y_Uji
f"i^'t'^-3."

yni

r^piiii^WQITJ
BCEt ABCmTBCOTKB Nffl|i°t"id

KrtiyHnnu lCWmatonPwmltDiamigi
2SW L*athomDT.,&ifca w».iB.6EIBnttens

r"

195



196



<@wis/io'

<^wted/ &' ^resewe'

CULTUS LAKE PARK

REPORT/RECOMMENDATION TO BOARD

DATE: March 18, 2020 FILE: 0550-70

SUBMITTED BY: Dave Driediger,
Manager of Park Operations

SUBJECT: Residential Recycling Report

PURPOSE:

To provide the Board with information on options to accommodate changes to residential recycling
collection.

RECOMIVIENDATION:

THAT the Cultus Lake Park Board direct the Chief Administrative Officer to provide leaseholders with
a standardized recycling tote in either 120L or 240L capacity as set out in Option 3 below; and

THAT the Cultus Lake Park Board direct the Chief Administrative Officer to fund the purchase of
standardized recycling totes, $17,000 from Operations and $45,000 from Accumulated Surplus.

BACKGROUND:

At the February 19, 2020 Board meeting the Board discussed upcoming changes to the collection of
mixed recycling as well as glass and plastic bags. Changes to regulations mandate complete
separation of garbage, recycling and organics and mixed recycling may no longer include glass and
plastic bags. The Sardis Bottle Depot accepts a wide range of materials (see Attachment 1) including
glass and plastic. The facility is located at 45635 Lark Rd. and accepts materials free of charge seven
days a week.

Given the cost of glass collection service the Board opted to leave disposal to the discretion of
leaseholders contingent on community feedback. Over the past month the Cultus Lake Community
Association asked leaseholders through email and social media how they would prefer to see
recycling managed. In conversations with the Association Chair, staff learned that approximately 75
percent of residents indicated their preference was to recycle glass at the bottle depot rather than pay
for curbside collection.

On top of the changes to recycling contents, in the future mixed recycling materials must be set out for
collection in a bin. Recycling material contained in plastic bags will no longer be collected. Only
garbage destined for the landfill may be bagged in plastic prior to disposal.

S:\clpb documents\0550 Board - Meetings\0550-70 - Reports - Board Meetings\202G\2020 03 18

197



DISCUSSION:

The Board has a number of options available to manage the shift in recycling collection including:

1. Leaving the purchase of residential recycling bins to the discretion of leaseholders;
2. Providing leaseholders with a 120L Rubbennaid-style recycling bin and lid; or
3. Providing leaseholders with the choice of either a 120L or 240L standardized tote.

Option 1

Staff is reluctant to manage recycling through a variety of containers with or without secure lids. This
past summer the BC Conservation Officer Service reported responding to a record number of bear
complaints in the Lower Mainland. Like the surrounding region, the Park's rural setting affords
significant opportunity for interactions with wildlife. At the January 15, 2020 Board meeting the Board
discussed steps to reduce the availability of animal attractants and improve our community's health
and safety and accessibility. Recent amendments to Property Maintenance Bylaw No. 1149, 2019 will
provide structured garbage, recycling and organic bin set out times and ensure all containers are
stored securely on leased lots rather than on park land. Regardless, recycling label stickers for
containers could be made available to the community through the park office for a one time cost of
$1,200.

Option 2

As a second option, the Board may wish to consider provision of standardized, secure containers.
120L Rubbermaid-style recycling containers with lids are available at a cost of $32 each. The $17,000
cost to outfit the entire community can be absorbed by the 2020 residential waste collection budget
(Table 1) and staff has the ability to deliver the containers to each residence.

Option 3

Staffs recommended option is to provide ieaseholders with a standardized tote similar to those which
house organics. The wheeled totes have secure locking lids, are capable of mechanical service and
come equipped with an RF identification tag. Tags are commonly registered with the corresponding
residential address at delivery and communicate with the collection truck's onboard receiver. When
used in conjunction with the truck's camera, Valley Waste and Recycling (VWR) is able to reduce
cross contamination and ensure that no collection sites are overlooked.

Blue recycling totes are available in two different sizes, 120L and 240L. Cost of the totes assembled,
delivered and registered to the address are $110 and $120 respectively. Should the Board wish to
pursue this option, staff will survey the community to establish desired tote size and place the order
accordingly. Where leaseholders cannot be reached, delivery will default to the larger 240L tote.
Individuals who wish to request a specific tote or have recycling service questions may write to:
recvclinq@cultuslake.bc.ca.

In the past VWR collected unlimited curbside recycling; that is, no limit was placed on volume of
recycling material set out at a residence. Under this option however, like organics, VWR will only
collect what can be contained in the tote provided. In cases where a leaseholder may have additional
recycling, totes will be made available for purchase by VWR or the material can be dropped off at the
bottle depot along with glass.

198



Table 1. Recycling container funding options

2020 Financial Impact

Residential Recycling Costs On-Time Cost Proposed Funding Source

Option 1 •

Owner provided Container $
No effect to budget

Option 2 - $ 17/000 Currently Budgeted Operational Funds

1201 Rubbermaid-Style Container 45,000 Accumulated Surplus

Total $ 62,000

Option 3 -

120L/240L Blue Recycling Totes $ 17,000
Currently Budgeted Operational Funds

STRATEGIC PLAN:

This report does not impact the Board's Strategic Plan Initiative.

Prepared by:

£>t^u-^-^^

Approved for submission to the Board:

Dave Driediger
Manager of Park Operations

<Y') CL^/^^7,̂
feonny BryfHt
Chief Adrtiinistrative Officer

199



Attachment 1

TIME TO BE
WASTE WISE!

The Fraser Valley Regional District
has adopted a waste sorting bylaw.

It applies to all owners or occupiers
of residential, commercial, industrial

and institutional properties in
Abbotsford, Chilliwack, Harrison Hot

Springs, Hope, Agassiz, Mission and
all FVRD Electoral Areas.

To comply, recyclable and
compostable material must be

sorted out of the garbage. This

means you will need different

bins for recycling, compost,

and garbage.These three types
of material must be sorted/

kept separate, and delivered to
authorized facilities either by you

or by a private hauler.

Many helpfu! resources are
available at BeWasteWise.com

or call 1-800-667-4321 if

you have questions

Didyouknow...

Almost 2/3 of
garbage currently

sent to landfills
in our region can
be recycled or
composted.

Start today. Sort it outl

WHAT BAGS
CAN I USE?

Only garbage destined
for the landfill can be
bagged in plastic prior
to disposal.

Bags will not be
accepted with
recyclables

Use only paper bags
to line your kitchen
catcher and/or compost

bin. Plastic bags,
even those labelled
compostable or
biodegradable, are
not accepted with
compostables.

TO LEARN MORE

Visit BeWasteWse.com or
Call the Recycling Council of

BC at 1-800-667-4321.

Fraser vy ley Regional District

200



RECYCLING

PLASTIC PRODUCTS

COMPOST

^Milk Jugs

^CIamshell
Packaging

v^Food Tubs & Lids

^Plastic Beverage
Containers

PAPER PRODUCTS

'/Boxboard

^Cardboard

^Paper Cups

^Paper Egg
Cartons

v^Paper Food Bags

^Tetra Pak*
Containers

^Magazines

'/Phone Books

^Greeting Cards

^Newspapers

^Flyers

^Envelopes

^Loose Leaf Paper

METAL CONTAINERS

&
5

^Aerosol Spray
Cans

^Aluminum Cans
& Lids

^Aluminum Foils
& Trays

^Tin Cans & Lids

FOOD WASTE

^Fruits &
Vegetables

-^Dairy Products

^Eggs & Egg Shells

^Pasta & Grains

'/Baked Goods

^Chips & Crackers

^)^
^Meat, Poultry &

Bones

^Fish & Seafood

^PIate Scrapings

^Salad & Dressing

^Tea Bags & Tags

^Coffee Grounds
& Filters

FOOD-SOILED PAPER &
WOODEN UTENSILS

*/Paper Plates

"^Paper Towels

^Napkins & Tissue
Paper

'/Paper Takeout
Containers

^Wooden Chop
Sticks

v^Skewers

v^Stir Sticks

vr/Toothpicks

YARD WASTE

^Flowers & Weeds

^Grass Clippings

^Leaves & Moss

^Plants & Shrubs
(No Soil or Rocks)

^Small Trimmings
& Branches

LANDFILL

^Diapers

^Pet Waste

^Non-Reusable

Clothing &
Foot Ware

^Ceramics &
Window Glass

^Painted or
Treated Wood

^Personal Hygiene
Products

•^Plastic Squeeze
Tubes

^Straws& Plastic
Cutlery

TAKE THESE ITEMS TO YOUR NEAREST
BOTTLE DEPOT FOR FREE RECYCLING

^Refundable
Beverage
Containers

^Batteries

^Electronics

^Small Electrical
Appliances

^Light Bulbs

^Crinkly,
Cellophane
Wrappers & Bags

-^Pesticides &
Flammable
Liquids

^Paint Cans

^GIass
Containers

^Foam
Packaging

^Plastic Bags
& Overwrap

201



202



 

s:\clpb documents\0550 board - meetings\0550-70 - reports - board meetings\2020\04 15 2020\2020.04.15 first avenue parking request.doc 

 
 

 
 

CULTUS LAKE PARK 
 

REPORT/RECOMMENDATION TO BOARD 
 
DATE: April 15, 2020  FILE:  0550  
 
SUBMITTED BY: Jacquie Spencer,  
 Manager of Visitor Services, Accommodations & Bylaw Enforcement  
 
SUBJECT:  255 First Avenue Parking Request 
 
 
 
PURPOSE:  
 
To provide the Board with information on parking request at 255 First Avenue.  
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
 

THAT the Cultus Lake Park Board direct the Acting Chief Administrative Officer to grant the 

parking request at 255 First Avenue to move their designated parking area from First Avenue 

to Birch Street, provided;  

 

a) The previously designated parking areas along First Avenue is relinquished; and 

 

b) That if a leaseholder wishes to sign their designated parking area, the cost and 

responsibility to do so be shouldered by the leaseholder and signage is posted on 

leased land. 

 
DISCUSSION: 
 
In September of 2018, the leaseholders of 255 First Avenue requested permission from the Board to 
place parking signage along the Birch Street portion of their lot for designated parking. The matter of 
First Avenue parking request was brought forward at the August 21, 2019 Regular meeting of the 
Board. The following motion was approved: 
 
4462-19 THAT the Cultus Lake Park Board provided staff with direction to request that the 

leaseholder of 255 First Ave remove all encroachments on park property; and  
 
THAT the leaseholder be contacted to remove the hedge from around the stop sign as 
well as on the First Avenue sides of the property within 60 days.  

 
The leaseholders have removed the hedge from around the stop sign as well as on the First Avenue 
sides of the property (pictured). The leaseholder wishes to receive permission for designated parking 
on the Birch Street side of the leasehold property.  
  

203



 

  

2 
 
 
Section 7.2 of the Parking and Traffic Regulations Bylaw No. 1154, 2019 states: 
 

“The Registered Leaseholder(s) or Current Occupant(s) in the residential areas have exclusive 
right to the allocated land to which the residence is addressed between lot lines detailed in the 
Cultus Lake Park Zoning Bylaw No. 1375, 2016 solely for the purpose of parking a motor 
vehicle (the “Designated Area”).  Where a property borders two roadways as in the case of a 
corner lot, the side to which the residence is addressed will represent the Designated Area. 
Any consideration for additional parking at a corner lot must be submitted in writing to the 
Cultus Lake Park Board for approval, based on parking availability and traffic safety 
considerations.” 

 
Staff have not identified any traffic safety concerns with respect to granting designated parking at the 
Birch Street side of the property.  
 
 
STRATEGIC PLAN:  
 
This report does not impact the Board’s Strategic Plan. 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 
 
Photo of 255 First Avenue taken February 27, 2020 
 
 
_________________________________________________________________________________ 
 
 
Prepared by:  Approved for Submission to the Board by: 

      
_____________________________ _____________________________ 
Jacquie Spencer Joe Lamb  
Manager of Visitor Services, Accommodations  Acting Chief Administrative Officer  
and Bylaw Enforcement 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

204



 

  

3 
 
 
 
 
 
 
255 First Avenue as of February 27, 2020 
 

 

205



206



207



208



209



210



211



212



213



214



215



216



217



218



<@itwta'
^totecf' &r ef>wswtue/

REPORT/RECOMMENDATION TO BOARD

DATE: April 15, 2020 FILE: 0550

SUBMITTED BY: Rachel Litchtield,
Executive Assistant

SUBJECT: COVfD - 19 Update

PURPOSE:

To provide the Cultus Lake Park Board with information on measures put into place with respect to
COVID-19.

RECOMMENDATION:

THAT the Cultus Lake Park Board receive the report on COVID -19 for information.

DISCUSSION:

On March 17, 2020 following the direction of the federal and provincial governments and health
authorities on announcements ofCOVID- 19 the following measures have been put into place for the
health and safety of community members, staff and Board:

> March 17, 2020, all events of more than 50 people were cancelled
> March 18, 2020, the Regular Board meeting was cancelled, agenda items to be moved to

April 15, 2020 Board meeting, public facilities, including the Community Hall, Visitor Service
office, public washrooms located at Main Beach, Oak St. Park, and at the Cultus Lake Plaza
were closed, while porta potties were accessible

> March 18, 2020, Committee meetings were cancelled
> March 19, 2020, Cultus Lake Park office dosed to the public
> March 20, 2020, closures of Main Beach docks, Main Beach and Sunnyside Campground

playgrounds were also closed with snow fencing blocking access
> March 21, 2020, Cultus Lake Park Parking Lots were closed with gates locked as well as the

Cuitus Lake Elementary School parking lot closures
> March 21, 2020, signage and barriers were placed at both Lakeshore Drive access and

Sunnyside Blvd. with notices stating "Closed to Visitors until further notice, Residents Only"
> March 23, 2020, Sunnyside Campground seasonal opening delayed until April 30, 2020 to

align with Provincial direction
> March 25, 2020, Oak St. parking area was cordoned off with pylons and flagging tape
> March 31, 2020, Cultus Lake Dog Play Zone behind the plaza closed
> March 17-31, 2020, staff have coordinated signage throughout the Park to encourage

Social Distancing

219



► April 2, 2020, temporary fencing was placed in the plaza parking lot to limit parking and
access to the dog play zone area

► April 2, 2020, Park Drive end access at Columbia Valley Highway temporary fencing was
placed with closures notices

► April 2, 2020, Sunnyside Campground entrance day parking area was closed with temporary
fencing

► April 6, 2020, Volleyball and Tennis Court closure
► The Park will continue to provide communication updates on a regular basis

Office staff are now able to work from home through remote access during this time. Public Works 
members are continuing to practice social distancing while in all areas of the Park. Offices, buildings 
and porta potties, garbage cans and vehicles are being sanitized on a regular basis. 

Cultus Lake Fire Department will only be following the provincial regulations, responding only to life 
and death, code purple call outs. Members were gifted masks to utilize while on call outs. One truck 
will only be used for first responder medical call outs and Wildland gear will be used and cross 
contamination procedures have been put into place. 

Cultus Lake Park Bylaw Compliance and Enforcement Officer is working in the Park and promoting 
social distancing. 

The Board, staff and members of the Fire Department are utilizing "Zoom Video Communication" for 
meetings, training, weekly check ins and conferencing. 

Staff will continue to communicate with other local governments to ensure that health and 
safety measures are implemented in a timely manner. 

A reminder, to reach out to those around you, neighbors, family and friends to keep connected while 
practicing social distancing and lend a helping hand. 

STRATEGIC PLAN: 

This report does not impact the Cultus Lake Park Board's Strategic Plan Initiative. 

Prepared by: Approved for submission to the Board: 

Ra Joe Lamb 
Executive Assistant Acting Chief Administrative Officer 

220



221



222



223



224



225



226



227



228



229



230



231



232



233



234



235



236



237



238



239



240



241



242



243



244



245



246



247



248



249



250



251



252



253



254



255



256



 
 

CULTUS LAKE PARK 
   

REPORT/RECOMMENDATION TO BOARD 
 
DATE: April 15, 2020  FILE:  0540-720  
 
SUBMITTED BY: Darcy Bauer, 
 Chair, Environmental and Public Areas Planning Committee 
 
SUBJECT: Recommendations from the Environmental and Public Areas Planning 

Committee 
 
 
PURPOSE: 
 
The purpose of this report is to provide the recommendations from the February 21, 2020 meeting of 
the Environmental and Public Areas Planning Committee. 
 
RECOMMENDATIONS: 
 
THAT the Environmental and Public Areas Planning Committee recommend that the Cultus Lake 
Park Board approve that the Environmental and Public Areas Planning Committee plant up to 25 
trees, from schedule B, approved tree replacement list, from the Cultus Lake Park Tree and Plant 
Bylaw No. 1153, 2019, including all amendments, on Main Beach at the corner of Second Avenue, on 
both sides of the service road and the lawned area parallel to the west portion of Parking Lot B. 
 
THAT the Environmental and Public Areas Planning Committee recommend that the Cultus Lake 
Park Board approve that the Environmental and Public Areas Planning Committee plant up to ten (10) 
trees, from schedule B, approved tree replacement list, from the Cultus Lake Park Tree and Plant 
Bylaw No. 1153, 2019, including all amendments, and the placement of up to five (5) large boulders 
on the island between Lakeside Beach Club and Sunnyside Boulevard subject to the Chief 
Administrative Officer consulting with the tenants of Lakeside Beach Club. 
 
DISCUSSION: 
 
At the February 21, 2020 meeting of the Environmental and Public Areas Planning Committee a 
discussion was had regarding the priorities of the 2020 Environmental and Public Areas Planning 
Committee and what the committee wants to accomplish this year within the $10,000 committee 
budget. 
 
As a result of these discussions, the above recommendations were put forward to the Cultus Lake 
Park Board. 
__________________________________________________________________________ 

 
Prepared by:   Approved for submission to the Board: 

 

                
______________________________  __________________________________ 
Commissioner Bauer,  Joe Lamb  
Chair, Environmental and Public  Acting Chief Administrative Officer 
Areas Planning Committee 

257


	5 2020.02.19 Regluar Meeting Minutes Final
	6 Environmental and Public Area Comm Minutes Feb 21
	7 2020 - 24 Financial Plan Amendment Bylaw 1173, 2020
	8 2020 04 15 Email From Blair Stewart
	9a 2020.04.15 - Bylaw Amendment-Sunnyside Report
	9b Sunnyside Campground Bylaw No. 1165,2020
	9c 2020 - Amendment Bylaw - Tree and Plant
	9d  2020 - Amendment Bylaw - Property Maintenance
	9e 2020 - Amendment Bylaw - Boating and Foreshore
	9f  2020 - Amendment Bylaw - Parking and Traffic
	9g  2020 - Amendment Bylaw - Management of Public Areas
	9h  2020 - Amendment Bylaw - BNEB
	9i Public Feedback regardin gshort term rentals, B&B Sec Suites Home based buisnesses
	9k Home Based Business, Commercial Business Licenses
	10a 2020.04.15 Release of Closed Meeting Resolutions
	10b Purchase of 216C Lakeshore Drive
	10c  DVP Report 216C
	10c DVP Report 29W
	10d 2020 04 15 Recycle Report
	10f 2020.04.15 First Avenue Parking Request
	10g Designated Smoking Areas
	10h COVID 19
	10i Special Event Cultus Lake Traithlon Report
	10j WaterSports Festival Report
	10k CHillwiack School District Cross Country Run Report
	10l Cheam Elementary School Celebration
	11a 2020.03.18 Environmental and Public Areas Planning Committee Recommendation Report
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page



